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Inauguration of Kamarajar Port Silver Jubilee Block at
Loganathan Narayanaswamy Govt.Arts College, Ponneri under CSR of KPL.
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Swabodhini S5chool & Vocational Centre for Special Children at Tondiarpet under CSR of KPL & ChPA
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Vision ¢ Mission

To develop Kamarajar Port as a Mega Port
with world class facilities to become the
Eastern Gateway Port of india

To provide Port Services of
International Standards
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

| welcome you all to the 25th Annual General
Meeting of the Company. It is my pleasure to share
with you the progress and achievements that have
defined your Company's journey in finandcial year
2024-2025.

Attheoutset, lwould like to state that your Company
celebrated its 25th Corporate Day during the year.
To mark the occasion of Silver Jubilee Celebrations,
your Port released 25th year logo of KPL on 10th
May 2024. shri Sarbananda Sonowal, Hon'ble Union
Ministerof Ports, Shipping &Waterways, Golreleased
Master Plan 2047 envisioning your Port's expansion
from 9 to 27 berths and increasing its capacity from
5744 MT to 254.52 MT and a Coffee Table Book
highlighting KPLs legacy and achievements over 25
years, on 7th December 2024.

Physlical Performance & Highlights

| am also pleased to inform that your Company has
handled an all time high cargo throughput of 48.41
million tonnes and an all-time high of 986 vessels in
its 25th year.

Maersk Line operating at KPL has commenced a
new weekly service, namely MEZ2 service (directly
connecting to Europe) and their first vessel MV,
Maersk Stadelhorn berthed at the Container
Terminal In our Port on 08.02.2025.

PCA Automobiles India Pvt Ltd has commenced the
export of Citroen EC3 Hlectric cars from Kamarajar
Port on 11.04.2024. The maiden shipment of 500
units of Citroen EC3 Electric cars was exporied to
Indonesia.

Nissan Motor India Pvt Ltd achieved a milestone
by exporting their 11th Lakh car from the General
Cargo Berth-2 on 29.06.2024.

CONCOR commenced the inaugural TVS GO GREEN
EXPRESS Container Traln with Direct Port Entry (DPE)
Export Containers of M/s. TVS Motor Company from
Jolarpet to KPL Railway siding (KPCA)on 28.11.2024,
for export to African nations through KPL.

Other achievements during the year are

> Common User Coal Terminal handled

10.19 million Tonnes of Cargo throughput by
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exceeding its capacity of 10.00 million Tonnes.

>  Multi Cargo Terminal handled 2.12 million
Tonnes of Cargo throughput for the first time
by exceeding its capadity of 2.00 million
Tonnes.

> LNG Terminal crossed 1.00 million Tonnes of
Cargo throughput for the first time by
handling 1.22 million Tonnes.

g Your Company achieved the record of :

s handling highest volume of import of 3,730
automaobile units at General Cargo Berth
{GCB) by BYD India & Toyota Kirloskar,

« eaming an all-time high net revenue of
Rs.75.10 Crore from Cargo related charges
towards export and import of automaobiles/
project cargoes from GCBs 1 & 2.

« exporting 3,111 units of Gear Boxes which
is the highest volume of Gear boxes ever
handled at GCB.

* handling an all-time high record of 8,231
TEUs of Containers from the vessel M.V. CAP
SAN SOUNIO berthed at Container Terminal
on 23.02.2025 within the berth stay of 60
hours.

Financlal Performance

During the year under review, your Company
reported an Operating Income of Rs.1138.42 Crore
asagainst Rs. 1062.22 Crore representing an increase
of 7.17% over the previous year. Consequently,
your Company made a higher Profit Before Tax of
Rs. 837.54 Crore compared to Rs.766.59 Crore (an
increase of 0.26%).

Dividend

For the Financial Year 2024-25, your Company has
paid an Interim Dividend @ 30% of paid-up equity
share capital {(which is equivalent to Rs.3/- per sharge)
amounting to Rs.90 Crore.

Board of Directors have recommended a final
Dividend @ 70% on paid up equity share capital
which Is equivalent to Rs.7/- per share amounting

to Rs.210 Crore which will be paid, subject to your
approval at the ensuing Annual General Meating.
With this the total dividend for the financial year
2024-25 {including the proposad final dividend) will
amount to 100% dividend on paid up equity share
capital consistent with 100% dividend paid In the
previous financial year 2023-24.

Accomplishments and Awards

It gives me Immense pride to inform that your
Company received the Award of Excellence for the
best port of the country In the category of ‘Ports
handling more than 5,00,000 TEUs of Containers’
from Shri Sarbananda Sonowal, Hon'ble Minister
of Ports, Shipping and Waterways during the
Post-Budget Industry Meet 2025 at Mumbal. Your
Company was also conferred the ‘Recognition of
Outstanding Indian Ports'and was awarded 1st Rank
at the 62nd Mational Maritime Day celebrations in
Mumbai. Your Company ranked 3rd in the Global
Ranking in Small Ports category of handling highest
containers (throughput of less than 0.5 million TEUs
per year) leading amongst all container ports In
India. Your Company ranked 47th for Performance
Based on Vessel Time in Port in the Global Ranking
of Contalner Ports by World Bank’s Container Port
Performance Index 2023 (CPPI 2023), published by
the World Bank and S&P Global Market Intelligence.

Corporate Governance

As a good corporate dtizen, your Company
considers good Corporate Governance a pre-
requisite for meeting the needs and aspirations of
its stakeholders. Towards this end, your Company
maintains transparency in its dealings through
robust policies, practices, effective processes and
systems with clear accountability, integrity and the
highest standards of governance. Hence, the Report
on Corporate Governance is being voluntarily
provided.

Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR)

Your Company's zeal to undertake CSR projects
in line with the well-laild out CSR policy and
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, can be
seen from the fact that Board of Directors of your
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Company have approved CSR initiatives to the value
of Bs.12.55 Crore which is Rs,2.90 Crore higher than
the CSR expenditure of Rs. 9.65 Crore earmarked for
the previous year. Your Company has spent Rs. 7.45
Crore in financial year 2024-25 towards various CSR
activities. The major CSR initiatives are:

e Rs.2.35 Crore was contributed to DRDA Tiruvallur
for various infrastructural projects.

* Rs2.18 Crore and Rs65.55 lakhs were
contributed for remaining construction work
of classroom building and Sports fadlity
respectively at Loganatha Narayanaswamy
Govt Arts College, Ponneri.

= Hs5.97.06 Lakhs was contributed to Swabodhini
Charitable Trust towards capital and operational
expenditure for running the Centre for spedial
children at Tondiarpet.

s Rs.87.07 lakhs was provided for infrastructure
developmental works at Government Schools
in the vicnity of KPL through Namma Ooru
Namma Schoool Foundation, Government of

Tamil Nadu.

Acknowledgement
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Regards,

sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, L.A.S.,
Chairman
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 25th Annual
General Meeting of Members of Kamarajar Port
Limited will be held on Monday, 29th day of
September 2025 at 15.00 hours (I5T) through two-
way Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual

Means (CAVM) to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the
Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year
ended 31st March 2025 and the reports of the
Board of Directors, the Auditors’ Report and
Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under Saction 143 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013

2. To confirm the Interim Dividend paid @ 30% of
the paid-up equity share capital (Rs.3/- per share)
for the financial year 2024-25 and to approve
declaration of the Final Dividend @ 70% on paid-
up equity share capital (Rs.7/- per share).

3. Toappoint a Director in place of Shri Sunil Paliwal,
I1AS (DIN:01310101), who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To pass with or without modification, the
following resclution as an Ordinary Resolution for
payment of remuneration to Statutory Auditors:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 142(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, approval be and is hereby given
to the Board of Directors for fixing the remuneration
of the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to be

Place : Chennai
Date : 13.8.2025

appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of
India for the financial year 2025-26"

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To appoint Shri RM. Narayanan (DIN: 02853368)
as Independent Director in place of Shri VMV,
Subba Rao, (DIN: 02435597).

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with orwithout
modification/s the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 152, & 160 read with Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™) and the Companies (Appointrent
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other
applicable rules, if any, (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force), and in terms of Chennal Port
Authority’s Letter No. ChPA/KPL Cell/2024/F dated
11th November, 2024, Shri. R.M. Narayanan (DIN:
02853368), who meets the criteria of Independence
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and whose
appointment terms are as stipulated In the letter
given by ChPA, and detailed In the statement
pursuant to Section 102 of the Act annexed to
the Notice of this Annual General Meeting, and in
respect of whom a Motice has been received under
Section 160 of the Act, be and is hereby appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f
13.11.2024 for a period of 3 years and shall not be
liable to retire by rotation”

By Order of the Board of Directors

sd/-
R. Roopa
Company Secretary
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NOTES:

a) Pursuant to General Circular No. 09/2024 dated
September 19, 2024 issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCAT and Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/
DDHS-PoD-1/P/CIR/2025/83 dated June 05, 2025,
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of Indla
("SEBI") (herelnafter collectively referred to as "the
Circulars”), Companies are allowed to hold Annual
General Meating (AGM") through VIC /OAVM without
the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue till September 30, 2025. In compliance
with the Circulars, the 25th AGM of the Company
is being held through VC /OAVM. The deemed
venue for the 25th AGM shall be the Registered
Office of the Company. The Notice of 25th AGM
along with Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent
through electronic mode to those members whose
email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants. Members may note that the
MNotice will be available on the Company’'s website
www.kamarajarport.in.

b) Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM Is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her
behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of
the Company. However, as this AGM is being held
through VC/OAVM, and physical attendance of
Members has been dispensed with, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be
available for the AGM and therefore the Proxy Form,
Route Map and Attendance Slip are not annexed to
this Notice. Members attending the AGM through
VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Act. Members participating through VC or OAVM
may cast their votes on the resolutions during the
meeting by show of hands or by sending emails only
through their email addresses registered with the
Company in case of a Poll. The said emails shall only
be sent to the designated email address circulated
by the Company.

c) The relevant explanatory statement pursuant
to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting
out the detalls relating to Special Business to be
transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

d) Corporate members intending to authorize
their representatives to participate and vote at the
meezting are requested to send a certified copy
of the Board resolution/such other documents
authorizing their representative to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote.

g) The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of
the commencement of the Meeting by following
the procedure mentioned in the Notice. Members
attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

f) Statutoryregisters asstipulatad inthe Companies
Act, 2013 will be available electronically/ kept open
for inspection during the AGM. Members seeking to
inspect such documents can send an email to cs@
kplmailin.

g) Members are requested to notify immediately
any change of address to thelr respective Depository
Participant.

h) Brief resume of the Directors retiring by rotation/
seeking appointment/ re-appointment at this
Annual General Meeting is attached hereto and
forms part of the Notice.

Instructions for attending the AGM through VC:

1. Web-ink and log-in credentials for attending
AGM through VC/OAVM will be provided in the
e-mall forwarding the Notice and Annual Report.

2. Members can join Video Conference either
through Mobile/Laptop/Deskiop.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5

BErlef Resume of Shrl R.M. Narayanan Is as under:-

Particulars

Detalls

Date of Birth and Age

04/06/1964 and 61 years

Date of first appointment on the Board

13/11/2024

Educational & Professional Qualification

M.Com, FCA, PGDM

Experience

Partner (since 1990) In M/s. 5. Viswanathan LLP Chartered
Accountants, Chennal

The firm, with over ninety years standing, has 7 partners, branches
in Bengaluru and Coimbatore and an audit staff of around 100. The
firm has extensive experience in providing auditing and assurance
services for both the public and the private sector as well in the
banking industry.

Handles corporate audits, including audits of public and private
sector banks. Has audited large Public Sector Banks including the
State Bank of India, Canara Bank and Bank of India. Has carried out
audit assignments at the instance of Reserve Bank of India.
Handles the audit and tax matters of several prestigious charitable
and religious institutions.

Handles taxation (including International Taxation, Tax Planning
and representation before various authorities such as the Dispute
Resolution Panel, Income Tax Appellate Tribunal and Settlement
Commission).

Assists clients in joint ventures, takeovers and Foreign Direct
Investment and Overseas Direct Investment matters. Actively
involved in consultancy involving mergers and demergers, family
settlements and arbitration proceedings.

Securities held In KPL

Relationship with other Directors/KMP
of KPL

Directorship/ Membership in other

Companies

NIL
NIL
Name of the Company Nature of Interest/
concern
Yojana Corporate Service Pvt Ltd Promuoter

Chairmanship/Membership of various
committees In other companies

NIL

Terms and conditions of appointment

Independent Director for an Initial period of three years, in the
place of Shri V.M.V Subba Rao.

Remuneration last drawn

Not applicable

Number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the year

Corporate Governance Report (Annexure V of Board's Report) may
ba referred.
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Brief Resume of Shri Sunll Paliwal Is as under:-

Item No. 3

Particulars

Detalls

Date of Birth and Age

25/11/1968; 56 years

Date of first appointment on the Board

16/09/2019

Educational & Professional Qualification

1. B.Tech in Computer Sdence from IIT, Kanpur. 2. M.5. in Computer
Science from University of Maryland, USA. 3. MBA from University
of Birmingham, U.K.

Experience

ShrisunilPaliwalstartedhiscareeras SubCollector, CuddaloreDistrict
and served as Additional Collector in Nagapattinam District. He also
worked as the Collector of Tirunelveli, Theni and Kannivakumari
Districts. He also held crucial portfolios in the Government of Tamil
Madu such as Managing Director, Chennai Metropolitan Water
Supply and Sewerage Board (CMWSSE), Managing Director, Tamil
Nadu Road Development Company Limited (TMRDC), Managing
Director, Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation, Secretary
to Government, Commercial Taxes & Registration Department
and Commissioner for Milk Production & Dairy Development
and Managing Director, Tamilnadu Co-operative Milk Producers’
Federation Ltd. (Aavin), Principal Secretary to Government, Higher
Education Department and Principal Secretary to Government,
Labour & Employment Department. Presently he is the Chairperson
of Chennai Port Authority. He is also the Chalrman-cum-Managing
Director of Sethusamudram Corporation Limited and Nomineeg
Director of Chennal MMLP Private Limited.

Securities held in KPL

1 Equity Share of Rs. 10/-as a nominee of Chennal Port Authority

Relationship with other Directors/KMP
of KPL

Mot Applicable

Directorship/ Membership in other
Companies

Mature of Interest/
concern

Name of the Company

Sethusamudram Corporation Limited | Chairman cum Managing

Director

Chennai MMLP Private Limited Nomunee Director

Chairmanship/Membership of various
committees in other companies

Corporate Governance Report (Annexure V of Board's Report) may
be referred

Terms and conditions of appointment

MNon- Executive Director liable to retire by rotation. No sitting fee
payable.

Remuneration last drawn

Corporate Governance Report {Annexure V of Board's Report) may
be referred.

Number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the year

Corporate Governance Report (Annexure V of Board's Report) may
be referred
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors take immense pleasure
in submitting the Annual Report on the business,
operations, developments and progress made by
your Company along with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 315t March 2025.

1.0 PERFORMANCE & HIGHLIGHTS

1.1 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

(Rs. In Crs.)
Particulars 2024-25| 2023-24
Income from Operations 113842 106222
Other Income 21.83 19.22
Total Income 1160.25| 1081.44
Operating Expenses 192.06| 176.67
Hnance Costs 43.67 62.63
Depreciation and Amortization 86.98 75.55
Total Expenses 322.71| 314.85
Profit Before Exceptional Items 837.54| 766.59
and Tax
Exceptional items (-} = "
Profit Before Tax 837.54| 766.59
Taxes 298.21 270.91
Profit After Tax 539.33| 495.68

1.2 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year under review, your Company
reported an Operating Income of Rs.113842
Crore as against Rs.1062.22 Crore reported in the
previous year, an Increase of 7.17%. This is due
to higher throughput of 4841 Million Tonnes
achieved compared to 45.28 Million Tonnes in the
correspending previous year (an Increase of about
6.91%). Consequently, the Company has made
a Profit Before Tax of Rs.837.54 Crore, compared
to Rs.766.59 Crore made in the previous year {an
increase of 9.25%).

1.2 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
() Performance Highlights

> Maersk Line has commenced a new weskly
sarvice namely ME2 service from Kamarajar Port with
their first vessel M.V. Maersk Stadelhorn berthed at
Adanl Ennore Container Terminal on 08th February
2025, Maersk Line operating at KPL has upgraded
their existing weekly service namely Shuttle service
to ME2 service (directly connecting to Europe).

e . E
L] = = -

MV, Maersk Stadelhorn

-

»  PCAAutomobilesindiaPvit Ltd has commenced
the export of Citroen EC3 Electric cars from
Kamarajar Port on 11.04.2024. The maiden
shipment of 500 units of Citroen EC3 Electric
cars were exported to Indonesia.

> Nissan Motor India Pvt Ltd achieved a
milestone by exporting their 11th Lakh car
from the General Cargo Berth 2 of KPL on
29.06.2024.

» CONCOR commenced the inaugural "TVS GO
GREEN EXPRESS" Container Train with Direct
Port Entry (DPE) Export Contalners of M/sTVS
Motor Company from Jolarpet to KPL Raflway
siding (KPCA) on 28.11.2024, for export to
African nations through KPL

(i) Other Achlevements

#»  Common User Coal Terminal handled 10.19
Million Tonnes of Cargo throughput for the
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first time by exceeding its Capacity of 10.00
Million Tonnes.

is the highest volume of Gear boxes ever
handled at GCB.

»  Multi Cargo Terminal handled 2.12 Million = handling an all-time high record of 8,231
Tonnes of Cargo throughput for the TEUs of Containers from the vessal M.V. CAP
firsttime by exceeding its Capacity of 2.00 SAN SOUNIO berthed at Adani Ennore
hilion  Tonnes: Container Terminal on 23.02.2025 within the

berth stay of 60 hours.

»  LNG Terminal crossed 1.00 Million Tonnes of T
Cargo throughput for the first time by handling (M) CargoPerlormance
1.22 Million Tonnes. During the year, your Company handled the highest

>  Your Company achieved the record of »  monthly Cargo throughput of 458 Million

Tonnes in March 2025.
« handling highest volume of import of 3,732
automobile units at General Cargo Berth »  Container volume of 62,530 TEUs in the month
(GCB) by BYD India & Toyota Kirloskar. of December 2024, and
e camning an alltime high net revenue of »  an al-time highest of 986 Vessels in the
Rs.75.10 Crore from Cargo related charges finandial year 2024-25
towards export and import of automobiles/ The cargo throughput for the financial year 2024-25
project cargoes from GCBs 1 & 2. are as detailed below:
s gxporting 3,111 units of Gear Boxes which
(in Million Tonnes)
sl 202425 2023-24 Variation In Traffic Handled
Terminals No, of Cargo No. of
Mo 5
LargoQty Vessals Oty Vessals (A %
1 |Coal Berth 1 846 110 936 129 0.90 0.62
2 |CoalBerth2 6.93 89 553 72 1.40 2532
3 Common User Coal 10,19 149 930 153 0.89 957
Terminal
Total Coal 2558 348 24.19 354 1.39 575
;[ MEne LG 417| 22 416 B3 | om 024
Terminal 1
5 |General Cargo Berth 1 0.89 46 148 109 0.59 -30.86
6 |General Cargo Berth 2 1.28 Fit] 0.03 1 1.25 4.166.67
Container Terminal
7 13.15] 208 1296 219 0.19 1.47
{Phase 1, Stage 1)
g | Mal Cargo 12| M3 147 35 0.65 4.2
Terminal
0 |LNGTerminal 122 20 0.99 16 0.23 23.23
Grand Total 48.41| 986 45.28 967 3.13 6.91
Automobiles
10 handled (in Nos.) 161384 125 114,604 110 46,780 40.82
H gg}f;;mm handled(in| o1 124| 208 | 671303 | 210 | 973 145
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{v) Performance Metrics and Milestones

> Successfully berthed MV MSC TOPAZ (LOA
366m,GRT 141754, Draft 14.2m)on 08.11.2024,
the largest vessel to call at KPL this year.

e
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MV MSC TOPAZ, the largest vessel called at KPL

Fd 43 large wvessels (LOA > 325m) handled at
AECTPL, marking a 19.4% increase over the
previous year.

> 10 Cape-size vessals handled at ECTPL & EBTPL,
increase by 42.8%, indicating enhanced
infrastructure to achieve optimum throughout.

#»  Achieved 62 Inline berthing operations, a
44.18% rise. Notably, dual berthing at MLT, GCB
2 and AECTPL was a significant operational
feat.

g 20 LNG vessels handled In FY 2024-25,
reflecting a 25% growth.

#»  August 2024 recorded the highest monthly
vessal traffic, with 95 vessels handled.

> Successfully berthed an FPSO (Floating
Production Storage and Offloading) vessel,
showcasing the capacity to handle specialized
marine assets.

Svetha Venetia - Floating Production Storage and Offfcading Vessel

»  Revenue realized through FP50 Svetha
Venetia operations at CB3 and CB4, reinforcing
asset optimization.

v} Ease of Doing Business

1. Mobile X-Ray Container Scanner Is operational
on 24x7 basis effective from 01.01.2025.

2. Aroom was allotted for setting up of laboratory
for Plant Quarantine at the Port premise.

3. Contract was awarded for “Appointment
of System Integrator for Supply, Installation,
Integration, Commissioning and Operations &
Maintenance of RFID & ANPR based Gate
Control System to M/s. Sentinel Technologies
Pvi. Lid. on 14.02.2025 at the contract value of
Rs.6.54 Crore, The salient foatures of RFID &
ANPR basad Gate Control system are:

¥ Latest access technologies i.e., RFID, ANPR,
Contactless fingerprint recognition & QR
code for validation of Port entry/exit of men
and vehicles.

# Provision for validating the entry of Drivers
without getting down from the vehidle.

# Two factor authentication for entry of
vehicles through integration with Fastag and
ANPR camera.

4. Document Management System (DMS) for
digitalization of documents pertaining to cargo
clearances in Business Interface Portal (BIP) was
implemented w.ef. 02.09.2024 as per the direction
of Ministry of Ports, Shipping & Waterways to
reduce the dwell time of cargoes and to simplify the
procedure of import / export clearances, Gate In &
Out of cargoes, plant back cargoes, calculation of
demurrage charges, etc

2.0 DIVIDEND

Based on the recommendation of the Board of
Directors an Interim Dividend @ 30% on paid up
equity share capital which is equivalent to Rs3/-
per share amounting to Rs.90 Crore was paid on
28.03.2025. Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 11.07.2025 have recommended a Final
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Dividend @ 70% on paid up equity share capital
which is equivalent to Rs.7/- per share amounting to
Rs.210 Crore which will be paid, subject to approval
of Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

3.0 TRANSFERTO RESERVES
3.1 General Reserve:

Your Company has not transferred any amount
to General Reserve during the year as it is not
mandatory fo transfer any amount before
declaration of dividend under the Companies Act,
2013. The balance as on 31st March 2025 remains at
Rs.79.02 Crore.

3.2 Debenture/Bond Redemption Reserve;

Your Company has transferred Rs4.57 Crore to
Debenture/Bond Redemption Reserve during the year
pursuant to Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the balance as on 31st March 2025 stood at Rs.55.02
Crore.

4.0 FINANCE

During the reporting year, your Company has repaid
scheduled installments of Term loan of

# Rs.10 Crore to HDFC Bankand Rs. 25 Crup to
31.03.2025 out of the avalled amount of
Rs.40 Crore.

# Rs23.01 Crore to Chennail Port Authority.

During the reporting year, your Company promptly
discharged on the due dates with annual interest
obligation to the tune of Rs.0.88 Crore and Rs.25.45
Crore on Tax Free Bonds issued during the financial
years 2012-13 and 2013-14 respectively.

4.1 Ratings

As per the offer document of Tax Free Bonds issuad
by your Company, your Company has carried out
the annual surveillance of Credit Ratings and the
following Ratings have been assigned by the Credit
Rating Agencies:

| Credit Rating Agencles - Ratings / Outlook
CRISIL _ AA/Stable
CARE AA/Stable
ICRA AA-/Stable
Brick Work AA/Stable

4.2 Particulars of transactlon made with
Related Partles

The disclosure of Related Party Transactions as
required under Section 134(3}(h) of the Companies
Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to your
Company. Members may refer to Note No.30(12) to
the financial statement which sets out related party
disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-24.

4.3 Materlal changes and commitments
affecting financial position between the
end of the financlal year and date of report

There are no material changes and commitments
affecting financial position of your Company
between the end of finandial year and date of report.

4.4 Change In the nature of business, If any

There has been no change in the business of the
Company during the financial year.

4.5 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees

Your Company has not given any loans and
Guarantees or provided any Security under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4.6 Investments

During the year under review, your Company has
not invested/paid advance towards Investments,

4.7 Capltal Expenditure

Your Company spent Rs.201.16 Crore on Capital
Expenditure during the financial year 2023-24 as
against Rs.327.32 Crore spent in the previous year.

4.8 Fixed Deposits

Dwring the year under review, your Company has not
accepted any Fixed Deposits, nor has any outstanding
unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 31.03.2025.

4.9 Internal Financlal Control

Your Company adheres to policies and procedures
adopted for

# ensuring orderly and effidient conduct of its
business,

# safeguarding its assets, for preventing and
detecting frauds and errors,

# accuracyandcompletenessofthe accounting
records, and

# timely preparation of reliable finandal
disclosures.

The Internal control and governance processes are
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regularly reviewed by the Internal Auditor and the
Audit Committee for their adequacy and effectiveness.
Internal control procedures are considered sufficient
to provide a reasonable assurance as to the integrity
and reliability of the Financial Statements.

5.0 25th Corporate Day Celebration

Your Company celebrated its 25th Corporate Day
with great fervor. Shri Sunil Paliwal, LA.S. Chairman,
Chennai Port Authority and Kamarajar Port Limited
gracedtheeventwithhis presenceand congratulated
the employees of KPL for completing 25 years of
their journey to attain the zenith of success. Smt.
J.P. Irene Cynthia, 1AS, Managing Director, presided
over the celebration, commending the relentless
efforts of KPL's employees and stakeholders. She
acknowledged the port's exceptional achievements
in recent years and expressed opflimism for
continued growth and excellence.

On the ave of Silver Jubilee Celebrations-

¥ Shri Sunil Paliwal, 1AS, Chalrman of your
Company released the "25th Year Logo™ of
KPL on 10th May 2024,

Rofease of 25th Year Logo of KPL

#  Medical camps were organized at Athipattu
Village and Kattupalli Village benefitting
around 800 residents of the localities.

Sports events like cricket, badminton, carrom
and chess were conducted for employees and
their families at Sri Babu Jagjivanram Sports
Complex, Tondiarpet and Trophies, medals and
cartificates were awarded to the winners by the
Chairman and the Managing Director of your
Company.

Winners af the Cricket Team receives Trophy

A grand function was organized on 7th
December 2024 and the Chief Guest Shri
Sarbananda Sonowal, Hon'ble Union Minister
of Ports, Shipping & Waterways, Government of
India released the Master Plan 2047, envisioning
the Port’s expansion from 9 to 27 berths and
increasing the Port’s capadity from 57.44 MT to
254 52 MT and a Coffee Table Book highlighting
KPLs legacy and achievements over 25 years
and laid foundation stones for

+ (Capital Dredging Phase VI (Rs.520 Crore)
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s 1 MLD RO Desalination Plant (Rs.37 Crore)

+ |ntegrated Command and Control Center
(Rs.25 Crore)

Thiru EV. Velu, Horn'ble Minister for Public Works,
Highways & Minor Ports, Government of Tamil Nadu
graced the function with his august presence.

Release of Master Plan 2047 by Shii Sarbananda Sonowal, Union
Minister of Ports, Shipping & Waterways, Gol.

6.0 AWARDS
During the year under review, your Company

#»  was felicitated for completing 25 years of
service to the trade during the 16th South
East CEO Conclave & Awards 2025 organized
by EXIM INDIA Shipping Times in Chennai on
11.07.2025.

> recelvedtheawardof excellencefor thabestPort
of the country in the category of 'Ports handling
more than 5,00,000 TEUs of Contalners’ from

Shri Sarbananda Sonowal, Hon'ble Minister of
Ports, Shipping and Waterways during the Post-
Budget Industry Meet 2025 at Mumbai.

#  was conferred the ‘Recognition of Outstanding
Indian Ports' and awarded 1st Rank at the 62nd
National Maritime Day celebrations held on
05.04.2025 in Mumbai.

#> ranked 47th In the Global Ranking of
Container Ports by World Bank's Container Port
Performance Index 2023 (CPPI 2023), published
by the World Bank and S&P Global Market
Intelligence; and

#» ranked 3rd in the Global Ranking in Small

Ports category of handling highest containers
{throughput of less than 0.5 million TEUs per
Year) leading amongst other Container ports in
India.

7.0 MOU

The Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for
the year 2025-26 was signed with Chennai Port
Authority on 15.07.2025. The Mol rating for
financial year 2024-25 Is"Very Good'

Kamarajar Port Limited signed Moll 2024-25 with Chennai Port
Authority

B.0 OPERATIONS

Presently, your Company has 9 Nos. of Terminals in
operation, out of which four (4) Terminals are BOT
Terminals, three (3) are Captive user Terminals and
Two (2] are KPL owned Terminals. All the Terminals are
equipped with'State-of-the-Art'Infrastructure facilities
with fully mechanized cargo handling operations for
faster evacuation and pellution free environment.
Capacity of the 0 operational berths Is 57.44 Million
Tonnes. Brief of the existing Terminals are as detailed
below:

(Il CoalBerths1and2

Coal Berths 1 & 2 with handling capacity of BMTPA
each can accommodate 280m long two Coal
Carriers of up to 77,000 DWT and handles Thermal
Coal for the Thermal Power Plants of TNPGCL and
its JV Companies. Unloaded Coal is directly moved
through the conveyor system to the stackyard
located in the adjoining North Chennai Thermal
Power Station (NCTPS) from where a part of it, is
moved further to Mettur, through Rail connectivity.
As per the business model, your Company built
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Berthing structure and TNPGCL has invested in and
is operating and maintaining all top side facilities
like shore unloaders, conveyor system, etc. for
handling Thermal Coal.

() Marine Liquid Terminal

Marine Liquid Terminal with cargo handling capacity of
3 MTPA was developed under BOT basis by M/s.Ennore
Tank Terminals Private Limited (ETTPL) and commercial
operations commenced from 16th January 2009. To
meet the demand in the trade, the BOT Operator
developed additional storage tanks and installed LPG
handling equipment. The Terminal handles POL, LPG,
(CBF5, Chemicals and others. To mitigate the congestion
of vessels, M/sETTPL laid additional dock lines and
installed marine unloading arms thereby reducing the
vessel waiting time. The Tank Farmis locatedina 33 acre
port-leased plot at about 3.7 km from the berth with
a total storage capacity of about 247,990 KL and can
store class A/B/C petroleum products, petrochemicals,
vegetable olls, bio fuels, adds and safe class liquids.
The entire Terminal is having an integrated fire fighting
system consistent with the requirements of OISD.

(ll) Common User Coal Terminal

Commeon User Coal Terminal with cargo handling
capacity of 10 MTPA was developed on BOT basis by
M/s. Chettinad International Coal Terminal Pvi. Ltd
and commerdial operations began from 11th March
2011. To handle Cape size vessels, the BOT Operator
extended the berth length by 22.5m with draft of 16m.
The stackyard area of 48.0 Ha is located at about 2.50
km from Port compound wall. An in-motion wagon
loading station has been installed for loading one full
rake of 59 wagons (3500T). Truck loading stations are
provided for evacuation through trucks. A Conveyor has
been installed with the dust suppression mechanism
to reduce pollution. The Terminal has been renamed
as M/s. Ennore Coal Terminal Pvt. Ltd. after acquisition
of the Terminal by J5W Infrastructure Ltd. Group

(lv) General Cargo Berth cum Automoblle
Export Terminal

The berth can accommodate the world's Largest Car
Carrier Vessel and has a back-up area of about 3,70,313
sg.m with an expansive Car Parking Yard including

Transit Parking Yard for 25,000 Cars, which is the largest
facility in any Indian Port. As on 31.03.2025 the export
of automaobile units through GCB crossed 23.80 lakh
units since inception.

Your Company has executed long term agreements
with the major OEM’s viz. M/s.Nissan Motor India
Pvt. Ltd., M/s. Toyota Kirloskar Motor India Pvt. Ltd,,
M/s.Daimler India Commercial Viehicles Pvt. Lid., M/s.
Isuzu Motors India Pvt. Ltd. and M/s.ZF Wind Power
Colmbatore Pvi. Lid. (Windmill Components), M/s.
Maruti Suzuki India Ltd., M/s. Caterplliar India Pvi. Ltd.
and M/s. PCA Automobiles india Pvt. Ltd. for export
of Automobiles through your Port. Your Port is also
providing volume based rebate on Wharfage Charges

(v)] Contalner Terminal

Your Company entered into a Concession Agreement
with M/s. Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private
Limited for developing Container Terminal with
handling capacity of 140 Million TEUs per annum
under PPP mode in a phased manner. The total
backup area for Container Terminal is 36.5 Ha. Phase-l
berth is equipped with four Rail Mounted Quay Cranes
each with 62M outreach and 12 ERTGS. Three more
Raill Mounted Cranes and 9 ERTGS will be added
during the second phase as and when implemented.
Container evacuation Is through road and rail mode.
The commercial operations of Container Terminal
{Phase-l) began from the finandial vear 2017-18.

{vl) Multl Cargo Terminal

The Terminal was developed by M/s. Chettinad
Iinternational Bulk Terminal Private Limited with
2.0 Million Tonnes capacity on DBFOT basis. The
Terminal handles Steel, Fertilizer, Gypsum, Barytes
and Limestone. The total backup area for the
Terminal is 13.5 Ha. The berth is equipped with Two
{2) Nos. of Harbour Mobile Cranes with capadity of
100 Tonnes each and yard is equipped with storage
facilitles. Cargo evacuation is through road and rail
mode. The commercial operations of the Terminal
began from 05.08.2017. The Terminal is renamed as
M/s. Ennore Bulk Terminal Pvi. Ltd after acquisition
by M/s. JSW Infrastructure Ltd Group on 13.11.2020.
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(vil) Liguefied Natural Gas (LNG) Import
Termlnal

M/s.I0CL, lead partner of IV, has set upthe LNGTerminal
with re-gasification facilities with capacity of 5 MTPA
{expandable upto 10 MTPA). Re-gasification Terminal
consists of 2 Tanks each of gross capacity 1,80,000m3.
The Terminal was commissicned on 26.02.2019 and
the cost of the project is Rs.3834.51 Crore.

(vill) Automoblle Export/ Import Terminal-2 (3
MTPA)

Your Company had selected M/s. L&T Geostructure
Pvit. Ltd. as Contractor to develop the 2nd Automobile
Export/Import Terminal with estimated capacity of 3
MTPA. The awarded project cost was Rs.149.36 Crore.
The Terminal was inaugurated by the Hon'ble Prime
Minister of india on 2nd January 2024 and Is operational
from March 2024.

9.0 PROJECTS:

To Increase your Port's ability to provide various
services to its customers, action has been Initiated for
development of various Berths/Terminals, the status of
which Is as detailed below:

(I} CoalBerths3 &4 (18 MTPA)

Based on the request of TNPGCL {erstwhile known
as TANGEDCO), your Company has constructed two
additional Coal Berths (CB3 & CB4) at an investmeant of
Rs.500 Crore. The two new Coal Berths have capacity
of 9 MTPA each and can accommodate Cape size
vessel of 18 m draft. The berths have been handed
over to TNPGCL for installation of top unloading
fadilities like Unloaders, Conveyor system, efc. The
mechanization of CB-3 is underway and is expected to
be commissionad in financial year 2025-26. As regards
CB-4, the mechanisation work which was under hold
duetotermination of earlier contract, has been recently
awarded to a new contractor and it is expected to be
commissionad in the FY 2026-27.

(ll} 10CL Captlve Jetty (32 MTPA)

Your Company has signed Concession Agreement
with M/s. indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL) for
Construction of Captive Jetty to handle POL and
LPG products at an estimated project cost of R5.921

Crore and has appointed M/s. Assystem India Ltd
{Formerly known as LAT Infrastructure Engineering
Ltd) as Independent Engineer. M/s. I0CL has
selected M/s. ITD Cementation Ltd, Mumbal as
the EPC Contractor for jetty construction. Your
Company has allotted the land portion, water front
and ROW for pipeline corridor to M/s. I0DCL and has
declared the Date of Award of Concession with
effect from 02.03.2022. Construction of Jefty was
completed on 31.12.2024 and the same Is expected
to be commissioned In near future.

() Modificatlon of Iron Ore Terminal on “as Is
where Is basls” to also handle common user
coal (12 MTPA)

Your Company had signed an agreement forlron Ore
Terminal on a 30 years BOT basis during September
2006 with the Project Company M/s. SICAL Iron Ore
Terminal Limited (SIOTL). The BOT Operator had
developed the first phase of & MTPA during 2010-
11. However, due to ban on export of Iron Cre, the
Terminal was never put into use. Conseguently,
Modification of existing Iron Ore Terminal on “as
is where is” to also handle Common User Coal was
contemplated and accordingly License Agreement
was signed on 11.07.2016 between KPL and SIOTL.

However, due to the occcurrence of Finandial Default
by the Concessionaire, ‘Termination Notice’ was
issued by your Company to M/s.SIOTL on 22.03.2021
and the License Agreement was terminated
on 20.06.2021. However, SIOTL Is facing NCLT
proceedings under IBC code and the matter is sub
judice.

(lw) Marine Liquld Terminal - 2 {3 MTPA)

To meet ever increasing demand for POL, your
Company Initiated action for development of 2nd
Marine Liquid Terminal consisting of berth and
tankage fadlities in DBFOT mode at an investment
of Rs.393 Crore. After competitive bidding, your
Company issued Letter of Award to Consortium
of BPCL-HPCL on 14.02.2018. However, because of
litigation by existing BOT Operator of MLT-1, the
signing of Concession Agreement and allotment of
water front is pending. Matter has been referred to
Condiliation and Settlement Committee (C5C).




KAMARAIAR PORT LIMITED

(v} Contalner Terminal-Phase 1(stage 2)
(6,00,000TEUsS/11.58 MTPA)

The Concessionaire, M/s. AECTPL was supposed
to commence Stage-2 construction on 19.01.2019
as per the Concession Agreement. However, due
to delay in commencement of Stage I, liquidated
damages were levied on the Concessionaire.
The Concessionaire Invoked Arbitration dispute
on 16.8.2020. A majority Award was passed on
2852024, You Company filed an appeal against
the arbitration Award, and it is pending before the
Hon'ble High Court of Madras.

Meanwhile, M/S.AECTPL recommenced the
construction of Phase 1 (stage 2) with effect from
01.04.2025.

10.0 INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

As a Corporate Port, functioning on "Landlord”
model, your Port has to provide the basic
infrastructure like road & rail connectivity, dredged
basin/channel, marine services and other common
utilities. Towards this end, your Company has
initiated actions for effective network of Road and
Rall connectivity to the National Highway to ensure
faster receipt and evacuation of cargo as detailed
below:-

10.1 Road connectivity
(I} Internal Road Connectivity

To provide better road connectivity to the 10CL
Regasification Terminal Inside the Port, your
Company signed an agreement with TNRDC for
construction of 2 lane concrete road at a cost of
Rs.17.43 Crore. The total length of the road is 2.4 km
and has been dedicated for service.

(ll) External Road Connectivity
(a) Southern Port Access Road

Present road connectivity of your Port to the three
National Highways (NH5, NH4 & NH45) Is through
the Port Access Road, the NCTPS approach road,
Tiruvottlyur — Ponneri — Panchetty (TPP) Road, the
Inner Ring Road (IRR) and the Chennai Bypass Road.
Considering the increasing road traffic movement
of import/export of cargoes, the existing two lane

road starting from Vallur Junction (TPP Road) to
Kamarajar Port Main entrance has been widenad
to four lane road on a turnkey basis by TMRDC for a
cost of Rs.195 Crore,

The road works were Implemented by TNRDC In
2 streiches. Stretch-1 involves road widening/
improvement from Vallur Junction to NCTPS
Junction for 4.8 km length and Stretch-2 involves
road Improvement from NCTPS Junction to Port
Main Gate for a length of 2.3 km. The works were
completed and inaugurated by Shrl Sarbananda
Sonowal, Hon'ble Minister for Ports, Shipping and
Waterways & Ayush on 23.04.2023.

(b} Northern Port Access Road (NPAR)

The Morthern Port Access Road, which connects
your Port to NH5 has a length of 21.148 km with a
4.35 km SPUR Road to the existing Chennai ORR. This
Northern Port Access Road forms part of Section-1
of the Chennai Peripheral Ring Road (CPRR). The
State Government vide G.O.(Ms) No.37 Highways
and Minor Ports (HW2) Department dated 83.2019
has accorded administrative sanctlion for Rs.3339
Crore for the formation of the road. The project is
being executed by TNRDC and funded by JICA. M/s.
Tata Projects was selected as the Contractor. Works
commenced In January 2022 and s expected to be
completed by December 2026.

(c) stackyard Road

Your Company entered into a contract agreement in
August 2024 with

M/s. Tamil Nadu Road Development Company Ltd.
(TNRDC), the Project Implementing Agency, for the
development of a concrete road from Vallur NCTPS
Camp Roundtana to ECTPL Stack Yard. TNRDC
awarded the work to M/s. Om Sakthi Constructions
in January 2025. The project almed at facilitating
seamless coal evacuation from ECTPUs coal
stackyard to various destinations by truck.

The major cvil work involves the repair and
rehabilitation of existing bitumen/ concrete
roads, culverts, drains, and streetlights, as well as
the reconstruction of two major bridges located
betwean the ECTPL Stackyard and KPL main
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gate. The scope Includes the construction of a
4.39 km concrete road and strengthening of side
embankments for the bridges. The total estimated
cost of the project is Rs.58.21 Crore, with a scheduled
completion period of 24 months.

10.2 Rall Connectivity

Presently, your Company Is connected by rail to
the mainline at Attipatiu and Attipattu Pudunagar
Stations located in the Chennai — Gudur Section
of the Southern Railway on the Chennai — Delhi/
Kolkata route. Your Company developed the railway
facilities connecting Coal and Iron Qre Terminals
to the existing NCTPS rallway line. Further, as part
of obligations of your Company, Rail Connectivity
to Container and Multi Cargo Terminals has been
provided.

To ease congestion In rall bound traffic, your
Company has inltiated actions for the following Rail
Connectivity projects:

(Il Southern Rall Connectivity

Your Company entered into an agreement with M/s.
Indian Port Rail & Ropeway Corporation Limited for
doubling the existing single line rail connectivity
from Holding Yard No.1 to Container Yard at a
project cost of Rs.B8.81 Crore. The total length of
doubling rall connectivity is 2.65 km. The project
is already commissioned and the allied works such
as Interlocking Level Crossing No4 inside Port
commissioned during February 2025.

(I} Northern Rall Connectivity

MNorthern Rail Link (MRL) connects your Port to
Northern side of Minjur Station i.e. Chennai -
Gudur Railway mainline. Total length of the NRL
Connectivity is 11.211 km. Your Company and
Kattupalli Port agreed for 30m RoW (15m each) out
of 100m RoW being acquired by Government of
Tamil Nadu for NPAR. Your Company has considered
this NRL connectivity project as a long term project.

() Onetime Upgradation of KPL and NCTPS
Rallway lines

Your Company enterad into an agreement with M/s.
Indian Port Rail & Ropeway Corporation Limited for

onetime upgradation of KPL tracks (Holding yard |, Il
& KPCA) and NCTPS Railway tracks (Common railway
track) including modification work (PWay, OHE and
5&T) in Holding Yard Il The total upgradation length
of rail connectivity is 26.38 track km at an estimate
cost of Rs.35.20 Crore. Original scope of works such
as Civil, OHE & 5&T works have been completed.
Additional work of S&T at Attipattu Station is in
progress. The work is expected to be completed by
December 2025.

10.3 Dredging Plan
(I} Capltal Dredging Phase-V

The work of Capital Dredging Phase-V awarded to
M/s. Jan De Nul Dredging India Pvt. Ltd, Chennali for
the value of Rs.156,08,56,760/- {(excluding GST) for
providing water depth of () 16m CD for the berths
such as Ro-Ro cum General Cargo Berth-ll and 10CL
Captive Terminal got completed during October
2023.

i} Capital Dredging Phase-Vl

With increase in EXIM trade demand, the preference
of trade will be to deploy deep draft vessels to
gain economies of scale. To align with the MIV-
2030 Initiative, your Company has re-initiated the
action for carrying out Capital Dredging Phase-Vl to
provide (-}18m deep draft in the Basin and Channel
area of the Port. The estimated dredging cost
Rs.513.83 Crore as approved by PIB will be financed
through Internal and Extra Budgetary Resources.
After completing tendering process, the work was
awarded to M/s.Van Oord Marine Contractors BY,
Mumbai for the contract value of Rs.440.70 crores
excluding GST on 24.10.2024. Work is in progress.
Expected to be completed by June 2026.

11.0 INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company continues to maintain cordial and
harmonious Industrial relations during the year
2024-2025. No man days were fost during the year
due to any strike or stoppage of work. The labour
situation at the port was normal
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12,0 HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

12.1 Manpower

As on 31.03.2025, your Company had a total of 92
employees, comprising of 74 male employees, 18

female employees, and 0 transgender employees
under the following categorisation.

5C | 5T |OBC | OTHERS |TOTAL
OFFICERS | 11| 2 | 30 21 G4
STAFF a1 10 8 28
TOTAL 20| 3 | 40 29 92

12.2 Representation of SCs/STs/OBCs, Minorities

Your Company meticulously follows the Presidential
Directives and orders of the Central Government
from time to time on reservation of posts/benefits
in favour of the Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes,
Other Backward Classes, and Minorities etc. SC
employees constitute 22% of total manpower and
ST employees constitute 3% of total manpower and
the details of their representation are tabled below:

Liaison Officers for SC/ST and OBC have
been appointed to ensure compliance and
implementation of the reservation orders in the
organization.

12.3 Training

As your Company believes that imparting training
to its employees is essential to keep them abreast of
the knowledge in their related fields, 153 man days
of training was imparted to the employees during
the year incurring an expenditure of Rs.17.59 lakh
approximately.

Programs attended by the employees during
the year are Smart Port Technologies and Port
& Terminal Optimization, Port Environmental
Management and Sustainability, Port and Marine
Services, Dredging Technelogy, IMO Level | & 1
Tralning, Green Ports, SEBI, Cyber Threat Intelligence,
Disaster Management with NIDM, PPP Frameworks
for Infrastructure Development, Environmental,
Social and Governance way to sustainability, CSR,
Port and Harbor Engineering, Reservations, Port
Security, Energy Conservation and Energy Audit,

Hindi Workshops, etc
12.4 Grievance Redressal Mechanlism

Your Company has in place a grievance redressal
procedure for Executives as well as non-executive
employees. There was NIL grievance received for the
year under review.

13.0 MARINE
13.1 Marine Operations

Your Port continues to demonstrate operational
excellence and maritime safety through the
following initiatives:

#  Ensures 24 x 7 prompt pilotage services for
all ocean-going vessels, facilitating reduced
tumaround times and improved berth
utilization.

»  Maintains a robust fleet comprising 4 tugs, 2
pilot launches, and 2 mooring boats, delivering
efficient shipping support.

» Al tugs are equipped with F-F (Fire-Fighting)
systems, aligned to International standards for
safe handling of LPG/LNG vessels.

# A dedicated patrol boat, manned with CISF
personnel, operates 365 days, round-the-clock
at the seafront to ensure ISPS Code compliance
and secure marine infrastructure.

13.2 Vessel Traffic Services (VTS)

To promote navigational safety and environmental
protection, your Port has implemented an
indigenous state-of-the-art Vessel Traffic Service

[VTS) system. This provides:
= Real-time information services
» Proactive navigational assistance

= Coordinated marine traffic management for
all vessels approaching or departing the port.

13.3 Vessel Handling Highlights

Your Port continues to lead with safe, streamlined,
and scalable shipping operations:

» Delivered  seamless  pilotage  and
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berthing servicesthrough skilled marine pilots
and modern navigation support, enabling
quicker tumaround and handling of various
types of large and spedialized vessals.

« Fully adheres to IMO Ballast Water
Management Convention to prevent the
introduction of Invasive aquatic spedies,
reinforcing environmental stewardship.

« Fully compliant with NLP (Sagar Sethu) with
Maritime Single Window {M5W) clearance since
Dec 2022 and progressing toward One Nation
One Port documentation since Jan 2025.

= |nitiated comprehensive digitization of
vessel documentation, improving transparency
and effidency across departments.

o (Collaborated with IMD to Install an
Automatic Weather Station (AWS), enabling
real-time weather monitoring for cyclone and
heavy rainfall preparedness, which will facilitate
timely and accurate waather assessment at the
port.

14.0 PORT SECURITY

Security remains a core priority, with full alignment
to ISPS regulations and DG Shipping compliance:

s Certified ISPS compliance.

= Security audits conducted by DG Shipping In
collaboration with all relevant agencies.

» Quarterly Port Facllity Security Advisory
Committee (PFSAC) meetings ensure continual
review and Improvement.

+ Coordination with all security agencies,
including the Intelligence Bureau (IB), for
sacurity-related information.

= Routine multi-agency security  drills
conducted with CISF, terminal operators, Indian
Navy, Coast Guard, and state authorities.

s Participated in the National Tsunami Mock
Exercise {05 Nov 2024), conducted by TEWC
and NDMA, in observance of World Tsunami
Awareness Day, boosting disaster readiness
and crowd management.

* Port is comprehensively secured with:

<+ Enhanced CCTV survelllance
<+ RDE systems
<+ Baggage scanners

<+ Access control devices
<+  Other security gadgets.
15.0 SURVEY AND DREDGING
15.1 Bathymetry Survey at Kamarajar Port:

Bathymaetric surveys conducted half yearly during
Pre & Post Monsoon fo accurately assess and
monitor seabed levels and underwater topography.
This is essential for ensuring safe vessel navigation,
effective planning of dredging activities, and
maaintaining the declared navigational depths. The
data supports strategic decision-making for port
operations, minimizes navigational risks, ensures
regulatory compliance, and aids In infrastructure
planning and maintenance.

15.2 Shoreline Monltoring Compllance

Shoreline monitoring at Kamarajar Port s
undertaken to observe and assess coastal changes,
eroslon, accaretion patterns, and the overall stability
of the shoreline. Regular monitoring ansures
compliance with regulatory requirements, aids in
the protection of coastal infrastructure, supports
sustainable port operations, and helps in the
early Identification of environmental impacts due
to port activities. It forms a key component of
environmental stewardship and risk management.

15.3 Navigatlonal Chart Updates

The Port recognizes the critical importance of
accurate Navigational and Electronic Navigational
Charts (ENCs) In ensuring maritime safety,
regulatory compliance, and efficient vessel
movemeani. These charts provide vital information
on water depths, navigational aids, seabed features,
and infrastructure, supporting safe navigation and
operational planning. As such, the Port maintains
close coordination with the National Hydrographic
Office (NHO), Dehradun, to ensure timely updates
and amendments to the charts following the
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completion of capital dredging, maintenance
dredging, and other marine infrastructure projects.
Regular updates are essentialdue toboth man-made
changes—such as dredging, construction of berths,
and repaositioning of navigational alds—and natural
factors like siltation and seabed shifts. Updated
charts also support emergency response and are
crucial for vessels equipped with Electronic Chart
Display and Information Systems (ECDIS), which
require the latest ENC data. This practice ensures the
Port remains aligned with international maritime
safety standards and enhances navigational
reliability for all visiting vessels.

15.4 Conventlonal Tidal Data Management

The Port maintains a systematic program for tidal
data collection in cdose coordination with the
Survey of India, Dehradun. Daily monitorad tidal
data sheets are forwarded monthly to the Survey
of India, which utilizes this Information for the
annual preparation of predicted tides published
in the Indian Tide Tables. These tables are crucial
for navigation, harbor development, and ensuring
coastal safety. The tidal data collected also plays a
vital role in the Port’s internal operational planning
and maritime activities.

15.5 Automatic Tide Gauge Monltoring

The Port ensures continuous and systematic
maintenance and recording of tidal data through
the operation of its Automatic Tide Gauge system,
in coordination with the Indian National Centre
for Ocean Information Services (INCOIS), under
the Ministry of Earth Sciences. The realtime data
collected Is vital for Internal operational planning,
navigation safety, infrastructure development,
and supports hydrographic and other maritime
operations. Furthermore, the tidal data is forwarded
monthly to the Indian Navy, National Hydrographic
Office, Dehradun, for national safety and security
related purposes.

15.6 GNSS Installation

A Global Mavigation Satellite System (GNSS)
installation has been established at the Port by
the Indian National Centre for Ocean Information
Services (INCOIS), Ministry of Earth Sciences,
as part of a Pilot Project. This installation
significantly enhances the accuracy and reliability
of hydrographic surveys, tidal observations, and
positioning data. Precise positioning Is critical for
safe navigation, efficient port operations, dredging
activities, and Infrastructure development. The
GNSS setup supports real-time data acquisition and
improves the overall quality of marine and coastal
data management at the Port.

Giobal Navigation Sateflite System

15.7 Malintenance Dredging

The Port has undertaken maintenance dredging at
CB1, CB2 & ECTPL to ensure navigational safety by
maintaining scheduled depths at alongside berths.
To monitor and verify these depths, hydrographic
bathymetric surveys are conducted biannually—
during the pre-monsoon period (March/April) and
the post-monsoon period (September/October).

15.8 Geospatial Mapping

Geospatial mapping of Kamarajar Port waters
has been undertaken to accurately define and
demarcate the waterfront and marine jurisdiction
of the Port. This survey is crucial for establishing
clear port boundaries, supporting regulatory
compliance, and enabling Informed decision-
making in port planning, development, and
resource management. The resulting updated port
limit drawing serves as a foundational reference
for infrastructure expansion, maritime safety, and
coordination with statutory authorities.
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16.0 HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

Your Port is committed to provide a positive safety
culture and safe work environment for its employees
and stakeholders. Health, safety and Environment
practices are being followed with utmost priority to
safeguard their health and safety of every individual
and to maintain sustainable port operations.

Your Port shall meet the requirements of all
applicable legislation and regulations with respect
to matters of occupational health and safety in the
workplace and set an example to all stakeholders
to comply the same in workplace. Further belleves
that health and safety in the workplace is a shared
responsibility and all are expected to adhere and
promote good safety practices.

16.1 Health

On the occasion of Women's day celebrated on 8th
March 2025, your Port has organized Health session
creating awareness related to personal wellness to
women employees and 5SHG women workers by Dr.
Punitha, Rasthriyaa Bal Swasthya Karyakram {RBSK)
coordinator, Thiruvallur District.

To cater to any medical exigencies, your Port is
running an Occupational Health Centre (OHC)
equipped with trained paramedical staff on 24x7
basis along with one medical practitioner in General
shift on all working days. Additionally your Port is
equipped with an Ambulance stationed 24x7 in port
to cater to any first aid requirement to employees
and other stakeholders.

16.2 Safety

Your Port has achieved Zero Fatal incidents and
Zero Lost Time injuries in operations during the
year 2024-25 (excluding terminal operators).

Your Port promotes safety culture at workplace by
way of conducting periodical trainings and drills
to achieve optimum operational excellence. Your
Port had observed National Safety Week and Road
Safety Week to sensitize employees, stakeholders
and Port users on the necessity and importance of
complying safety for a healthy work environment.

Your Port has conducted in-house {training
programmes on Fire fighting for Port users, mock

drills at KPL, BOT operators. Your port actively
participates in mutual aid drills with proximity
industries in oil & gas and thermal power plant
sectors.

Your Port has an approved Disaster Management
Plan & Crisis Management Plan in place for effective
response and actions during any unforeseen
exigencies. Your port is equipped with adeguate
safety equipments which are being maintained as
per standards. The employees and stakeholders of
your port adheres to personal safety and understand
the Importance of procedures that needs to be
followed during exigency situations.

Your port conducts safety audits and follow-up
audits by engaging National Safety Coundll (N5C)
for the berths/terminals/storage facilities handling
non-flammable products as per the directions of
the Ministry of Ports, Shipping & Waterways.

Your Port ensures good practice by analyzing the
near misses/incidents/accidents and implements
the lessons learnt as corrective actions to enhance
the safety culture at workplace to mitigate the risk.

Your Port Is equipped with Tier 1 - Oil Spill Response
equipment in compliance with the requirements
of the National Qil Spill Disaster Contingency
Plan (NO5-DCP) guidelines. Port has fulfilled the
requirements of IMO Level I, Il & 1l trainings as per
National Oil Spill Disaster Contingency Plan [NOS-
DCP) guidelines.

16.3 Environment

Your Port is complying with all the Environmental
Laws applicable and submitting the compliance
reports on the conditions stipulated vide various
Environmental Clearances of Port projects to
MoEFCC, CPCE and TNPCB.

As a part of compliance of MARPOL regulations,
yvour port has fadilitated the reception facilities
under Annexes |, II, IV, V & VI of MARPOL. Port has
empanelled eight nos. of Tamil Nadu Pollution
Control Board approved recyclers for collection and
disposal of ship generated oily wastes.

Your Port is having authorization for the generation,
collection and disposal of Hazardous Wastes.
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Your Port is submitting the annual returns under
Hazardous and Other Wastes (Transboundary
& Management) Rules, 2016 for the quantity of
hazardous wastes handled during the preceding
year.

Your Port Is Interested in the creation of circular
economy and is following the Reduce Reuse &
Recycle (RRR) principle for the sustainable Port
operations. Your Port had banned Single Use Plastics
inside the Port and the other solid wastes collected
from the ships and various locations inside the Port
areas are segregated Into different categories and
sent to Pollution Control Board approved re-cyclers
for further beneficial use.

Your Port has Installed organic waste converter
inside its premises through which the Port and ship
generated organic/food wastes are treated and
used as manure for the green belt.

Your Port continuously endeavors to sustain an eco-
friendly and green port. Port has engaged M/s. Nitya
Laboratories, a NABL accredited and MoEF&CC
recognized laboratory for sampling and testing of
various environmental parameters like ambient air
guality, ambient nolse levels, marine water quality,
surface water quality, ground water quality, and 5TP
outlet water quality.

Your Port ensures that the BOT operators inside
the Port are also monitoring the environment
in their respective terminals. The environmental
quality reports are regularly submitted to the State
Pollution Control Board. All the environmental
parameters including air quality levels are being
maintained well within the limits prescribed by
Central Pollution Control Board.

Your Port had installed 3nos. of continuous ambient
air quality monitoring stations at main gate, signal
station and general cargo berth areas and the data
is synchronized with the servers of CPCE and TNPCB
for realtime monitoring.

Your Port had obtained Environmental & CRZ
Clearances for augmenting the Coal handling
capacity at Ennore Coal Terminal Pvi. Ltd. from
the existing 9.6 MTPA to 11 MTPA to cater to the
Iincreasing Coal demand.

Your Port had obtained Environmental & CRZ
Clearances for a change In cargo profile to handle
additional commeodities in Ennore Bulk Terminal
Pvt. Lid., which will enable better service flexibility
and operational capadity.

Your Port had obtained Terms of reference from
Ministry of Environment, Forests and Cimate
Change for Increasing the capacity of existing
operational Marine Liquid Terminal from 3 Million
Tons Per Annum to & Million Tons Per Annum.

Your Port along with the BOT Operators installed
renewable energy (solar power) of 1.320MW and
drawing 50% of its captive usage from renewable
energy.

Your port and BOT operators had Installed 113
KLD capacity Sewage Treatment Plants in thair
respective premises. Your Port is interested in
Zero Liquid Discharge (ZLD) principle and reuse of
recycled water.

As part of reduction In ship generated emission
levels, your Port is already providing shore power
supply to the harbor crafts when they are idle
and thereby reducing the emissions. Your Port
has completed the installation of shore power
supply facility at Coal Berths 1 & 2 and about to
commission. Your port had electrified 80% of the
cargo handling equipment thereby reducing the
emissions considerably.

Your port had introduced 6 numbers of e-vehicles
inside the port area in order to reduce the carbon
footprint. The e-vehicles deployed at Port are
used for intercarting of manpower, solid waste
management etc., Apart from this, 24nos. ITVs used
in the Container Terminal are fully electrified. Port
had developed 5nos. of e-charging stations inside
its premises aligning with the targets of Ministry of
Ports, Shipping & Waterways.

Your Port had replaced all the electrical appliances
with high rated appliances to reduce the power
consumption.

Your Port had carried out Environmental & Water
Audits for all its operational areas including BOT
Terminals through National Productivity Council.
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Your Port had observed World Environment Day on
5th June 2024, As a part of this, various awarenass
activities were conducted. Plantation of tree
sampling was carried out in the alongside two lane
concrete road In a massive way by engaging various
stakeholders.

17.0 DISCLOSURE UNDER THE  SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 AND WOMEN
EMPOWERMENT

The provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 have been implemented in the
Company with the aim of providing protection to
women against sexual harassment at workplace and
for prevention and redressal of complaints. There
are no complaints of sexual harassment received
during the year. Hence there are no complaints
disposed/pending for more than ninety days.

The Company has also complied with the provisions
of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, ensuring
statutory entitlements to eligible employees.

As on 31st March 2025, there are a total of 18
women employees on Company's roll, of whom 3%
are in staff cadre and 16% are in officers cadre. To
commemeorate the 50th International Women's Day,
a week long program was conducted honouring
its women employees with range of initiatives for
women empowerment.

18.0 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company as a responsible Corporate citizen
has undertaken projects in line with adopted CSR
Policy and Companies Act, 2013. CSR Annual Report
containing the requisite disclosures relating to
composition of the CSR cormmittee, CSR policy and
initiatives taken during the year are enclosed as
Annexure - | and forms part of the Board's Report.

19.0 PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY

The Ministry of Mico, Small and Medium
Enterprises has notified Public Procurement Policy.
Your Company has procured 2687% of annual
value of goods and services from Micro and Small

Enterprises (including MSE's owned by SC/5T and
women Entreprenaurs).

20.0 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has adopted Risk Management
Policy to provide a framework to identify, assess
and manage potential risks and opportunities
for managers to make Informed management
decisions. Some of the objectives of a Risk
Management Framework are given below:

#  Afocused approach in identifying the obstacles
& managing them to help the Organization
perform better.

» Introduce a structured risk management
initiative across the Organization to identify
potential risks that may adversely affect the
objectives of the Organization and plan for
their mitigation with specific responsibilities
assigned.

Improve strategic decision making.
Improve business performance.

Reduce operational surprises and losses.
Improve deployment of capital.

Provide a sound basis for integrated risk
management and Internal control as
components of good corporate govemnance;

The risks are identified, evaluated and mitigating
plans are reviewed and monitored from time to
time,

271.0 WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company has put in place a "Whistle Blower
Policy” for employees to report to the management
instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Companys Code of
Conduct and Ethics by adopting highest standards
of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behavior. No complaints which will come under the
purview of the Policy have been received during
the year. The Whistie Blower Policy has been hosted
on the website of your Company http://www.
kamarajarport.in/upload/uploadfiles/files/
blower.pdf.

22.0 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

LA A S A 4
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Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
formulated a policy on appointment of Directors,
remuneration of Directors, other employees
including Key Managerial Personnel. The Nomination
and Rermuneration Policy is available in the weblink
https://kamarajarport.in/upload/uploadfiles/
files/Nomination_RemunerationPolicy.pdf

23.0 RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company is complying with the Right to
Information Act, 2005 and has designated a Public
Information Officer, and an Appellate Authority
to look after the compliances of RTI Act, 2005. The
information required to be provided as per Section
4(1)(b) of the Right to Information Act, 2005 has
been postad on the website of the Company www.
kamarajarportin. 42 applications and one appeal
received during the year were disposed off within the
stipulated time.

24.0 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Your Company continues to remain at the forefront
of technology adoption, leveraging digital tools to
enhance business process effidency and deliver
greater value. In alignment with the Government
of India’s digital transformation initiatives, multiple
IT-driven projects have been Implemented to
streamline internal operations and Improve
stakeholder services. During the year, SAP systems
maintained an uptime exceeding 29.5%, ensuring
high availability of critical business applications.

To further enhance operational efficiency, your
Company has embraced cutting-edge technologies
such as Mendix, a SAP-certified No Code/Low Code
Application Development Platform. Key applications
developed using this platform include:

(I} PortOperating System (POS5)

An Internal application designed to plan, monitor,
and manage all marine and cargo operational
activities. POS is integrated with the Sagar Setu
{NLP-M) platform, enabling seamless data exchange
with external stakeholders such as shipping agents,
lines, and customs brokers.

(II} Business Interface Portal (BIP)

A customer-facing portal providing access to tax
invoices, account summaries, gate-in/gate-out
applications, service feedback, and more.

(i) Other Appilcations

In addition, your Company has launched several
other digital initiatives using the Mendix platform,
induding:

Vigilance  Complaint Management  System
for enhanced ftransparency and stakeholder
convenience, Extended Employee 5elf-Service (EESS)
Application for the employees of the Company,
Capex Project Monitoring & Progress Management
System, Pass Issuance System & Mobile Application
for broader user access.

Looking ahead, your Company has planned the
following major IT initiatives in the next FY25-26:

24.1 Major IT initlatives for FY 2025-26

(Il Migration to ‘Rise with SAP’

Transition of the SAP environment to a private
cloud Infrastructure. Disaster Recovery (DR)
setup is already operational, with the production
environment targeted for completion by Q4 of FY
2025-26.

(I} Integrated Command & Control Centre
(ICCC)

A comprehensive monitoring and management
hub covering:

(I} Video Management - CCTV Feed

(i} Security Management through Video Analytics

(iiil Monitoring of Electricity Distribution & Smart
Street Lights

{iv)] Monitoring of Drinking Water Distribution

(v} Solid Waste Management

{vl) Public Addressing System

(vii) Disaster Management & Emergency Response
(viii) Drone based Survey & Mapping of Assets in GIS
(ix) Integration of existing Systems:

a. Continuous Ambient Alr Quality Monitoring
Stations.

b. Vessel Traffic Management System (VTMS)
. Permit & Gate System

Your Company has awarded the contract for
development of ICCC to M/s IT1 Lid {a CPSE), the ICCC
is expected to be fully operational by Q2 of FY 2025-
26 and will significantly enhance administrative
oversight, situational awareness, and overall port
security.
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25.0 IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

Your Company has made intensive efforts for the
propagation and implementation of the offcial
language policy of the Government of India.

#  Dfficial Language Implementation Committee
meeting headed by MD was held every quarter
for effective implementation of Rajbhasha.

> Ali the Rules / Regulations / Manuals / Forms
done In bilingual.

# Al the rubber stamps, sign boards, seals,
lettarheads, Name plates, official descriptionon
vehicdles, visiting cards, etc. done in bi-lingual.

#  Resolutions are done in bi-lingual.

#  Hindi workshops were conducted every quarter
to give wide publicity on progressive use of
Hindi.

#» The Deputy Director (Hindi) and Senior
Translation Officer from the Ministry inspected
the implementation of the Official Language at
KPL on 21.11.2024 and appreciated the efforts
being undertaken.

25.1 Hindl Fortnight Celebrations

The Port celebrated Hindi Day as a fortnight from
27th August 2024 to 9th September 2024. A joint
Hindi workshop was also organized by Kamarajar
Port Limited and Chennal Port Authority on 27th
August 2024 in Chennal Port Authority to mark
the occasion of Hindi Fortnight Celebrations. Mrs.
Santoshi, Professor of Dakshin Hindi Prachar Sabha
was the Chief Guest. It was Inaugurated by Mr.
Idranil Hajra, Secretary, Chennal Port Authority.

J I!= S = = L=
Hindi Workshop organized joinly by KPL and ChPA
Hindi Fortnight ended with the organization of

*Hindl Day” on 9th September 2024. Mrs. V. Rajni,
Assistant Director, Hindi Education Scheme, Ministry

of Home Affairs, Chennal was present as the Chief
Guest in the programme.

shri sunil Paliwal, LAS. during his presidential
speach, said that Hindi has been established as the

most simple and accessible language and language
of communication In this country.

Mrs. J. P. Irene Cynthia, IAS, Managing Director,
Kamarajar Port Limited, in her address emphasized
the need to make progressive use of Hindi in the
official work.

Later Mrs. V. Rajni, while presiding over the program,
congratulated everyone on Hindi Day and said that
Hindi is our official language and we should try to
make it the national language.

Competitions like singing, newspaper reading, one
minute speach in Hindi were held for the employees
from 27th August to 9th September 2024 and prizes
were awarded to the winners during the Hindi Day
function by the Chief Guest.

Chief Guest Mrs. V. Ragni, Assistant Director, Hindy Education
Scheme Ministry of Home Affairs

26.0 DETAILS OF DIRECTORS ORKEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE
RESIGNED/CEASED DURING THE YEAR AND
TILLTHE DATE OF REPORT

26.1 Directors

During the year, the Members approved the
following appointment and re-appointment of
Directors:

»  Appointment of Shri R.M. Narayanan (DIN:
02853368) as Independent Director in place
of Shri. VM.V Subba Rao, (DIN: 02435597) for a
term of 3 years w.ef 13.11.2024.

Appointment of Shri Sunil Paliwal, [AS
(DIN:01310101), who refires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.
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26.2 Key Managerlal Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act,
Smit. J.P Irene Cynthia, L.A.S., Managing Director, Smi.
Jayalakshmi Srinivasan, Company Secretary and
smt. Kavita Satvi, Chief Anancial Officer are the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 31st
March 2025.

Shri C5. Vemanna was appointed as Chief Financial
Officer (In-charge) by the Board of Directors in the
intervening period from 26.05.2025 to 08.06.2025
due to absence of SmiKavita Satvi on medical
grounds. Smt. Kavita Satvi was re-appointed as Chief
Financial Officer w.ef. 09th June 2025.

smt. Jayalakshmi Srinivasan, Company Secretary
superannuated on 30th April 2025 and consequently
ceased to be Company Secetary of the Company
w.ef. the sald date. The Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 26th May 2025 appointed Smt. R.
Roopa as the Company Secretary with effect from
the date of her joining. Smt. R. Roopa took charge as
Company Secretary w.ef. afternoon of 07th July 2025.

26.3 Directors Liable to Retlre by Rotation:

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
shri Sunil Paliwal, LAS., [DIN: 01310101) Is liable to
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
meeting and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment. His brief Resume along with other
requirements is annexed to the Notice of the 25th
Annual General Meeting.
26.4 Detalls of Meetings of the Board/Committees
and Composition
The Board Is assisted by Board Level Committees.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to all the Board Level Committee(s). The details
of Meetings of the Board/Committee and their
compositicn are given in the Corporate Governance
Report that forms part of this Annual Report. All the
recommendations of the Committees have been
accepted by the Board.

26.5 Annual Evaluation

In terms of Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act,
2013, annual evaluation of the individual Directors,
performance ofthe Board asa whole, its Committees
was carmried out by the Directors by drculating an
evaluation criteria questionnaire to all the Directors
on various parameters like level of participation and
devotion of enough time.

27.0 DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company has received necessary Declaration
from each of the Independent Directors of the
Company during the year conforming that they
meet the aiterla of Independence as prescribed
under 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations 2015.

28.0 VIGILANCE

Shri 5.Murall Krishnan, IDAS, Chief Vigilance Officer,
Chennal Port Authority Is helding additional charge
of CVO, Kamarajar Port Limited with effect from
2504.2022. VO is assisted by a Manager from
Planning Department.

The Vigilance Division scrutinizes the documents
with respect to the work contract executed by the
departments. Procedural lapses, deviations from
tendering norms and shortcomings in contract works
are pointed out to the concermned departments for
corrective actions and system improvements. The
recovery of money is also advised in fitting cases.
The CVC guidelines/notifications are dirculated to
the departments. The Annual Immovable Property
Returns submitted by the officers of KPL are
scrutinized by the Vigilance Division. Clarifications
are sought for the abnormalities, if any, from the
concemed officers/staff. The Audit reports are
studied at Vigilance Division and departments ara
advised to take necessary corrective action, wherever
required.

A dedicated Online Complaint Management Portal
[CMP) has been launched during May 2024 for dealing
with vigilance related complaints.

28.1 Vigllance Awareness Week, 2024

Vigilance Awareness Week 2024 was observed in
Kamarajar Port Limited from 28th October 2024
to 3rd Novemnber 2024 with the theme "Culture of
Integrity for Nation's Prosperity”.

Various outreach activities like conducting
workshops, walkathon, competitions to school and
college students, staffs, Special Guest Lecturing on
Valedictory function and other vigilance awarenass
activities were carried out. Workshop conducted for
the topic of Vigilance some insights and Disciplinary
Proceedings by Shri V. Subramanyam, Principal
Chief Materials Manager (Retd), Southern Railways
on 21.10.2024.
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Vigitance Pledge admimnistered to school and college students -
Training programs on Ethics and Governance, Cyber

Hygiene and Security, Procurement and Disciplinary
proceedings were conducted at Chennal Port for
Port employees.
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Vigilance Awareness Week 2024

28.2 Adoption of Integrity Pact

The Central Vigilance Commission has been
promoting Integrity, transparency, equity and
competitiveness in Government/PSU transactions
as a part of vigilance administration and
superintendence. Public procurement is a major
area of concern for the Central Vigilance Commission
and various steps have been taken to put proper
systems In place.

The Commission has recommended adoption
of Integrity Pact and provided basic guidelines
for its Implementation In respect of major
procurements In the Government Organizations.
Further the Commission has recommended for the
appointment of Independent External Monitors
{IEMs) for implementation of Integrity Pact and also
advised the organizations to fix a threshold value for
tha contracts/ procurement which are to be brought
under the Integrity Pact.

The KPL Board has approved the Vigilance
department’s proposal of Integrity Pact in the Board
Meeting held on 21.02.2015. The threshold value

for contracts/ procurement to be covered under
Integrity Pact has been fixed as Rs.1 Crore and
above. CVC has appointed the following two new
IEMs for implementing the Integrity Pact in KPL on
25.06.2024.

1. Shri. Jatinderbir Singh, IAS (Retd).
2. Shri. Muvvala Kondala Rao, IFos (Retd)

Integrity Pact covers all phases of the contract i.e.
from the stage of Motice Inviting Tender (NIT) till
the conclusion of the contract. All the Departments
were advised to incorporate Integrity Pact clause
in the tender documents for works/procurements
having threshold value of Rs.1 Crore.

28.3 IEM's review meeting:

As per CVC's SOP, review meetings are being

conducted every quarter by Inviting stake holders

of KPL. For FY 2024-25, 3 IEM's Review mestings
were conducted on 12.06.2024, 25.00.2024 and

03.01.2025. During the meeting, IEMs resolve

the issues raised by the contractors/vendors/

Consultants, if any, within the purview of IEMs.

29.0 NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME
OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
DURINGTHE YEAR

During the year, no Company has become or ceased
to be its Subsidiary, loint Venture or Associate
Company.

30.0 DIRECTORS  RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors state that:-

(3l In the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

(b} Thedirectors had selected such accounting policies
and applled them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit of the Company for that period;

{c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;
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(d} The directors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concermn basls;

{2} The directors had lald down intemal finandal
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively,

{f) Thedirectors had devisad proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

31.0 DISCLOSURE AS PER SECTION 197 OF THE

COMPANIES ACT AND THE REQUIREMENTS
OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

The requisite details pursuant to Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rulas, 2014, forms part of Board's Report
and is Annexed to this Report as Annexure - 11.

32.0 AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 132 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Compiroller & Auditor
General of India, New Delhi has appointed M/s.
Jasminder Singh & Assodiates, Chartered Accountants
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for auditing the
books of accounts of the Company for the period ended
31st March 2025.

32.1 Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditor of the Company, M/s. Jasminder
Singh & Assoclates, Charterad Accountants, have given
an ungualified report on the accounts of the Company
for the finandial year 2024-25. The Emphasis of mattars
and Notes on financial statement referred to in the
Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments.

33.2 Review of Accounts by Comptroller and
Auditor General of Indla

The comments of C & AG under Section 143 (6} (b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of the
Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 and replies of
the management thereto are attached as Annexure
to the Board's Report and will form part of this report.

33.0 SECRETARIAL AUDIT

M/s. 5. Dhanapal & Associates, Practicing Company

Secretaries was appointed to conduct Secretarial Audit

of your Company for the financial year 2024-25. The

secretarial Auditor's have given an unqualified report

and the report is enclosed as Annexure - .

34.0 SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed
by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status and Company's operations
in future.

35.0 ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the
Companles Act, 2013, the Annual Return is available
in the following link http://www.kamarajarport.in/
content/Innerpage/annual-return.php

36.0 DEEENTURE TRUSTEE

Your Company had appointed M/s. SBICAP Trustees
Company Litd. and M/s. Catalyst Trusteeship Lid.
{formeriy known as GDA Trusteeship Ltd.) as Debenture
Trustees for Tax Free Bonds issued during the financial
years 2012-13 and 2013-14 respectively. The contact
details of the Debenture Trustees are given below:-

Debenture Trustees
SBICAP Trustee Company Ltd, | Catalyst Trusteeship
Mistry Bhavan, 4th Floor, Limited,
122, Dinshaw Vachha Road, G DA House, Plot No.85,
Churchgate, Bhusari Colony {Right),
Mumbai — 400 020. Paud Road, Kothrud,
Ph: 022-43025555 Pune — 411 038
Fam: 022 - 43025500 Ph: 020 - 66807200

37.0 REPORT ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)
{m) of the Companies Act, 2013 information regarding
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo Is enclosed
as Annexure - IV to this report.

3B8.0 REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A voluntary report on Corporate Governance for
the year ended 31st March 2024 is enclosad as
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Annexure -V to this report.
38.1 Secretarlal Standards

Your Company has complied with the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of
Directors (55-1) and Secretarial 5Standards on General
Meetings (55-2).

39.0 COST RECORDS

The Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

40.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to place on record their
gratitude for the support and guidance received
from the Ministry of Ports, Shipping and Waterways,
Government of India and Chennal Port Authority
and appreciates the co-operation received from
TNPGCL/TNEB, NTECL, IQCL, TNPCB, GoTN and Gol,
particularly the Ministry of Environment, Forest and
Climate Change, Ministry of Finance, Indian Railways/
Southern Railways and Indian Port Association.

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the continued

Place: Chennai
Date : 13.08.2025

support and cooperation received from the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India, Statutory
Auditors, Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditor.
Last but not the least, your Directors thank the Port
Users, BOT Concesslonaires, Contractors and Bankers
for their continued support and assistance and wish
to place on record their apprediation of the continued
excellent work done by all the employees of the
Company during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamara)ar Port Limited

Sd/-
sunll Paliwal, LA.S.,
Chalrman
(DIN:01310101)
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Annexure-|

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) & Rules made thereunder]

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

KPL consistently strives to meet the expectations of the society by supporting initiatives for improving
infrastructure/ quality of life of society / community without compromising on ecological issues on
sustainable basis consistent with the provisions of the CSR Rules published by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013; Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

KPL, as a socially responsible Corporate Port endeavors to-

= promote and leverage green technologies to produce goods and services that contribute to social and
environmental sustainability.

= take up on priority, CSR projects which are in the National Development agenda like safe drinking
water, provision of Toilets espedially for girls, health and sanitation, education, etc, with the main
focus to address the basic needs of the deprived, under privileged and are in line with CSR rules and
the policy directions issued by the Government from time to time.

Compaosition of CSR Committee (as on 31.03.2025)

Sialiicaf Number of
- wpy : Meetings of CSR Mutmgs‘ni
Sl.No. | Name of the Director | Designation/Nature of Directorship z CSR Commiittee
Committee held ded duri
during the year atten uring
the year
1 | Shri Sunil Pafiwal Chlluiies K18 Chisinnan; b C58 4
Committee
2 | 5mt. JPirene Cynthia | MD, KPL & Member of CSR Committee 4 4
3 |ShiiS. Viswanathan Nmnln!ee Director & Member of C5R 4
Committee
. Non Official Independent Director &
4 | Shri R.M. Narayanan Moiibir of CSR Connitbog 2 2
5 Capt. Anocop Kumar|Non Offidal Independent Director & 4 4
Sharma Member of C5R Committee
z . |Non Official Independent Director &
6 | ShriV.MV. Subba Rao Wb of OO Coseiiibtisss i 2

* Shri V.M.V, 5ubba Rao, ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f. 05.11.2024 and Shri R.M.Narayanan was inducted
asamember w.af 13.11.2024

Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

Composition of CSR Committee link: http://www kamarajarportin/content/innerpage/board-level-committee.php
(SR Policy Link: https://kamarajarportin/upload/uploadfles/files/csr_Policy_Revised 26072021 pdf
CSR Projects Link : http://www.kamarajarport.in/content/innerpage/corporate-social-responsibility-csr.php

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carrled out In pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, If applicable: Not Applicable

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 : Rs.62752.11 lakhs

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:

Rs.1255.05 lakhs
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{c} Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years: NIL
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [{b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs.12,55,04,208/-
6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) :
Rs. 7,43 87, 168.00/- (exclusive of GST under RCM)

(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: NIL

(] Amountspent on impact Assessment, if applicable: Rs.1,24,254/ -

{d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [{a)+(b)+{c)]: Rs.7,45,11,422/- (exclusive of GST under RCM}
{e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (inRs.)
Total A tSpant for Tuhlmt:smmmﬁ;rtm hm“ﬁt:;muhmdtuwfum;?aﬂﬂi‘;d[;duh
the Financial Year (in Rs.) per Section ﬂﬂ:““"’“’ BROVISn I JEChOn
Amount Name Amount
(nRs.) Date of transfer fundl (InRs) Date of transfer
Rs.74511422/- 5,00.92 T86/- 30.04.2025 NA NA NA
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any
Amount
sk No. Particulars (Rs.)
(1) (2) 3)
{n Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) 5
of saction 135 235012080/
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 74511422/
{11} Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [{ii)-(I)] 0.00
(iv) Surplus arising out of the C5R projects or programmes or activities of the 0.00
previous Financial Years, if any :
(v} Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(1il}-{iv]] 0.00

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Year.

Amount transferred to a
Amount Balance Amount Fund as specified under Amount
transferredto | InUnspentCSR |  Amount Schedule Vil as per second remaining to Deficiancy
sl Freceding Unspent CSR Account under | Spent in the provisa to sub-section (5) of be spent in WFany -
Mo | Finandal Yearis) Account under | sub-sectlon{6) | Flnandal section 135, if any succeeding
sub-section (6) of | of section 135 | Year(InRs) ‘ e Financial
section 135 in Rs.) fin Rs.) M'Ihmﬂﬂ 9% | Years(infs)
1 FY-2021-22 1,49,70.952/- 0 0 MNA NA ] 0
2 Fy-2022-23 3.88,19.827/- 0 0 MNA NA ] 0
3 FY-2023- 24) 510,79 560/ 3,10,79,560/- | 4.76,96.860/- NA NA 33.82.700/- 0
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year: No

if yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NA

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NA

Short particulars of the
property or asset(s) Pincode of the Detalls of entity/Authority/
:I'n [including complete address property or Ditn"nl MI:[PE': beneficlary of the registered owner
and location of the property] asset(s)
1 2) )] 14) {51 (6)
CSR Registration :

Nurrber, if Name Hig';taw
applicable i

NA MNA NA NA MA MA NA NA

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
sub-section (5) of section 135.

Not applicable, because the money has been transferred to unspent CSR account for ongoing projects.

sd/- Sd/-
Smt. LP. Irene Cynthia, LA.S Shri Sunil Paliwal, LA.S.
(Managing Director) {Chairman, CSR Committee)]




1.

2.

3.

Ei-

25" ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Annexure-li

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The ratlo of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year: See Note,

The percentage Increase In remuneration of each director, Chief Financlal Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, If any, In the financlal year

Sk.No. Name Percentage

1. | Shri Sunil Paliwal - Chairman Sea Note#
2. | Smt. LPIrene Cynthia - MD 44 73%*
2. | S5mt Kavita Satvi, CFO -0.40%
3. | Smt Jayalakshmi Srinivasan, C5 2.90%

The percentage Increase in the medlan remuneration of employees In the financlal year

_I cY PY Percentage
‘Median Remuneration '- 15357837 136442963 | 102%

The number of permanent employeas on the rolls of company:
The total number of permanent employeas on the rolls of the company as on 31st March 2025 is 92

Average percentile Increase already made In the salarles of employees other than the managerial
personnel In the last financlal year and its comparison with the percentlle Increase In the managerial
remuneration and Justification thereof and point out If there are any exceptional circumstances for
Increase In the managerlal remuneration.

Average percentage increase In remuneration inciuding key managerial personnel during the finandial
year has been in the range of (5)-{10)%. As per the policy of the Company, the annual increment In basic
pay of the employees of the Company Is 3%. The Dearness Allowance is increased as per Government
rules. Further the Performance related payments are paid as per the applicable rules depending on the
performance of the Company during the relevant year.

Affirmation that the remuneration Is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
The remuneration to all employees of the Company is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The particulars for the year 2024-25 as required to be disclosed under Rule 5{2) of the Ccompanles
{appolntment an recruitment of Managerlal Personnel) Rules 2014.

Mo employee earned beyond the limits prescribed therein.

Note: & Pursuant to Shei. Sunil Paliwal assuming charge as Chairman of Chennai Port Authority, no remuneration
is being paid to him w.e.f 10.11.2021. Consequently, ratio/ percentage cannot be determined.

®  As Managing Director had joined onfy on 21.08.2023, only a part of the salary was received last year. Hence
the difference in percentage.
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Top Ten Employees in terms of remuneration drawn ason 31.03.2025

Name & Remuneration Date of . Last
3 i recaived Qualifications & Experience | ©Ommencemant | Age | employment
SN Designation (Rs.) of employment held
1. | ShriGM. Balan, 47 90,395/~ B.5C Physics & 16-08-2013 52 | LP Logistics Pvt.
zeneral Manager (Marine Master — FG with 29 years of Ltd
Services) EXpPErience in
VArous capacties.
3 | Smt 1 Pirene Cynithia, 44 34 3B/ MBA (Fnance) with 17 years of 21-08-2023 42 | All India Services
| Managing Director eXperience in Varous capacities.
3. | Shri C.5. Vemanna, 4409 587/- B COM, AICWAL Dip in Fisheries 05-03-2012 57 | IOCL
Deputy General Manager Tech & Mavigation Engg & MBA
{Finance) with 33 years of experience in
various capacities.
| Shri S.P. Desikamani, i West Asia
4 | Chief Manazer 42,48 295/- 5“ :';:‘Z’ Fawith3lyearsof | 5 542018 54 | Maritime
(Dock hMaster) Pe Limited
5 | Subramanian Mageswaran | 40,18 048/ Master FG with 19 years of 02-05-2018 54 | Wallem Ship
Chief Manager{Dock EXpErience Management
Master}
& | Shri A Karuppiah Deputy 38,83,058/- B.E(Civil) & M.Tech 01-02-2007 58 | Chennai Port
General Manager (Civil) (Ocean Engineering) with 27 Authority
years of experience
7 | Shiri Mirbhik Singh Puar, 38,12,541/- Master FG with 21 years of 01-08-2018 50 | Hapag Uoyd Pyt
Senior Manager [Pilot) EXpErience Ltd.
& | Shri Yatin Kishorbhai Patel, | 3728 048"~ B.5c | Chemistry), MBA 07-08-2023 48 | Tamilnadu
zeneral Manager (C5&BD (Marketing), with 24 years Industrial
of expenence in Business Development
Development & Supply Chain Corporation
Management
9 | Shri C. Uma Shankar, 3708148/~ B.E.(Mechanical)/ Master FG 02-05-2018 57 | DPWorld
Deputy General Manager with 32 years of Chennai
{Marine Services) EXPETIENCe. Container
Terminal
10 | Shri POm Pragesh, 36,46 652/~ B.Com, MBA, PGDM(PM) with 30 25-02-2002 52 | Central
Chief Manager (Traffic) years of expenence Government,
Ministry of
Shipping
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Annexure-lll

Suite Na. 103, Frst Floor, Kaveri Complex Mo, 36/104, Nungambakkam High Road

{Next to NABARD &ICKC1 Bank), Nungambakkam, Chennai-600 034

PhoneMo.044-4553 0256, 4553 0257/4265 2127
E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com, website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries
LLPIN ACB - 0368

(Regd. with Limited Liability Under the LLP Act, 2008)

Deslgnated Partners:
5. Dhanapal, B.Com, BABL, FCS
M. Ramanathan, B.Com., F.CS

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to sectlon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companles
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerlal Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Kamarajar Port Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s.
KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED, (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted based
on records made available to us, in @ manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion/ understanding thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's Books,
Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed
and Other Records maintained by the Company
and made available to us and also the information
provided by the Company, Its Officers, Agents and
Authorized Representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we, on strength of those records,
and information so provided, hereby report that
in our opinion and understandings, the Company,
during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2025, appears to have complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also in our limited review, the Company has proper
and required Board processes and compliance

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minutes'
Book, Forms and Returns filed and Other Records
maintained by the Company and made available to
us, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025
according to the applicable provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder as applicable;

iy The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
("SCRA" and the rules made thereunder:

iy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Forelgn Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
therules and regulations made thereunder tothe
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings to the applicable extent.

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and exchange
Board of India Act, 1992("SEBI ACT’) as applicable
during the year:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
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Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Issue of Capital And Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits}) Regulations,
2014:

g] The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

fi The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Delisting of Equity Shares) Requlations, 2021;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018.

vi) Acts, Rules and Regulations relating
to Port Management as Iidentified by the
Management and communicated fo  us

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of india with respect
to Meetings of Board of Directors (55-1) and
General Meetings (55-2), and

ii} The Listing Agreement entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company
has complied in accordance with the
requirements to be met with the applicable
provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to
the required extent.

It is represented to us that the Company

has initiated measures, wherever required,
to address issues raised by the Statutory
Authorities and Letters/ Notices received by
the Company during the financial year under
various enactments as applicable to the
Company.

We further report that, subject to the above,
the related documents that we have come
across depict that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is
constituted as applicable with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors and the changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and
detailed notes on Agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the
dissenting members' views, if any, are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes, if any.

We further report that the accounts of the
associate company, M/s Kanniyakumari Port
Limited (KKPL) has not been consolidated
with that of the Company since the Company
does not have control over KKPL Management
and hence, its financial statements are not
required to be consolidated as perind As-110-
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Wefurtherreport that the Company isin process
of transferring unclaimed amount relating to
Interest on Bonds to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

We further report that based on our
limited review of the compliance mechanism
established by the Company, there appear
adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and
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ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules,
Requlations and Guidelines.

We further report that during the year, the
Company has not sought the approval of its
members for any special business in the Annual
General Meeting.

We further report that our Audit was subjected
only to verifying adequacy of systems and
procedures that are in place for ensuring proper
compliance by the Company and we are not
responsible for any lapses in those compliances
on the part of the Company. Compliance with
provisions of applicable laws which have been

Place : Chennai
Date: 13.08.2025

subject to other audits/reviews and Acts, Rules
and Regulations relating to Port Management
asidentified by the Management have not been
independently reviewed by us and the audit /
compliance reports as placed before the Board
and made available to us have been relied upon
in rendering this report.

We further report that we have conducted the
Secretarial Audit wherever required through
online verification and examination of records,
as requested and facilitated by the Company,
for the purpose of issuing this Report.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP
(Practicing Company Secretaries)
{Firm Regn. No. L2023TNO14200)

LLPIN: ACB 0368

sd/-

RAMANATHAN NACHIAPPAN
(DESIGNATED PARTMNER)

FCS. 6665

CPNO. 11084

PEER REVIEW CERTIFICATE NO.T107,/2021
UDIN : FO06665G000988701

This Reportis to be read with our testimony of even date which Is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral

part of this report.




KAMARAIAR PORT LIMITED

To
The Members,
KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Chennai

Auditor’s responsibility

Based on audit, our responsibility Is to express an
opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws
and maintenance of records by the Company. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards C5AS 1 to CSAS 4 ("CSAS") prescribed by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India ("ICSI™).
These standards require that the auditor complies
with statutory and regulatory requirements and
plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about compliance with applicable laws
and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including
internal, finandal and operating controls, there is
an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or
material non-compliances may not be detected,
even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with the CSAS. Our report
of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

Place : Chennai
Date: 13.08.2025

Annexure-A

We have followed the audit practices
and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that comect facts are reflected
in secretarial records. We belisve that the
processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the comrectness and
appropriateness of financial records, financial
statements and Books of Accounts of the
company and for which we relied on the
report of statutory auditor.

Where ever required, we have obtained
the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of
Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
requlations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Qur examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither
an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP
(Practicing Company Secretaries)
(Firm Regn. No. L2023TND14200)

LLPIN: ACB 0368

Sd/-

RAMANATHAN NACHIAPPAN
(DESIGMNATED PARTMER)

FCS. 6665

CP NO. 11084

PEER REVIEW CERTIFICATE NO.1107/2021
UDIN : FO06665GO0008E701
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Annexure-lV

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULE, 2014

A)
n

(a)

(b)

Conservatlon of Energy:

steps taken or Impact on conservation of
energy:

For effective utilization of electrical energy,
Energy Audit was conducted by M/s. Greenserve
Energy and audit report was obtained during
June-2020. Following engrgy conservation
measures were recommended by the auditor:

Arresting of Air conditioner duct leakages inside
false ceiling in both 2nd and 3rd floor of Jawahar
Building at Registered and Corporate Office.

installing of occupancy sensor in toilet and
board rooms and motion sensor in pathway
of chairman corridor and other walkways
to improve the operational effectiveness of
lighting.

Installation of additional 40KW new solar power
plant in signal station and renovation of existing
storage system.

Installing new substation near signal station to
help in reduction of distribution losses.

Action taken on the recommendations Is
provided below:

Arresting of Air conditioner duct leakages inside
false ceiling in both 2nd and 3rd floor of Jawahar
Building at Registered and Corporate Office was
carried out during September 2020.

The existing storage system of 20KW Solar
Power Plant installed at signal station has been
renovated at the cost of Rs.5,20,360/- during
October - 2022.

A new 11KV/433V substation near signal station
installed and commissioned during March 2025
at the cost of Rs.3.97 Crore.

installation of occupancy sensor in toilet and
board rooms and motion sensor in pathway
of chairman corridor and other walkways to
improve the operational effectiveness of lighting
is not being considered for implementation

as it will not conserve considerable amount of
energy vis a vis implementation cost.

To ensure effective utilization of electrical
energy, Energy Audit was conducted by
M/sEES Audit Managements, Coimbatore
during April 2025 and final report is awaited.

Impacts

¥ OV WY ¥ ¥

Reduce carbon footprint.
Significantly reduce utility bills.
Protect the environment.

Energy Efficient.

Prolong the existence of fossil fuels.
Reduce distribution losses.

() steps taken by the Company for utllizing

alternate sources of energy:

Around 37800 KWh (Units) of power generated
through Diesel Generator and around 3,99,918
KWh (Units) of power generated through solar
has been utilized during the year 2024-2025.

(lll) Capltal Investment on energy conservation

equipments:

Bs.3.97 Crore for installation of new substation
near Signal Station

B) Technology Absorption;

h

Efforts made towards technology absorption:
(a) SAP ERP System

SAP 5/4 HANA 1610 ERP system covering

various functional areas like, Budget, Accounts
& Finance, HR & Payroll, Material Management,
Project Systems, etc was successfully
implemented during November 2017 and
subsequently upgraded to SAP S5/4 HANA 2020
during the FY 2021-22. Your Company has also
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taking steps to migrate the SAP ERP System to
Cloud by adopting the SAP RISE Cloud platform.

|b) Mendlx Platform

Your Company has also successfully implemented
SAP certified No Code/Low Code Application
Development Platform (Mendix) for development
of web and mobile applications. Various
applicatlons such as POMS, BIP, Vigilance online
Complaint Portal, etc have been developed and
implemented successfully.

This overall efforts has not only enhanced IT
utilization and increased the overall productivity,
but also enhanced the customer services, service
level commitments, utilization of resources at
optimal level, etc.

Il} Benefits derlved

Business processes and functionalities of HR/
Payroll, Finance & Accounting, Purchase &
Contracts and Project Systems (WBS), Employee
Requests/Claim and Loan processes are made
online through Employee Self Service (ESS)
Portal resulting in increased ftransactional
efficiency and productivity leading to cost
reduction.

Place: Chennai
Date : 13.08.2025

ll} In case of Imported technology (Imported

b)

c)

d)

e)

during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financlal year)

The detalls of technology Imported:
Mot applicable

The year of Import:
Mot applicable

Whether the technology been fully absorbed:
Mot applicable
if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption

has not taken place, and the reason thereof :
Mot applicable

v} The expenditure Incurred on Research and

<)

Development:
NIL

Forelgn Exchange Earnings & outgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings is Nil and Foreign
Exchange Outflow Is Rs.5.70 lakhs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, 1.A.S.,
Chalrman
(DIN:01310101)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.0 BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY'S
PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Your Company believes that Corporate govemance
practice is the only way to build a strong Company.
Hence, the Report on Corporate Govermance
Is being wvoluntarlly provided. Your Company's
business strategles guarantee ethical operations, and
fairmess to all parties involved, Induding suppliers,
consumers, employees, investors, regulators, and
the community at large. While striving to achieve its
goals, your Company takes stakeholders’ interests
into consideration.

Annexure-\/

2.0 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2.1 Composition and Category of the Board of
Directors as on 31.03.2025.
. Nam
Mo e Categery
1 Shri Sunil Paliwal, LAS Chairman
2 Smt. 1P Irene Cynthia, LAS Managing Director
3 | Shris.Viswanathan, LAS MNominee Director
Shri B.M Narayanan,
4 Independent Director
FCA, PGDM
5 | Capt Anoop Kumar Sharma Independent Director
6 ?H":t‘d?"“ Balagopal LBIS. | |t Divector

COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 AND

UPTO DATE OF THI5 REPORT :
S.No. Mame of Director Category Date of appointment | Date of Cessation
Chairman {(Non-
1. | Shril Sunil Paliwal, L.AS Executive) 10112021 Continues
2. | 5mt JP Irene Cynthia, LAS* Managing Director 21.08.2023 Continues
3. |Shri S. Viswanathan, LAS* Nominee Director 27.04.2023 Continues
4. |ShriV:M.V. Subba Rao, FCA, DISA (ICAI) | Independent Director | Sﬁgﬂ‘aﬂfm 05.11.2024
5. | Shri RM. Narayanan FCA, PGDM Independent Director 13.11.2024 Continues
6. | Capt. Ancop Kumar Sharma Independent Director {sl{ggr:ﬂzt[:éﬁ} Continues
7. |5mt. Sarla Balagopal, |.RTS (Retd.) Independent Director [S;IEE{;Ir;Iﬂzt[:ezr?n} Continues

* Smit. lrene Cynthia, LAS. is the spouse of 5hri 5. Viswanathan, LAS

2.2 No. of Board Meetings held with dates of the Meeting:

During the financial year 2024-25, 09 (Nine) Board meetings were held on 22.05.2024, 11.07.2024, 12.08.2024,
30002024, 23.10.2024, 13.11.2024, 30.12.2024, 10.02.2025, 27.03.2035.

2.3 Meetings and Attendance during the year

Attendance of each member along with Chairmanship/Membership of the Audit Committes (AC) and Stakeholder
Relationship Committee (SRC) of Public Limited Companias (including KPL) as per the data/detalls made avallable

to the Company/Committee Is given
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No.of Board No. of Committees
Meeting held As Other allc
of | duringthe | No.ofBoard | Member | Directorship Scruss Al Companies
Name of Director Dﬁ'imnl =~ tenure of Meeting | ason 31st ason As Chalan
respective | Attended March | 3istMarch | LastAGM R
Director In 2025 2025 attended 395t March 2025
F.Y. 2024-25
AC- KPL
Shiri Sunil Paliwal Chairman 09 09 Yas 2 SRC-KPL Nil
ACSCL
Smit. JPirane Managing AC-KPL
Cynthia Director o o b . SRC-KPL e
Nominea
Shri SViswanathan Director 09 o7 Yas 3 il Nil
Capt. Anoop Kumar | Independent
Shanma Diractor 09 09 Yies 1 AC-KPL Nil
Smit. Sarla Independent
Bala | Direct 09 09 Yas Nil AC-KPL SRC-KPL
Shri RM. Independent
ShriVMV.Subba | Independent
Rag* Diractor 05 05 Yias 1 Nil Nil

Note: KPL - Kamarajar Port Limited, SCL — Sethusamudram Corporation Limited,

*Shri. VM.V, Subba Rao cessed w.e.f 05.11.2024 and Shri. R.M. Narayanan appointed as Independent Director of the Company
for period of three years w.e.f. 13.11.2024 in the Board Meeting held on 13th November, 2024,

3.0 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The role, terms of reference, Composition of the
Audit Committee is In accordance with Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions. Head of
Finance, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and
SeniorExecutivesfromvariousfunctionswereinvited
to the Audit Committee meetings for interacting
with the members of the Audit Committee. The
members of Audit commitiee maintain a strong
oversight of the finandal reporting process, the
audit process, the Company’s system of Internal
controls and compliance with laws and regulations.

A. Composition of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company comprised of
the following members as on 31.03.2025.

Shri R.M. Narayanan - Chairman
Shiri Sunil Paliwal - Member
smt LP.Irene Cynthia - Member
Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma - Member
Smt. Sarla Balagopal - Member

Smit. Sarala Balagopal chaired the Audit Committee
meeting held on 13th November 2024, pursuant to
the cessation of Shri VM.V, Subba Rao as a Director
with effect from 5th November 2024. In the Board
Meeting held on 13.11.2024, Shri. R.M. Narayana,
independent Director was inducted as the Chairman
of the Audit Commitiee.

B. Meetings and Attendance during the year:
During the year 2024-25, 5 (Five) Audit Committea
meetings were held on 22.05.2024, 11.07.2024,

12.08.2024, 13.11.2024, 10.02.2025 and the
attendance of Members is as detailed below:
No. of Attendance by
weeing Members
Membears held
1‘2"32 ool | g
meetings
Shiri R.M. Narayanan 1 1 100
'ShriVMV Subba Rao 3 3| 0
Shiri Sunif Paliwal 5 5 100
Smt LP. Irene Cynthiia 4 4 100
Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma 5 5 100
5mt. Sarla Balagopal 5 5 100
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4.0 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The role, terms of reference and composition of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and
other applicable provisions and the Committee
recommends to the Board the appointment/re-
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management.

A. Composition of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
comprised of the following Members as on
31.03.2025:

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma - Chairman
Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member
Shri 5. Viswanathan - Member
Smit. Sarla Balagopal - Member

B. Meetings and Attendance during the year
During the year 2024-25, 3 (three) Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings were held on
11.07.2024, 23.102024, and 13.11.2024 and the
attendance of members is as detalled below:

No.of | attendance by Members
Mambers Meetings
heldduring | N, of %
enre | Meatings
Capt. Anoop Kumar 3 3 100
Sharma
Shri Sunil Paliwal 3 3 100
Shri 5. Viswanathan 3 3 100
Smit. Sarla Balagopal 3 3 100

C. Remuneration
Directors

recelved by Functlional

Details of remuneration of Functional Directors of
the Company paid for the financial year 2024-25:

No.of | ponus/ | Total
Meetings c | (Rs)
Name of the Directors | held during sion/ PRP
tenure
. Rs.35.85 Rs8.72 4457
.-Smt.J.P_ Irene Cynthia " lakh akh akh

5.0 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Stakeholder Relationship Committee looks into
redressal of complaints/ grievances of bondholders
pertaining to non-receipt of interest/transfer/
transmission of bonds and other miscellaneous
complaints. Smt. Jayalakshmi Srinivasan, Company
Secretary, is the Compliance Officer. M/s. MUGF
Intime India Private Limited (formerly Link Intime
india Private Limited), Mumbai, is the Registrar and
Transfer Agent of the Company and they attend
to all investor service requests. The complaints
received from bondholders are monitored regularly
and redressal action is taken immediately.

A. Composition Composition of Stakeholder
Relationship Committee

As on 31.03.2025, the Stakeholder Relationship
Committee comprised of the following Members:

smt. Sarla Balagopal - Chairperson
shri Sunil Paliwal - Member
smt. J.P Irene Cynthia - Member

B. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year 2024-25, 4 (four) Stakeholder
Relationship Committee meetings were held on
22.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 13.11.2024 and 10.02.2025
and the attendance of members Is as detalled below:

Attendance by
Entt- Members
tled to
Members sttentl No. of %
meaetings
Smit. Sarla Balagopal 4 4 100
Shri sunil Paliwal 4 | 4 100
Smt. J.P lrena 4 4 100
Cynthia

6.0 BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEE ON CS5R AND
SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT

The role, terms of reference and composition of the
Committee Is in accordance with Companies Act, 2013

and other applicable provisions.

A. Composlition of Board Level Committee on
CSR and Sustainabllity Development

The Board Level Committee on SR and
Sustainability Development of the Company
comprised of the following members as on
31.03.2025:

Shri Sunil Paliwal - Chairman
smt 1.P. Irene Cynthia - Member
Shri 5. Viswanathan - Member
Shri B.M. Narayanan - Member

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma - Member
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ShriVv.M.V. Subba Rao, ceased to be a member of the
Committeew.ef.05.11.2024 and ShriR.M. Narayanan
was Inducted as a memberw.ef 13.11.2024

B. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year under review, 4 {four) Meetings of the
Committee on CSR and Sustainable Development
were held on 22.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 10.02.2025,
and 27.03.2025 and the attendance of mambers is
as detailed below:

Entitied Att’:nda nce by
Members to
attend No. of
%
meetings

Shri Sunll Paliwal 4 4 100
Smt. LP Irene Cynthia 4 4 100
Shri 5. Viswanathan 4 2 50
Shri VM.V, Subba Rao 2 2 100
Capt. Anoop Kumar 4 4 100
Sharma
Shri R.M. Narayanan 2 2 100

7.0 SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

In terms of Schedule IV of the Companies Act
2013, a Meeting of the Non-Executive Independent
Directors of the Company was held on 10th
February, 2025, In which all the Independent
Directors participated. The attendance details of the
said Meeting are given in the table below:

Special
Resolution

passad

Year Date Time Place

2023-24 | 30002024 | 3:00 Through two
M way Video NIL
conferendng/
Other Audio Visual
Means [OAVM)

2022-23 | 28092023 | 300 Through two NIL
EM way Video

conferendng/
Gther Audio Visual
Means (CAVM)

2021-22 | 2800.2022 | 3.00 Through two NIL

EM way Video
confarencing/

Other Audio Visual

Attendance by
Members
Members Entitled
to attend No. of
%

meetings
Capt. Ancop Kumar i 1 100
sharma
Smit. Sarla Balagopal 1 1 100
Shri B.M. Narayanan 1 1 100

B.0 GENERAL BODY MEETING

The date, time and place of the AGMs held during
the preceding three years and special resolution
passed thereat are as under:

Means [OAVM)

8.0 DISCLOSURES

i} Related Party Transactions are set out in Nota
MNo.30 (12) to the notes forming part of the
financial statement for the year ended 31st
March 2025 in the Annual Report.

i) The statutory authorities have also not passed
any strictures or imposed penalty on the
Company under any Act/Rules during the last
three financial years.

i) Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and
no personnel of the Company have been denied
access to the Audit Committee.

iv) Mo item of expenditure was debited in books of
accounts which was not for the purpose of the
business. Further, no expense was incurred for
the Board of Directors and Top Management
which was personal in nature.

v) None of the Part time Directors of the Company
have pecuniary relationship or transaction with
the Company.

vi) Details of administrative & office expenses and
financial expenses for the year under review
and for the previous year are available in annual
accounts
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10.0 CODE OF CONDUCT

As part of Kamarajar Port's persisting endeavor to
set a high standard of conduct for its employees,
a “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” has been
laid down for all Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel. All Board Members and
Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with Kamarajar Port's "Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics” for the financial year 2024-25.

Declaration

All the Board Members and Senior Management
of the Company have confirmed compliance with
'Code of Business Conduct and Ethics' for the year
ended 31st March 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-

(Smt LP. Irene Cynthla, LLA.5.)

Chennai Managing Director
20-05-2025 (DIN: 08839241)

11.0 TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

Your Company has a policy for Tralning of Directors
for Promoting better understanding of professional
requirements as well as sensitization to professional,
socio-economic and political environment in which
work is done.

12.0 REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE
LAWS

The Board periodically reviews the compliance
reports of all laws applicable to the Company to
ensure compliance of all the applicable laws.

Place: Chennai
Date:13.08.2025

13.0 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly, half-yearly, annual financial results
are furnished immediately to Bombay Stock
Exchange where the Company's Tax Free Bonds are
listed and published in the Business Standard all
Editions. The results are displayed on the website
of the Company www.kamarajarport.in and also
sent to Debenture Trustees.

Annual Report containing inter-alia, Audited
Accounts, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report, Cash
Flow Statement and other important information
is circulated to the members and others entitled
thereto and are also available in the Company’s
website www.kamarajarport.in. All the events/
information as per the provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure  Requirements)
Reqguilations, 2015 are being displayed on the
website of the Company.

Webslte

The Company's website www.kamarajarportin
contains separate dedicated section ‘Investors'
wherein information for bondholders is available.

Address for Correspondence

Bondholders may send their correspondence to the
Company Secretary at the Registered Office at 2nd
Floor (North Wing) & 3rd Floor Jawahar Building,
17, Rajaji Salal, Chennai - 600 001 and electronically
to cs@kplmailin for addressing the queries of
bondholders. Investors may also communicate
fo MUGF Intime India Private Limited (formerly
Link Intime India Private Limited), Registrar and
Transfer Agent for redressal of their grievance, if
any. The details of their address, contact numbers
are as under:

Address: C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,
Vikhroli {West), Mumbai - 400 083.
91-22-4918 6000/068108116767,
Fax: 91-22-4018 6060

Email: bonds.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com

Tel No. :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

sd/-
sunil Paliwal, LLA.S.,
Chalrman
(DIN:01310101)
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gt e &1 F1EEg Office of the Principal Director

aioIfeas o@r 98, deis z \ of Commercial Audit, Chennai
AT ET TS TE e ST X 6 J Indian Audit and Accounts Department
S St A, T - 2, == Indian Oi] Bhavan, Level - 2,
139, FETEAT TE] TS, S5-600034 D 139, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Chennai-600 034

Dated : 28.07.2025
No. PDCA/CA-I1/4-124/2025-26-294

To

The Chairman

Kamarajar Port Limited,

No.17, Jawahar Building, Rajaji Salai,
Chennai - 600 D01

Sir,

Sub: Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the Fnancial Statements of Kamarajar Port Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

| am to forward herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section

43(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013, on the Financial Statements of Kamarajar Port Limited, for the year ended
31 March 2025.

Two (2) copies of Annual Report of your company may kindly be arranged to be forwarded to this
office. The date of holding of Annual General Meeting may also be intimated please.

Receipt of this letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours falthfully,

sd/-
(5. Velllangir)
Princlpal Director of Commerclal Audit

Encl: Audit Comment

Tel: 044-28330147 Fax: 044-2833014 e-mail: pdcachennai@cag.gov.in
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Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of india under Section 143(6)(b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Kamarajar Port Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2025

The preparation of financial statements of
Kamarajar Port Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. The statutory auditors appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 of the Act based onindependent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is
stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 26.05.2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of
the financial statements of Kamarajar Port Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2025 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to
the working papers of the statutory auditors and
is limited primarily to Inquiries of the statutory
auditors and Company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to
highlight the following significant matters under
section 143(6){b} of the Act which have come fo
my attention and which in my view are necessary
for enabling a better understanding of the financial
statements and the related audit report.

Place: Chennai
Date: 28.07.2025

Comments on Financlal Position

Comment No. 1

Balance Sheet

Assets -Non-current assets

Right to Use Assets (Note 4A): 71639.03 lakh
Accumulated depreclation: 7925.77 lakh
Other FInancial Assets (Note 9): ¥ 442.82 lakh

Fair value 7 214,97 lakh of a refundable Security
Deposits of ¥ 243.75 lakh paid to Chennai Port
Authority was not included in the Right of Use
assets and consequently deprediation on the same
was not charged. Besides this, the depreciation
method adopted was not in compliance with the
accounting policy (Straight Line Method) of the
company.

The above non-compliances resulted In
understatement of gross Right of Use assets by
$21497 lakh, overstatement of accumulated
deprediation by #173.79 lakh, overstatement of
Other Financial Assets by 193.24 lakh, and
understatement of Other Equity by T195.52 lakh.

Comment No. 2
Other Intanglble Assets (Note 6): 7 264.95 lakh

The above included residual value of ¥ 54.44 lakh
for the Intangible assets already depreciated in
contravention to Ind AS 38 provisions. This resulted
in overstatement of Other Intangible Assets and
overstatement of Other Equity by 754.44 lakh.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of Indla

sd/-

S.Velliangirl
Principal Director of Commerclal Audit
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MANAGEMENT REPLIES TO THE COMMENTS OF CAG UNDER 5EC. 143 (6) (8) OF THE COMAPNIES ACT,
2012 ONTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2025.

CEAG Audit Comment

Management Reply

1. Non-Current Assets

Right to Use Assets #1639.03 Lakh,
Accumulated Depreciation ¥925.77 lakh and
other Financial Assets : 7442.82 lakh

Fair Value ¥214.97 Lakh of a refundable Security
Deposits of ¥ 243.75 lakh paid to Chennai Port
Authority was not included in the Right of Use
assets and consequently depreciation on the same
was not charged. Besides this, the depreciation
method adopted was not in compliance with the
accounting policy (Straight Line Method) of the
company.

The non-compliances resulted in
understatement of gross Right of Use assets by
721497 lakh, overstatement of accumulated
depreciation by ¥173.79 lakh, overstatement
of Other Financial Assets by ¥193.24 lakh, and
understatement of Other Equity by ¥195.52 lakh.

above

Facts confirmed. As observed by the Audit, the
necessary comection entries will be passed in the FY
2025-26 as per Ind AS.

Notwithstanding the above, it is also submitted
that as per Para 2.11 of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) (the "Framework”), “Information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial reports
(see paragraph 1.5) make on the basis of those reports,
which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity”

Without prejudice to the above contention, it is also
humbly submitted that KPL had made the lease
deposit in the years 2019-20 and 2021-22 and the
present accounting treatment has been consistently
followed since then for the past 5 years and accepted
by the Statutory Auditors for the respective years
as well as part of expressing their opinion on the
financial statements, which only reinforces the present
consistent stand followed by KPL.

The present emor of an amount of Rs. 214.97 Lakhs
and Rs.193.23 Lakhs is only 0.185% and 0.167% of the
turnover of the Company, 0.067% and 0.06% of the
carrying value of PPE and 0.257% and 0.231% of the
Profit before Tax for the year.

It is assured that the necessary correction entries as
observed by the Audit will be passed in the financial
year 2025-76.
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2. Other Intangible Assets: ¥ 264.95 Lakh
Theaboveincludedresidualvalueof ¥54.441akh
for the intangible assets already depreciated
in contravention to Ind AS 38 provisions. This
resulted in overstatement of Other Intangible
Assets and overstatement of Other Equity by
T 54.44 lakh.

Facts confirmed. As observed by the Audit, the
necessary correction entries will be passed in the FY
2025-26.

Notwithstanding the above, it is also submitted that as
per Para 2.11 of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
(the “Framework"), “Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial reports (see paragraph
1.5) make on the basis of those reports, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity”
The present error of an amount of Rs. 54.44 Lakhs is
only 0.047% of the tumover of the Company, 0.017%
of the carrying value of PPE and 0.065% of the Profit
before Tax for the year.

It is assured that the necessary correction entries as
observed by the Audit will be passed in the financial
year 2025-26.
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JASMINDER SINGH & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Kamarajar Port Limited

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

L.

&

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS
financial statements of Kamarajar Port Limited
{*the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Gther Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including
summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the "finandal statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (*the Act”) in the manner so required and
glve a true and fair view In conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basls for Oplnion

3.

We conducted our audit of the finandal
statements In accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant

to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thersunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basls for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Emphaslis of Matters
4. Reference is invited to Note 4{a) regarding

pending conveyance deed/registration deeds
for several of the immovable properties
obtained by the Company from Government/
Government  owned entities.  Further,
consideration/ compensation payable to various
agenciesis yet to be finalized and have not been
provided for

. Reference Is invited to Note 30{15)iii}{a)

regarding Initlation of arbitration proceedings
by one of the BOT operators against the
Company during the year stating various claims
amounting to a sum of Rs 160841.07 Lakhs in
respeact of which counter claims have been filed
by the Company and arbitrators appointed by
both partles and the status of the arbitration
proceedings as at the year end. Accordingly, for
reascons mentioned in the said Note, no provision
for the claims raised by the BOT operator is
considered necessary as at the year end.

. Reference Is invited to Note 11 regarding excess

payments of Rs.4509.50 Lakhs made to project
contractors Included in Other Assets - Non-
Current and not capitalized till date pending
disputes referred to High Court of Madras.

. Referencelsinvited to Note 9 regarding litigation

proceeding against the Contractor for which the
Company has deposited Rs.2860.83 lakhs, 75%
of the Arbitration award (2107.66 lakhs plus
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interest) to Registrar General of High Court. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of the matters
referred to Paragraphs 4 to 7 above

Key Audit Matters

3.

Key audit matters are those matters that, In
our professional judgment, were of most
significance In our audit of the finandial
statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements
and Auditor's Report Thereon

9.

10

11.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the Information
included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate  Governance and Shareholder's
information, but does not include the
consolidated financlal statements, financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the finandial statements does
not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility Is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other Information Is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

. If, based on the work we have performed, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management’s Responsibllity for the Financial
Statements

13.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and

fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Indian
accounting standards and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeqguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other Irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate Internal financial controls, that were
operating eifectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free fromm material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In preparing
the financial statements, management Is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concemn
and using the going concern basls of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

14 The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsiblilities for the Audit of the

Financlal Statements

15. Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the finandal
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and toissue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to Influence the economic dedsions of users
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taken on the basis of these financial statements.

« As part of an audit in accordance with
SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive io
thosearisks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal
financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« (Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concemn. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related discosures In the
financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events

16.

17.

18.

19.

or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concermn.

s FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
induding the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in
the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
dedisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financdial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors In (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance In the
audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors
report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare drcumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public Interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory g) With respect to the other matters to be included

Requirements

20. As required under section 143(5) of the Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A, our report
on the directions/sub-directions issued by the
Comptrolier and Auditor General of India.

21. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 ("The order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters
specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

22_As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit:

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those
books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e] On the basis of the written representations
recaived from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors Is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial control over finandial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such
control, refer to our separate report in "Annexure
C". Our report expresses a Un-modified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal finandal controls over

in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year Is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included

in the Auditor's report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements vide Mote Reference
30(15).

ii. The Company has made provision, as re-
quired under the applicable law or account-
ing standards, for material foreseeable losses,
if any, on long-term contracts including de-
rivative contracts.

ili. The Company has not yet transferred the
funds required to be transferred to the In-
vestor Education and Protection Fund in re-
gard to unclaimed amount for Interest/Other
amounts regarding Bonds. However, as per
Management, Company is in process of tak-
ing necessary approvals for depositing the
required amount.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that,
fo the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds {which are material either individual-
ly or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign enti-
ty (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or
antities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, sa-
curity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that,

financial reporting
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to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material etther individual-
ly or in the aggregate) have been recelved
by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity ("Funding Parties”},
with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(il) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatemeant.

Place: Chennal
Date : 26.05.2025

V.

As stated in Note 30 (20) to the financial
statements

{a] The final dividend proposed in the previous

vi.

year, declared and paid by the Company
during the year is in accordance with Section
123 of the Act, as applicable.

Based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company has used account-
ing software for maintaining its books of ac-
count for the financial vear ended March 31,
2025, which has a feature of recording audit
traill (edit log) facility and the same has op-
erated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Fur-
ther, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of the audit
trail feature being tampered with.

For M/s Jasminder Singh & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 016192N

sd/-

CA Jasminder Singh

Partner

M. No, 096895

UDIN: 25096895BMGYHC5619
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JASMINDER SINGH & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE-ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to In paragraph 192 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors Report of even date on the Financial Statement of Kamarajar
Port Limited for the year ended 31* March 2025.

1

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If no, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT systemn on the
integrity of accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, maybe stated

The Company has system In place to process all the
accounting transactions through IT system.

Whether there Is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/
interast etc. made by a lender to the Company
due to the Company’s Inability to repay the loan?
If yes, the financial impact may be stated

There are no cases of restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/
interast etc. made by a lender to the Company due
1o the Company’s inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific
schemes from Central/State agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of Deviation

During the year under review, the Company has not
received funds for specific schemes from Central/
State agendies.

Place: Chennal
Date: 26.05.2025

For M/s Jasminder Singh & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 016192N

sd/-

CA Jasminder Singh

Partner

M. No. 096895

UDIN: 25096895BMGYHC5619
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KAMARAIAR PORT LIMITED

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to In paragraph 20 under‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Kamarajar Port Limited of even date)

(Il The Company Is maintaining proper
records including quantitative details
of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i) The company is maintaining proper
records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification
to cover all the items of Property, Plant and
Equipment in a phased manner which, in
our opinion, Is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the program, Property,
Plant and Equipment were physically
verified by the management during the
year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

The Company owns land measuring 2,787.27
acres acquired from TIDCO (950.00 acres),
TNEB (1092.20 acres), Salt Department,
Ministry of Commerce, Government of India
(71242 acres) and Government of Tamil
MNadu (47.87 acres), which are under the
possession of the company. Further, out of
the total land area owned, 2,038.10 acres
including 297.98 acres procured from TIDCO,
00505 acres from TANGEDCO, 71242
acres from Salt Department and 0.62 from
Government of Tamil Madu have been
registered in the name of the Company and
patta has been obtained for 31.96 acres
procured from Government of Tamil Nadu
and in respect of the balance, registration is
in process

According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and equipment (induding
right of use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the year.

(8} No proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the Company for

2. (a)

(b)

(b)

(c)

holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1288
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i){e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company s engaged in the
development and operation of port and is
primarily rendering port services. It does not
hold any physical inventories. Accordingly,
clausa 3{ii}{a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the Information and
explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess
of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or finandal Institutions on the basis
of the security of current assets at any point
of time during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the year, the Company has not
provided any loans or provided any
advances in the nature of loans, or
guarantee, or security to any other entity.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(lii)(a)
and 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Theinvestments made, guarantees provided,
security given and terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are
not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

The Company does not have any outstanding
loans and advances in the nature of loans at
the beginning of the year nor has granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans
during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clauses 3{iii}{c), 3{iif){c), 3{iii){e} and
3(iii}(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the Company has neither
made any investments nor has it given loans or
provided guarantee or security in violation of
Sections 185 & 186 of the Companies Act.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits
or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(v) of the
Order are not applicable.

. As per the information and explanation given to
us, the Central Government has not prescribad
the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act for any of the services rendered by the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order
is not applicable.

. (@) Accordingtotheinformationandexplanation
given to us and as par our examination of

the records of the company, the Company
has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’
state  insurance, Income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory
duas to the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable
Inrespectof Goodsand Servicetax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and
explanation given to us and as per our
verification of the records of the Company,
the following disputed amounts of tax/ duty
have not been deposited with appropriate
authorities as at 31st March 2025.

Statute Nature of | Amount {In | Perlod to which the| Forum to which Remarks,
dues Lakhs) amount relates | amount Is pending Iif any
InCcome Tax Act, AY 2007-08 to AY
1961 Incometax |[3262.20 202127 CIT (Appeals) Nil
Goods and +« |FY 2017-18 to FY
Sorvice tax GST 1352.82 202021 GST (Appeals) il

** Against this, the Company has paid a sum of Rs 88.78 Lakhs under protest

8. According to information and explanation given

to us and as per our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not
surrendered or disdosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income In the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

. {a) According to information and explanation
given to us and as per our examination of
the records of the company, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or other borrowings or in the payment of
interast thereon to any lender

(b) According  to  the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not been

declared a willful defaulter by any bank
or finandal institution or government or
government authority

(€ In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to
us, the company has utilized the money
obtained by way of term loans during the
year for the purposes for which they were
obtained

(d) According to the information and
explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the finance statements of
the company, we report that no funds raised
on shori-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the company.
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the Information and
explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the finandial statements of
the company, we report that the company
has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates ar
joint ventures.

According to the information and
explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the company
has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

10. (a) The Company has not raised any moneys

(b) According to

by way of Initlal public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments)
accordingly, clause 3(x) (a) of the Orderis not
applicable.

the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

11. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according

12.

to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our audit.

{b) No report under sub-section (12) of section

(c} According to the

143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of this report.

information and
explanations given to us Including
the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no
whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year

The Company Is not a Nidhi company and
accordingly, paragraph 3{xii} of the Order is
not applicable.

13.

According to the Information and
explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian accounting standards.

14. (a) Inouropinion and based on our examination,

15.

the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered, the intermmal audit

reports for the year under audit, issued to
the Company during the year and till date,
in determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures.

According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16.{a) Inouropinion, the Company is not required

17.

18.

19.

to be registered under section 45- 1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there Is no core investment

company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016} and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not
applicable

The company has not incurred cash losses
in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has beennoresignationofthestatutory
auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{xviil) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying
the finandal statements, the auditors
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knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion
that no materal uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a pericd of one year from the
balance sheet date.

20. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects,
the company has transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified In Schedule
Vil to the Companies Act, 2013 within a
period of six months of the expiry of the
financial year in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of
the said Act.

Place: Chennal
Date : 26.05.2025

21.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the

Company has ftransferred unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
amount as at the end of the previous
financial year, to a Spedial account within
a pericd of 30 days from the end of the
said financial year in compliance with the
provision of section 135(6) of the Act.

The reporting under Clause 3{xxi) of th
Order is not applicable in respect of audit
of the standalone financial statements.
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the
said clause has been included in this report.

For M/s Jasminder Singh & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 016192N

sd/-

CA Jasminder Singh

Partner

M. No. 096895

UDIN: 25096895BMGYHC5619
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ANNEXURE - C TOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to In paragraph 21(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Kamarajar Port Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companles Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal finandial controls over
financial reporting of M/s.Kamarajar Port Limited
("the Company”) asof 31% March 2025 In conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibliity for
Financlal Controls

The Company's management Is responsible for

establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibllity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issuad
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

Internal

about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system overfinancdial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over finandial reporting Included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstaternent of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's intemnal
financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financlal Controis over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal finandial control over finandal
reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
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that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherent limitations of Internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over finandial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the Internal financial
control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes In conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Place: Chennal
Date: 26.05.2025

Oplnion:

In our opinion, the Company has, In all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial st reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based
on the intermnal control over finandal reporting
criteria established by the Company consldering
the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s Jasminder Singh & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
FRN.016192N

sd/-

CA Jasminder Singh

Partner

M. No. 096895

UDIN: 25096895BMGYHC5619
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TNT1999PLC0O43322
(A Company of Chennal Port Authority)
Read. Office: 2™ Roor (North wina} & 3™ Floor, Jawahar Buliding, 17, Rajaii Salai, Chennai - 600 007.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2025

{Rupees in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars ote No
" Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
Audited Audited
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(@} Property, Plant and Equipment 4 322190.39 312195522
b} Capital work-in-progres 5 1844686 2743885
(cj Fight-of-Lisa Assets 44 163203 173853
[d} Other intangibde ascets & 26405 16962
(=) Financial Assets
(i} Investments F 17743 419031
(i} Loans. ] 53221 735
(it} Other Financial Assestz g 447 82 44282
[Fy Tax Assats (Metty 14 35835 326160
(g Othar non-current Assets 1 J17 0% T34 87
Total Mon Current Assets I58169.12 358120.17
2} Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 12 35257 753795
(1) Cash & Cazh Equivalents 134 15047 35 A0B0.19
(i) Bank batances other than cash and cash 138 1300000 BO0G.00
equivalents
{ivy Loans B 12971 12242
(¥} Other Financial Asssts ) I .02 163
(k) Dthear Current Assets 11 308263 158786
| TFotal Current Assets 4381330 71550.05
“Total Assets 10 20198282 37971922
...... e e X
Equity .
(2} Equity Share Capital 15 300000 30000.00
(b Cther Equity 17508501 26108898
Total Equity 305995.01 20108898
Liabilities
Mon-ourrent liabilities
[2) Financial Liabilities
il i 16 4145086 44783.15
(i) Cihver Financial Liabilines 7 67147 57069
(b} Defernad tax liabdities (Mat) 10 24007 43 DETL.02
[} Dther non-current liabilities 19 BBER.A5 E30052
Total Mon Current Babllities F4028.60 6141942
Current Habilities
(3} Financial Liabifities
{i] Bommowings 16 330135 3301325
(i) Trade payables
-Total outstanding duss of Micro enterprises and Small enterprisas 20 63848 160560
“Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Miono enterperisas and Small enterprises i 500184 6538.62
[iiy Dther Financial Liabilities | F 73858 3155
(b} Other current fiabilities 19 835943 B465 51
(ci Provisions 18 3839323 BETL19
Total current Eabilities 21958.81 27110.82
Total Equity and Liabilities A01982.42 379719.22
Notes to Accounts 30
Material Accounting Polices and key accounting estimates and judgements Tw3
See aocomipanying hotas to financial statements
For KAMARAIAR PORT LIMITED
Sedd- Sadi-
SUNIL PRLIWAL LAS. JPIREME CYNTHIA LAS. For /s Jasminder Singh & Acsodatas
Chairman cum Managing Director Managing Director [hartered Accountants,
D : 013100 DN - DBE3941 FAM . D16192N
Sdi- Sdi-
LS. VEMARRA CA. Jzsminder Singh,
M.Mo. D685
UDIH: 25096503 BMETHCSE 1D
Place : Chennai Chief Finanical Offcer |Ifcy
Date : 26™ May 2025 Partnas,
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999PLC043322
(A Company of Chennal Port Authority)
Regd. Office: 2™ Floor (North wing) & 3™ Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji 5alal, Chennal - 600 001.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2025
(Rupees in lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
Fatticutars NoteNo.|  \iar31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
Income
i Revenue From Operations 21 113841.57 106221.97
i) Other Income 22 2182.96 1921.62
Total Income 116024.52 108143.59
Expenses
i Operating Cost 23 1083467 10476.64
i) Employee Benefits Expenses 24 2438.75 207437
iii} Finance Cost 25 4366.81 626261
v} Bepreciation & Amortization Expenses 26 8607.91 7554.97
V) Other Expenses 7 593279 511595
Total expenses 32270.95 31484.44
Profit/{loss) before tax 83753.58 76659.15
Tax expense
() Current Tax 10 2655613 2453263
(iiy Deferred Tax 10 3264.92 255849
Profit for the period 29821.05 | 2709112
Other Comprehensive Income 53932.53 49568.03
(T} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
3) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -27.86 - 21896
(i} Income tax expense on remeasurement benefit/ 9.73 76.52
(loss) of defined benefit plans 10
b) Change in fair value of Eguity instruments -12.88 39.12
(iil) Income Tax expense on change in fair value of 4.50 -13.67
equity instruments
Other Comprehensive Income -26.50 -117.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 53906.03 49451.03
Eamings per equity share :
(1) Basic 29 17.98 1652
(2) Diluted 17.98 16.52
Motes to Accounts 30
Material Accounting Policies and key accounting estimatesand  Tfo3
| judgements o
See accompanying notes to financial statements
For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
Sd/- sd/-
SUNIL PALIWAL, L.A.5., JPIRENE CYNTHIA LA.S5. For M/s Jasminder Singh & Assoclates
Chairman cum Managing Director Managing Director Chartered Accountants,
DIN: 01310101 DIN : 08839241 FRN.D16192N
Sd/- Sd/-
C.5.VEMANNA CA. Jasminder Singh,
Chief Finanical Officer (/) Partner,
M.No. 096895

Place : Chennai

Date : 26" May 2025 UDIN: 25096893BMGYHC5619
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TNT1999PLC043322
{A Company of Chennal Port Authority)

Regd. Office: 2 Floor (North wing) & 3™ Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salal, Chennai - 600 001.
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31**MARCH, 2025

{Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mot Profit/Loss Before Tax B837531.58 76650.15
Adjustment for:-
Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment 7532 0.00
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets - 102
Dapreciation & Amortisation Expensas Bo97.91 755497
Finance Costs 4352 32 625655
Provision of Expected Cradit Loss - 1.41
Imterast Income (1709.84) {131656)
Upfront Development Income {74.79) =
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 95104.51 89156.53
Adjustment for:-
Loans (Non-Current) (234.868) 211
Other Assats (Mon-Current) = [1.54)
Other non-current Assats 21639 132.10
Trade Recelvables (1814.61) (1663.49)
Loans (729) (3979
Other Financial Assets (2B60.83) 72678
Orther Current Assets {1570.10) 7592
Cther Financial Liabilities (Mon-Current) 100.78 1968
Crther Non-current Liabilities 47833 [484.43;
Trade payables (2411.99) 412831
Other Financial Liabilities 307.02 1388
Orther current liabilities 1968.71 63584
Provisions {5058.15) {7219.74)
Cash From Operating Activities B3785.11 85485.77
Imcome Tax {Paid)/ Refund {14481.15) (1303454
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Operating Activities (A) 69303.97 72451.22
B. Cash Flow from Investment Activities —— .
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets, CWIP (B302.77) (2894791 |
Interest Received 162127 121656
Imvestments during the year __[5000.00) =
Net Cash (used in}/ generated by Investing Activities (B (11671.50) (27631.35)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (3200000 {24000.00)
Loans repaid (32922 (1123984}
Imterast Paid (437299 {6256.55)
Net Cash From / {used in) Finandng Activities (C) (46665.32) {41496.38)
D. Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 10967.15 3323.49
E. Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 4080.19 756.70
F. Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 15047.35 4080.19

L Reler nole 134

2 Non cash Financial and imvesting aclivilies

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Sdi- Sdi-

SUNIL PALIWAL, LAS., JP IRENE CYNTHIA LAS. For M/s Jasminder Singh & Associates

Chairman cum Managing Director Managing Director Charterad Accountants,

DiN: 01310000 DiN - 08830241 FRN . 016192N

Sdi- Sdi-

C5. VEMANNA CA. Jasmindar Singh,

Chiief Finanical Officar {L'c) Partner,

Place: Chennai M.No. 096825

LADHN: 25006803BMGYHCSS1D

Date : 26 May 2025
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CIN: U45203TN1999PLC043322
{A Company of Chennal Port Authority)

Regd. Office: 2™ Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Bullding, 17, Rajaji Salal, Chennai - 600 001.

Statement of Changes In Equity Balance as at 31** March, 2025

Equity Share Capital
(Rupees in lakhs)
Balance as at Aprii 1, 2024 Changes In share caplital during the year Balance as at Mar 31, 2025
30,000 - 30,000
Balance as at April 1,2023 Changes In share capital during the year Balance as at Mar 31, 2024
30,000 - 30,000
Other Equity
For the year ended 31 March, 2025
Reserves and Surplus | Other Components of Equity
Debenture Remeasurement
Redemption | General | Retained | of NetDefimed | FVTOCI- Total
Particulars Reserve | Meserve | Eamnings | benefit Liability/ | Investments
Assel
{Rupees in lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 504495 | 7902.00 25017286 (99.49) | (1931.34) 261088.58
Changes in accounting policy /Prior period errors - - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - 5393253 - - 5393253
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - - (18.12) [8.38) (26.50)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 456.86 - (456.86) - - -
Final Dividend - FY. 2023-24 {30,000.00) = = (30,000.00)
Interim Dividend - FY. 2024-25 - - (9000.00) - - {9000.00)
Balance at the end of !ﬁerq:lorﬂ'lg_pﬂud 5501.81 | 7902.00 264648.53 (117.61) | (1939.72) 275995.01
Other Equity
For the year ended 319 March, 2024
Reserves and Surplus | Other Components of Equity
Debentore Femeasurement
- Redemption | General | Retained | ofNetDefined | FVTOQ- Total
riiculars Reserve | Reserve | Eamings | benefit Liability/ | investments
Asset
{Rupees in lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 657547 | 7902.00 22307430 42.95 {1956.79 23563795
Changes in accounting policy prior period . - - - - -
BITOrS
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 49568.03 - - 4956803
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - - {142.45) 2545 (117.00)
Transfer from Retained Earnings {1530.52) - (1530.52) - - -
Dividend -FY. 2022-23 - - {24000.00) 5 (24000.00)
Interim Dividend - FY. 2023-24 - - - - - 0.00
Balance at the end ufﬂlnmportlng_gﬂ'lod 5044.95 | 7902.00 250172.86 (99.49]) | (1931.34) 261088.98
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999PLC043322
Regd. Office: 2™ Floor (North wing) & 3™ Floor, Jawahar Buliding, 17, Rajaji Salal, Chennai - 600 001.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information:

Kamarajar Port Limited is a Public Limited Company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company
is operating mostly on landlord port model limiting
its functions to overall planning, development,
mobilization of investments for the development
of port and common infrastructure facilities. The
development and cperations of the terminals are
mostly entrusted to private operators/captive users.

2. Basls of Preparation:

The Company has adopted Ind-AS, in accordance
with Motification dated February 16,2015 issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
with effect from April 01, 2016 with a transition date
of April 01, 2015.

All amounts included In the financial statements are
reported in Indlan rupees (Rupees In Lacs) except
equity shares, which are expressed in numbers.

The Company has consistently applied and followed
the accounting policies in the current year as
compared to the previous year. During the current
year, certain wordings in the accounting policy in
respect to Investments ( 3.16 (i}{a)) were modified/
updated for better clarity and to literally align the
same with the wordings contained in Ind AS 109.
However, there has been no change in the actual
accounting policy applied as compared to the
previous year.

3. Material Accounting Policies
3.1. Use of estimates and judgment:

The preparation of stand-alone financial statements
of the Company requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expensas, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

3.2. Functional and presentation currency:

These finandial statements are presented In Indian
rupeas, the national currency of India, which is the
functional currency of the Company.

3.3. Revenue Recognition:

1) Revenue from services is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable
net of discounts and excluding taxes and
duties, Revenue from sarvice rendered will be
recagnised upon completion of services. Revenue
is recognisad when following conditions are met

i} the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

i} It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will fow to
the entity;

iif) The costs incurred for the transaction and
the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

iv] No significant uncertainty exists as to its
collection.

Revenue stream Includes:;
i) Vessel Related Income.
ii) Cargo related income.

iii) Revenue share and Licence fee arising from
Leasing of land and waterfront on BOT and
other port users / captive users.

iv] Composite Tariff.

Revenue recognition in respect of each stream of
revenue is described below:

i} Vessel Related Income
Vessel related Income consists of income from
handling of the vessels. Revenue attributable

to Vessel related operations are recognized on
completion of the specific services.




ii)

i

2]

3)

)

"
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Cargo related income

Cargo related income consists of income from
rendering services with respect to cargo and are
recognised on completion of related services

Leasing of land and waterfront on BOT/

Captive use basls.

a} Revenue share from BOT operators Is
calculated at the quoted % on the gross
revenue as per concession / licence

agreement on accrual basls up to end of the
financial year

b} Income from Operating Lease which include
escalation clause in line with the general
inflation trends is accounted as per terms of
the contract.

c} Income from other Operating Lease is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the
term of lease.

d} Contingent Rent is recognized as income in
the period in which they accrue.

Composite Tariff

Composite Tariff represents the income earnad
at a composite tariff for the cargo handled by
captive users.

Dividend incomefrominvestmentsisrecognized
when the Company’s right to receive payment is
established and it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transactions will
flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably.

a. Interest Income from finandial instruments
is recognized when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income Is accrued on a time basls, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
flows through the expected life of the finandal
instruments to that instrument’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

b. Interest income on belated/disputed revenue
are recognised on realization basls.

3.4. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are
capitalized until the property, plant and equipment
are ready for use, as intended by the Management.
The Company depreciates property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line methaod.

The costof an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognized as an asset if, and only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
itemn can be measured reliably. The cost of an item
of PPE is the cash price equivalent at the recognition
date.

The cost of an item of PPE comprises:

i) Purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts, rebates, taxes/duties and cess
on which input credit for capital goods is availed.

if) Costsdirectly attributable to bringing the PPEto
the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

iii) The Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it Is located

The amounts becoming payable by the Company
on account of uncontested arbitral awards on
project claims and interest on such awards up to the
date of commissioning of the asset are capitalized
in the year of award as additions during the year in
the respective asset category. The Interest after the
date of commissioning of the asset on such awards
payable to the contractor Is treated as revenue
expenditure in the year of award.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)
of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of Property,
Plant and Equipment are determined by comparing
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the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and are
statad at net values under “Other Income/ Other
Expenses”in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The company has chosen the cost model for
recognition and this model Is applied to all dass of
assets. After recognition as an asset, an item of PPE is
carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Major repairs and overhauling costs:

The Company recognises in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, the cost of replacing
part of such an item when that cost is incurred, cost
of major repairs/ overhauling if the recognition
criteria are met. The carrying amount of replaced part
is derecognised and the cost of repairs is amortized
over the remaining useful life of the repair/ overhaul

3.5. Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and Impairment, if any.

Identifiable intangible assets are recognized when
the company controls the asset; it is probable
that future economic benefits expected with the
respective assets will flow to the company for more
than one economic period; and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably. Amortisation is provided
on Straight Line Method (SLM), which reflect the
management’s estimate of the useful life of the
intangible assets.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed forimpairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives Is recoginised
in the statement of Profit and Loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
assets.

3.6. Depreciation

The deprediable amount of an iter of PPE Is allocated
on a straight line basis over its useful life as prescribed
in the manner specified in Schedule Il of Companies
Act, 2013.

For each part of an item of PPE with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and
useful life of that part Is different from remaining part
of the asset, is depreciated separately. Depreciation
on all such items Is provided from the date they are
‘Avallable for Use’ fill the date of sale / disposal and
includes amortization of intangible assets. Freehold
land Isnotdepreciated. An item of PPEisderecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the
assel. In case of port spedfic assets, the depreciationis
charged at the rate as determined in accordance with
the life of those assets as per the practice prevailing
in Major ports in India. Depreciation on addition in
value of assets due to arbitral award is claimed over
the remaining useful life of the assets from the start
of the financial year in which such award is passed
and accepted.

3.7. Borrowing Costs

The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying asset as a part of the cost of
the asset. The Company recognises other borrowing
costs as an expense in the period In which it incurs
them. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.

To the extent the Company borrows generally and
uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
assef, amount of bomowing cost eligible for
capitalization is computed by applying a capitalization
rate to the expenditure incurred. The capitalization
rate is determined based on the weighted average
of borrowing costs, other than borrowings made
spacifically towards purchase of a qualifying asset.
Borrowing costs also indudes exchange differences to
the extent as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.8. Forelgn Currency Transactions:

Transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency are recognized at the rates of exchange
pravailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the reporting date.
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Foreign currency monetary items (except where
realisability of overdue receivable Is uncertain) are
converted using the closing rate as defined in the
Ind AS-21. Non-monetary items are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. The
exchange difference gain/loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.9. Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all related conditions are complied with. These
grants are classified as grants relating to assets or
revenue based on the nature of the grants.

Grants relating to depreciable assets are initially
recognised as deferred revenue and subsequently
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset generally in the same proportion In which
deprediation is charged on the depreciable assets
acquired out of such contribution. Changes in
estimates are recognised prospectively over the
remaining life of the assets.

Grants in the form of revenue grant are recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Grants in the form of non-monetary assets such as
land and other resources are recognised at fair value
and presented as deferred income which income is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the axpected useful life in a pattern of consumption
of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Grants under "Service Export from India Scheme
(SEIS) are recognised when the conditions attached
with the grant have been satisfied and there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received. These are recognized in the period in
which the right to receive the same is established
I.e. the year during which the services eligible for
grant of SEIS have been performed.

3.10. Provislons

Provisions are recognized when the company has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to setile the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. A provision is reversed when it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

if the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase In the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost

3.11. Contingent Llabllitles / Assets:
Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosad
in Notes to the Accounts when the company has
possible obligation due to past events and existence
of the obligation depends upon occurrence or non-
occurrence of future events not wholly within the
control of the company.

Contingent liabilities are assessed continuously to
determine whather outflow of economic resources
have become probable. If the outflow becomes
probable then relative provision Is recognized in the
financial statements.

Where an entity is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected
to be met by other parties Is also treated as a
contingent liability. The entity recognises a provision
for the part of the obligation for which an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.

Contingent Assefs:

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial
statement or disclosed in Notes.

3.12. Employee benefits:
i} Defined Benefit Plan:

Provision for gratuity, leave encashment/avallment
and other terminal benefits is made on the basis of
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actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling and the return on plan assets excluding
interest (if applicable), is reflected immediately in
the statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognized in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognized in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss.

iij Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution to Provident Fund is recorded as
expenses on accrual basis.

iii) Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and expensad
as the related services are provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term employee benefits if the company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

3.13. Taxatlon

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
as reported In the Statement of Profit and Loss
and other comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Defarred tax

Deferred tax Is provided using the balance sheet
approach on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measurad at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting pericd.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The break-up of the major components of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance sheet
date is arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly In equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive Income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the Initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is induded in the
accounting for the business combination.

3.14. Impalrment:

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit/Fixed Assets) is estimated to be less
than Its carrving amount, the camrying amount of
the asset [or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is recognized
immediately In Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Recoverable amount Is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the assat for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and
Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impalrment
loss is treated as a revaluation Increase,

At the end of each reporting period, the company
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible
assets to determine whether there Is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated In order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
assef, the company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually or whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

3.15. Earnings per share:

Basic eamnings per equity are computed by dividing
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per aquity share is computad by dividing
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings
per equity share and also the weighted average

number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

3.16. FlInanclal Instruments:
i} Mon-derlvative financlal Instruments:
Mon-derivative finandial instruments consist of:

« .Fnancial assets Include cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, employee
advances, other advances, security deposits,
investments in equity securities and other
eligible current/non-current assets;

» Financial liabilities include long/short-term loan,
borrowings, trade payables, security deposits,
retention monies and other eligible current/
non-current liabilities.

Non derivative financial Instruments are
recognized initially at fair value including any
directly attributable transaction costs except
financial instrument measured at fair value
through Statement of Profit and Loss which are
initially measured at fair value. Finandlal assets
are derecognized when substantial risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset have
been transferred. In cases where substantial
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets are neither transferred nor retained,
financial assets are derecognized only when
the Company has not retained control over the
financial asset.

Subsequenttoinitial recognition, non-derivative
financial instruments are measured as described
below:

a) Investments

Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint
ventures, and assoclates are accounted for at
cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements. Where
applicable, provision is made for impairment in
the value of such investmentsin accordance with
Ind AS 36 — Impairment of Assets. The carrying
amount of these Investments is reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whather thare
Is any Indication of impairment. If any such
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indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
investment is estimated and impairment losses,
it any, are recognised in profit or loss.

Oninitial recognition of other equity investments
that is not held for trading, the Company has
irrevocably elected to present subsequent
changes In the investment’s fair value In OCl
{designated as FVOCI - equity investment).
This election is made on an Investment-
by- Investment basis. Such Investments are
initially measured at fair value and subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised In Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). Cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in OCI are not
transferred to profit or loss on disposal of such
investments. Instead, they are transferred within
equity. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Company's
right to receive payment Is established, provided
they represent a return on investment.

All other equity investiments are classified at
initial recognition as FVTPL unless an irrevocable
designation is made to classify the instrument
as FVOC for equities.

Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
paymentsthatare notquotedinanactive market.
They are presented as current assets, except for
those maturing later than 12 months after the
reporting date which are presented as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are initially
recognized at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Loans and
receivables comprise trade receivables, unbilled
revenues, staff advances, security deposits paid
and othar assets.

The company estimates the un-collectability
of accounts receivable by analysing historical
payment patterns, customer concentrations,
customer credit-worthiness and  current
economic trends. If the financial condition of a

customer deteriorates, evaluation is made for
additional allowances required, if any.

c) Trade and other payables:

Trade and other payables are initially recognized
at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For these fimancial instruments, the
carrying amounts are approximate fair valug duea
to the short term maturity of these instruments.

d) Security Deposits

Security Deposits are initially recognized at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

g} Tax Free Bonds:

Tax free bonds are recognized initially atfairvalue
net of transaction costs. In subsequent periods,
Tax free bonds are presented at amortised
cost using effective interest method. Interest
expenses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as financial expenses over the life
of the tax free bonds using effective interest
rate.

i} Impalrment of financlal assets

Financial assets, other than those at Failr Value
through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financlal asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the finandial
asset have been affected. For Available for Sale
{AFS) equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline In the falr value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

+ Significant finandial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;
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+ Breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency In interest or principal payments;

= Probability that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the
disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Certain categories of financial assets such as
trade recelvables are assessed for impairment on
individual basis. Objactive evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include
companies past experience of collecting payments,
as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
recelvables.

For finandial assets that are carmried at cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return fora
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivabies; such
impairment loss is reduced through the use of an
allowance account for respective financial asset.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, In a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through
Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

iiij De-recognition of financlal assets

The Company de-recognises a financial assat
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
if the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the finandal
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceads received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognized in other comprehensive Income
and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or
loss.

3.17. Segment Information

The Managing Director (MD) of the Company is
identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) as defined by Ind AS-108, "Operating
Segments” The MD of the Company evaluates
the segments based on standalone fnancial
statements. The Management considers "Port
Services” rendered In India as a single reportable
Business/Geographical segment.

3.18. Prlor Perlod

Errors of material amount relating to prior period(s)
are disclosed by a note with nature of prior period
errors, amount of correction of each such prior
period presented retrospectively, to the exient
practicable along with change in basic and diluted
earnings per share. However where retrospective
restatement Is not practicable for a particular period
then the circumstances that lead to the existence of
that condition and the description of how and from
where the error is corrected are disclosed in Notas
on Accounts.
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3.19. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception
whether a contract Is, or contains, a lease. That is, If
the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

As a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

I} Right-of-Use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets ("RoU
Assets”) at the commencement date of the lease
{i.e.,, the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re measurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date lass any
lease Incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets,

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Company at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
deprediation Is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are
also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in Section {I) Impairment of non-financial
assets.

Il) Lease Liabllities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including In substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company
and payments of penalties for tarminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs. In
calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
Is re measured If there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change In an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change In the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset. Lease
liabilities has been presented under the head
*Other Financial Liabllities” Lease liabilities has
been presented under the head “Other Financial
Liabilities”

) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases {Le,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basls over
the lease term.

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
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of an asset are dlassified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period In which they are eamed.

Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee, Amounts
due from lesseas under finance leases are recorded
as recelvables at the Company’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income Is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding In respect of the lease.

3.20. Current/Non-Current Classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet based on cument/non-current
classification. An asset is classified as current if:

[a) itis expected to be realized or sold or consumed
in the Company’s normal operating cyde;

{b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

{c} () it is expected to be realized within twelve
months after the reporting period; or

{d) (d) It is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is
restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-currant.
A liability is classified as current if;

{a) it Is expected to be settled in normal
operating cycle;

[b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

[c) it is expected to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period;

(d} it has no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition
of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s normal
operating cycle is twelve months.

3.21. Dlvidend distributlon to shareholders:

Dividends proposed by the board of directors
are recognized in the financial statements when
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.

3.22. Prepald expenses

Revenue expenditure under each head are
segregated into current year and prepaid wherever
the amount exceeds Rs.20,000/-.

3.23. Premla forforeclosure

Premia for foreclosure of loans or any part thereof is
recognised as finance cost in the year in which the
foreclosure is effected.

3.24. Liquidated damages
Liquidated damages is accounted on certainty basis.
3.25. Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents Include cash In hand, at
banks and demand deposits with banks, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and are considered part of the Company's
cash management system.
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment

{Rupees in lakhs)

S o Accumulated | Casrying
Particul valuess | Addis Bl |  @mying 5 | Depredation Disposall | depredation | Valweas
atAprl 1 adjmiments | valueasat imm'“hf HH"" for the year | adjustments | asalMar31, | atMar3),
2004 ' Mar31, 2025 f 2035 K5
Land 6395264 - -| 63952564 - - 6395264
Building, Sheds & Other | 21,999.52 11561 - 2211504 248036 48069 2961.04( 1975409
Structures
Wharves & Boundaries | 6448591 - -| 6448591 1272270 153635 1475904 | 5072686
Roads 004876 331.2% - 30,380.02 743519 261535 1005054 2032948
Railway Track & 879538| 1661250 75,407.38 451849 145463 507312 1943476
Signalling System
Docks Seawalls Piers & | 7203464 -l 7203454 14 946.55 937.10 1588365 5615098
Break Water
Navigational Aids ABLGT - - 381.67 31683 661 32345 5822
Viehides 198.41 1553 - 21304 12435 21.66 146,00 6793
Hectrical Installations 252197 33870 - 286062 1,626.08 148,57 1,774.65 1.085.97
Installation For Water, 306.19 - 306.19 184.51 B59 193.19 11300
Communication & Fire
Syst
Hectrical Appliance 261.52 230 - 284.53 181.24 18,98 - 200,22 8431
Cffice Equipment 457.85 50.18 - 50803 22054 5373 - 7418 1337
Furmiture & Fittings 1,150.01 023 - 1,150.24 T37.88 8978 - 827.66 3158
Computers 1,161.73 150.13 - 1,311.86 ML 7786 - 1,019.07 X279
Port Basin & Enfrance | 10496537 - -| 10496537 15219.76 934.% - 16,154.71| 8381045
Channel
Plant & Machinery 327238 163.53 - 3385.81 1357.38 17297 - 1,53035(  1,85546
Security Asset 93.16 - - 03.16 6865 761 - 7627 16.89
Total| 376,036.94| 1780069 0.00| 393837.63 63,081.74 8,565.51 0.00 T1,64725| 32219039
PreviousYear| 326,981.85| 49.066.20) -11.11| 376,036.04 5576052 732928 -B.08 63,081.72| 31295522

(i)

{ii)

a) TheCompany ownsland measuring 2802 4%9acresacquired from GoTN, TNEB, TIDCO and Salt Department,
Ministry of Commerce, out of which 278727 acres is under possession of the company and the balance
15.22 acres of land is vet to be taken possession of these lands were under litigation. Out of 15.22 acres of
land under litigation, two writ petitions W.P. No. 26041/2001 & 26042/2001 were filed by Tmt. Pappa & Thiru
P. Selvaraj from whom land were acquired against the land acquisition. The Hon'ble High Court of Madras
vide its Judgement dated 19.11.2019 quashed the Notification u/.s 4(1) and the Declaration u/s. 6 of the
Land Acquisition Act, in so far as the lands of the petitioners was concerned. The court advised to initate
land acquisition proceedings afresh by issuing a fresh Notification u/s.4(1) of the Land Acquisition Act.
b) The company has decided not to appeal against the Judgemnt of the Hon'ble High Court of Madras
dated 19.11.2019 In W.P. N0.26041/2001 and 26042/2001.

a) The company procured 950 acres of land from TIDCO, out of which 297.98 acres was registered in the
name of the company, 2.02 acres Govt poromboke lands for which alienation is in prograss and the
balance of 650 acres land, for which the title transfer is in process.

b) The company procured 1092.20 acres of land from TANGEDCO, out of which 995.05 acres was egistered

in the name of the company and the balance 97.15 acre Govt poromboke lands, alienation is in progress.
€) The company procured 712.42 acres of land from 5ait Department and the same was registered in the

name of the company.
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d} The company acquired 31.96 acres of land from GoTN, out of which 0.31 acre has been reacquired by
NHAI and the compensation was wrongly paid to Mr. Ethiraj. The issue has been taken up to High Court of
Madras who directed Mr Ethiraj to refund the compensation amount. The amount has been recovered and
depaosited in the sub-court, Ponneri. The action has been initiated through the District Collector, Tiruvallur
as directed by the Court to recover the deposited compensation amount from the Sub-court Ponneri.
e) The company acquired 0.62 acres of land from GoTN for railway siding and the Patta obtained in the
name of company”

Land measuring 40.11, 134.06, 116.75,95.08,42.41, 128.51 & 5.00 (total measuring 561.92 acres) allotted to
BOT operators viz. M/s. Ennore Tank Terminals Private Limited, M/s. Ennore Coal Terminal Private Limited
and M/s. SICAL tron Ore Terminals Limited, M/s. Adani Contalner Terminal Private Limited, M/s. Ennore Bulk
Terminal Private Limited, M/s. I0C LNG Private Ltd and M/s. Indian Oil Corporation Limited respectively.
The Port has leased 22,500 sqm (5.50 acres) to M/s I0CL for 60 years from 09.09.2024 for establishing Large
Format retail fuel outlet.

{Iii)

5. Capital Work- In- Progress
{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Balanceasat | Additions! Adjostments ::pﬁlud} Balance as at
April1, 2024 during the year M‘ﬂg‘"tﬂm""’m"" .| Mag 312025
CWIP - Building, Sheds & Other Structures 97292 1,090.26 - 2063.19
COWIP - Wharves & Boundaries - - - -
CWIP - Roads 289,569 4157 -331.26 -
CWIP - Railway Track & Signalling System 2063882 JO265 -16,612.50 472897
CWIP - Docks, Seawalls, Piers & Break Water - - - -
CWIP - Navigational Aids - - -
CWIP - Vehidles - - -
CWIP - Electrical Installations 1,802.18 44257 -398.70 1,846.05
CWIP - Port Basin & Entrance Channel 166023 405722 = 171745
CWIP - Plant & Machinery 7500 Q927.20 -163.53 83867
CWIP - Furniture & Fittings - - -
OWIP-Computer software - - - -
Total 2743885 8611.27 (17603.26) 18446.86
Previous Year 43763.51 32077.31 (48401.97) 27438.85
5. (A) Right of Use Assets
(Rupees in lakhs)
Gross camying Oezpoesal | | Gross carryng ﬁmu"mlm Depren- | f Accurmaisted | Camying Vakis
Parbeulars yalus z=at April piians Fhusiments | valisasd g s ahon for e depreciaton oo -l
1, 2024 Mar 31,205 |, T n | tevear Adustmente| ) hoe 31, 2005 | Mar31.205
Leased assets of 256480 - - 2,664 20 82628 G050 - 92577 1,639.03
Registered office
Total 2,564.80 = £ 2,564.80 | 826.26 | 99.50 3 92577 1,639.03
Previous Year 2.564.80 X = 2.564.80 | 730.39 | 95.87 = 826.26 1,738.53
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6. Intangible Assets - Software
(Rupees in lakhs)
. : . Aocumulsted - Carryng
Groszcamymg | ... Dheposal ! | Gross camyping 5 Depreciz Arcumulated degee-| |
Particuiare value 353t Apnl fioti adusmments | valueazal St tion for the E-!SWHJJ cidson a8 i et
1, 2004 Mer31, 2025 |, 58 R e Tl B
- ° gt 2om| ¥ - NH5
Intangitde Assets - | 1.232.79 12824 = 1,361.03 | 1.063.18 | 3290 - 1,096.08 26495
Softwars
Total 1,232.79 | 128.24 5 1,361.03 | 1,063.18| 32.90 = 1,096.08 | 264.95
Previous Year | 1,104.73 | 128.07 = 1,237.79 | 933.37 | 129.81 % 1.063.18 | 169.62
7. Investments
(Rupees in lakhs)
Asat Asat
Particulass Mar 31,2025 Mar 31,2024
Mon-Current
Investment carried at cost
Equity Shares of Kanniyakumari Port Limited 200 2.00
{20,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- per share; Previous year -
20,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- per share)
Investment carried at Falr Value Through Other
Comprehenslve Income
Equity Shares of Sethusamudram Corporation Lid # 3000.00 3000.00
Less: Provision for Dimunition in value of Investments -3000.00 -3000.00
Equity Shares of Chennai Ennore Port Road Company Lid 3400.00 3400.00
(3,40,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/~ per share; Previous year -
3,.40,00,000
Equity shares of Rs.10/- per share) 720,00 720.00

{72,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- per share; Previous year -
72,000,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- per share)

Investments in Renewable Energy Certificate 1.00 1.00
{66 Equity shares of Rs,1515.52/- per share; Previous year - 66
Equity shares of R5.1515.52 per share)

Quoted Investment

10000 shares in Dredging corporation of India 54.43 67.31
(Market value as at 31st March, 2025 - R5.54,42 500/, Prev Year
- Rs.67,30 500/

Total 4177.43 4190.31

#. As the dredging work is suspended from 14.09.2007 upon the direction of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India and as there is no
further progress in the project since then, the Management has provided for dimunition towards the Investments in Equity shares of
Sethusamudram Corporation Limited.
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8. Loans & Advances
(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Asat March 31,2025 | AsatMarch31,2024

MNon Current

Secured (considered good)

Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) 525.27 283.99

Advances to Employees (Vehicle Advance) 6.93 13.35
Tatal 53221 297.35

Current

Secured (considered good)

Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) 101.64 65.60

Advances to Employees (Vehicle Advance) 948 278

Advances to Employees (Others) 18.59 2054

Advances to Employees (Flood Advance) - 3350
Total 129.71 122.42

Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) pending Memo of Deposit of Title Deeds - Rs.248.77 lakhs
{Prov. Year NIl).
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0. Other Financial Assets

{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2025| AsatMarch 31,2024
Mon Current

Depaosits
- Advances other than Related Parties 183.16 183.16
- Advances to Related Parties 259.66 259.66
Total 442.82 44282

Current
-Short Term Deposits 286083 37.08
-Advances to Related Parties - -
Income Receivable 340.19 224.54
Total 3201.02 261.63

Short term deposit Rs.2860.83 Lakhs represent deposit in High Court being 75% of the arbitration award as per

the directions of Supreme Court.

10.Tax Expense
Tax recognised In Statement of profit and loss

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Current income tax
In respect of current year 26.556.13 2453263
Sub Total (A) 26,556.13 24, 532.63
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 326492 255849
Sub Total (B) 3,264.92 2,558.49
Total (A+B) 29821.05 27091.12
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Defined benefit plan acturial gains (losses) 9.73 7652
Change in fairvalue of Equity instruments 4.50 -13.67
Total 14.24 62.84

Movement in deferred tax balances during the year along with category wise break up

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant & Equipment (40329.11) {37,093.88)
Sub Total {40,329.11) {37,093.88)
Deferred tax Assets
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 1,359.75 1,359.75
MAT Credit entitlement 12,340.23 24.411.95
Movement in Defined Benefit Plan 174.80 133.66
Diminution in Investment 1.048.32 1.048.32
Others 408.59 465.18
Sub Total 15331.68 27418.86
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Llabllities) (24,997.43) (9,675.02)
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11. Other Assets

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
Non-Current
Advance to Contractors - -
Advance for Capital Expenditure 678344 7417.61
Prepaid Lease Rental 176.56 8294
Deferred Employee Cost 257.09 129.08
Defined Benefit Plan Asset/(Liabilities) - Gratuity - 5.24
Defined Benefit Plan Asset/ (Liabilities) Earned Leave Encashment - -
Total T217.09 7634.87
Current
Advance to Contractors 1,741.02 7069
Prepaid Expenses 23553 13558
G5T Input Credit 1,106.07 681.59
Other Assets - -
Total 3082.63 1587.86

Advance for Capital expenditure under Non-current includes Rs4509.50 lakhs being excess payment to Project
contractors referred to High Court of Madras at the time of taking over the Assets and liabilities from Chiennai Port Trust
on 22.06.2001.

12. Trade Receivables

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 Asat Mar 31,2024
Trade receivables
Unsecured
Considered good 935257 7.537.95
Credit Impaired 380122 389122
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts (expected credit loss) -3,891.22 -3,891.22
Total 9352.57 7537.95
13. A. Cash & Cash Equivalents (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 21, 2025 AsatMar 31,2024
Cash on hand 058 0.35
Cheques, Drafts on hand - -
Balances with Banks 494677 207984
Sub-total (A) 4947.35 2080.19
Other Bank Balances
- Term Deposit
- Less than 3 months 10,100.00 2,000.00
Tatal 15047.35 4080.19

13. B. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 AsatMar 31,2024
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
-Term Depaosit
- Mora than 3 months but less than 12 months 13,000.00 8,000.00
Total 13000.00 8000.00
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14. Current Tax Assets

{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Asat Mar 31, 2025 As atMar 31, 2024
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 121,452.50 106,971.36
Provision for Income Tax -118,194.16 -103,709.75
Total 3258.35 3261.60
15. Equity Share Capital (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
Authorized
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
500,000,000 equity shares 50,000.00 50,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
300,000,000 equity shares 30,000.00 30,000 00
30,000.00 30,000.00
Reconciliation of Share Capital:
Particul As at Mar 31, 2025
cuiars Mo of Shares Amount
Opening Equity Shares 300000000 3000000000
Add: - No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscribed during the year - -
Clnslng balance 300000000 3000000000
As at Mar 31, 2024
Peticutns Mo of Shares Amount
Opening Equity Shares 300000000 3000000000
Add: - No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscribed during the year - -
Closing balance 300000000 3000000000

Shares in the Company held by shareholder holding mo

re than 5 percent

Name of the Shareholder

%

As at Mar 31, 2025

As at Mar 31, 2024

Chennai Port Authority

100%

30,000

30,000

Government of India disinvested its entire Equity shares held in the company to Chennai Port Authority through Share

Purchase Agreement entered on 25.03.2020.
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16. Borrowings

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31,2025 AsatMar 31,2024
SECURED - LONG TERM
Term Loan
Chennai Port Trust 11,301.25 13.602.50
Tax Free Bonds
(1) Series 2012-13 1,166.95 1, 16602
{ii) Series 2013-14 28,522.66 28,514.67
Unsecured - Non Current
Term Loan
Loan From HDFC Bank SO0.00 1,500.00
Total 41490.86 44783.19
Secured - Current
Current maturies of non current debt
- Chennai Port Authority 230125 2301.25
- Tax Free Bonds - Series 2013-14 i
- Tax Free Bonds - Series 2012-13 =] =
Unsecured - Non Current
Current maturies of non current debt
Loan From HDFC Bank 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 3301.25 3301.25

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds

() Redeemable at par, 117156 Nos of 15 Year
bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/- each amounting
to Rs.11,71,56,000/- are due on 25.03.2028 with
Iinterest rates @ 7.51% and 7.67% to Retail Investors
and 7.01% and 7.17% to others respectively, payable
annually. The bonds are secured against the assets
of the company viz. Small Craft Jetiy -1, 2 and 3 and
General Cargo Berth pursuant to the terms of the
Bond Trust Deed registered on 25.03.2013.

(i) Redeemable at par, 794951 Nos of 10 Year
Bonds of Face value - Rs.1000/- each amounting to
Rs.70,40.51,000/- were due on 25.03.2024 and the
same was repaid to the bondhoders on due date.
Further, 1916630 Nos of 15 Year bonds of Face Value
- Rs.1000/- each amounting to Rs.191,66,30,000/-
ara due on 25.03.2029 and 943142 Nos of 20 Year
Bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/- each amount to
Rs.94.31,42,000/- are due on 25.03.2034 with interest
rates @ 8.61%, 9% and 9% respectively to Retall
Investors and 8.36%, 8.75% and 8.75% respectively
1o others, payable annually. The bonds are secured
against the assets of the company viz. North Break
Water pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed

registered on 19.03.2014.

Term loan from Chennal Port Trust

Term Loan due to Chennai Port Trust converted at
the time of taken over of assets & liabilities in the year
2001-02 and is repayable in 60 Equated Quarterly
instalments commencing from 30.06.2012. The
instalments are paid up to date during this period.
The above loan is secured by hypothecation of
spedifically earmarked immovable fixed assets of the
company. The company has borrowed an additional
amount of Rs.70 ors and Rs 20 as on 18.06.2018
and 29.09.2018 respectively on the same terms and
conditions of the original loan.

Term loan from HDFC Bank

HDFC Bank has sanctioned Unsecured Rupee Term
Loan of Rs.50 Crore on 27th July 2021 @ Interest
rate of 91 days T Bill Plus 1.80% per annum with
reset quarterly repayable within Five year including
one year moratorium. During the year 2021-22, the
Company has availed Rs.40 Cr for Capital Projects.
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17. Other Financial Liabilities

(Rupeas in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 AsatMar 31,2024
Long Term
Security Deposits 671.47 57069
Retention Money Payable - -
Total 671.47 570.69
Current
Security Deposits 410,05 148.11
Retention Money Payable 169.69 156.10
Other Liabilities 158.84 127.35
Total 738.58 431.55
18. Provisions (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
Current
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 80.80 61.50
Gratuity 239 -
Performance Related Pay 27100 258.00
Sub Total (A) 375.71 319.50
OTHER
Expenses
- Revenue 3073.02 855069
- Capital 380.50 -
Sub Total (B) 3453.52 8550.69
Total{A+B) 3829.23 8870.19
19. Other Liabilities {Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars AsatMar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
Mon-Current
Income Received in Advance - -
Advance Lease Charges £,385.19 5,882.87
Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Security Deposits 483.66 507.65
Total 6868.85 6390.52
Curremt
Income Received in Advance 70807 61035
Other Statutory Payvables 431935 273760
Advance Received from Customers 269797 248428
Advance Lease Charges 440.05 462,88
Other Liabilities 193.98 17040
Total 8359.43 6465.51

Advance Lease Charges includes Rs.5094.01 lakhs under Non-Current represents an amount from Indian Oil LNG Private
Limited towards upfront licence fees for 20 years for 5,20,000 sq.m. Land allotted for the construction of LNG Terminal as

per the Licence Agreement dated 31st July 2015,
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20. Trade Payables (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 37, 2025 As atMar 31,2024
Total outstanding dues to Micro & Small Enterprises 638.48 1,605.69
Total outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises 5,001.84 6,536.62
Total 5730.33 8142.32
* Rs.13.82 lakhs disputed interest due thereon
21. Revenue From Operations {Rupees in lakhs)
For the year ended | For the year ended
FarHctars Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2023
Lease Income
Compaosite Tariff on Coal 34.189.70 33303.35
Estate Income 282696 2617.24
Revenue Share 42 985.60 39,097.05
Marine Services
Vessel Related Income 23.887.75 2371762
Cargo Related Service
Wharfage 7,206.15 548524
Royalty 1,996.11 1,616.38
Other Operating Revenues
Other Services 74931 385.18
Total 113,841.57 106,221.97
22. Other Income (Rupeas in lakhs)
For the yearended | For the year ended
Faticulars Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31,2024
Interest from Banks 1,39592 1,197.85
Interest on Staff Advances 4950 31.31
Interest - Others 264.42 B7.40
Interest on IT Refund - 118.02
Other non operating Income
Personnel & Vehicle Entry Pass 101.10 102.94
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 1.02
Other Income 372.02 383.08
Total 2182.96 1921.62
23. Operating Cost
{Rupees in lakhs)
For the rended | Forthe year ended
Farticuars Mar ::a 2025 Mar 31,2024
Tirne Charter Crafts 3,398.60 3.245.08
Consultancy Services - Operations 128.09 109.9%
Power & Water charges 34887 33796
Environment 446.60 50810
Research & Development Expenses - 28.88
Fuel Expense 1,169.48 1,358.55
Manning Services 966.29 54406
Survey & Maintenance Dredging 9.96 125.04
Repairs and Maintenance 1.651.12 1,260.8%9
Incentive 238243 2.354.96
Insurance 33324 303.13
Insurance 10,834.67 10,476.64
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24, Employee Benefit Expenses

(Rupees in lakhs)

For the yearended | Forthe year ended
Pfcaiv Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31,2024
Salaries and Wages 1,744.65 1,531.15
Contribution to Provident Fund 13437 12548
staff welfare expenses 14.26 14.45
Performance Related Pay 27973 26042
Employee Medical expenses 60.38 42.27
Terminal Benefits 20537 100.50
Total 2438.75 2074.27
25. Finance Cost {Rupees in lakhs)
For the year ended | Forthe year ended
Eaftcars Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31,2024
Interest Expense ;
- From Banks 150.36 150.60
- Tax Free Bonds - 2012-13 8960 8392
- Tax Free Bonds- 2013-14 254199 3.229.17
- Others 1,580.37 2.792.86
Other Borrowing Costs :
- Tax Free Bond Expenses 449 6.07
Total 4366.81 6262.61
26. Depreciation And Amortization Expenses (Rupees in lakhs)
For the year ended | Forthe year ended
Pertniians Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31,2024
Depreciation / Amortisation for the year
Tangible Assets 856551 732928
Right- of- Use Assets 99.50 95.87
Intagible Assets 3290 12981
Total 8697.91 7554.97
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27. Other Expenses

{Rupees in lakhs)

For the yearended | Forthe year ended
e Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31,2024

AMC - Software Expenses 437.15 36558
- Statutory audit 7.00 6.00

- Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.00

- Payment for other Services 2.60 1.60

- Reimbursement of expenses 0.70 0.60
Electricity & Water Charges 54.87 126.83
Legal & Professional Charges 256.30 315.33
Miscellaneous Expense 412.68 283.03
Printing and stationery 1593 21.78
Rent, Rates & Taxes 163.45 Frao
Safety & security expenses 1.411.50 1.321.70
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 1.444.81 983.07
Subscription & Membership fees 25791 162.32
Communication Expenses 45.96 77.19
Travelling and conveyance 57.02 34.79
Vehicle running expenses 389.58 37365
Advertising and promotional expenses 124.63 251.07
Manning Contract - Admin 84971 7119
Provision for Expected Credit Loss - 141
Total 5932.79 5115.95

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Where the company covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, the following shall be disclosed

(a)

with regard to CSR activities
{Rupaes in lakhs)
:; Name of the activity Amount spent

)] The amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 1,255.04
{ii} | Amount of expenditure incurred 74511
(iii} | Shortfall at the end of the year, 509.92
(iv) | Total of previous years shortfall Mo shortfall
(v} | Reason of shortfall Mot Applicable
(wi) | Nature of CSR activities, Education, Health
Care, Rural

Development etc,

{vii) | Details of related party transactions,e.g. contribution to a trust controlled by the MIL

company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relavant accounting standard
{viii] | Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a 509.92

separately

contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown
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b) Amount spent during the yearon :

{Rupees in lakhs)

:n‘ Particulars Yet to be pald In Cash
] Construction / acquisition of any asset -
{ii) on purposes other than (i) above 74511
Total 74511
28. Exceptional Items (Rupeas in lakhs)
For the year ended | Forthe yearended
Particulus Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31,2024
Exceptional Items - Shore Protection Structure - -
Total - -
29, Earnings per Share
For the year ended | For the year ended
L Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 5.390,602,5%2.45 4,945,103 406.91
Weighted average number of shares - Basic 300000000 300000000
Weighted average number of shares - Diluted 300000000 300000000
Earnings per Share - Basic 17.98 1652
Earnings per Share - Diluted 17.98 16.52
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3. Additional information pursuant to Schedule
1ll of the Companles Act, 2013

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 30 : Disclosure Notes :

1. Commitments:

Capltal Commitments: Sl Particulars 2024-25 | 2023-24
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to A ExpendIture: in Foreign
be executed on Capital Expenditure {net of HITEnEY 4
advances) and not provided for Rs.56115.73 i. Professional and - -
lakhs (Previous Year. Rs.8378.61 lakhs) consultancy fee
2. Payment to the Statutory Auditors il. Tours and Travels 570 0.63
(Rupees in Lakhs) iil. Interest on FCL
Particulars 2024-25 | 2023-24 including Hedging - -
Audit Fees 700 | 6.00 Iv. Others : :
Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.00 B |Earnings In Foreign) - -
Certification fees 260 | 160 Exchangs
Relmbursements: 0.70 0.60
-Out of Pocket Expenses
4. Information In respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31st March 2025:
{Rupees in Lakhs)
sl Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
1 | Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
a) Principal Amount 638.48 1605.69
b) Interest due thereon = =
2 | Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Mico, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount paid Nil Nil
1o the supplier beyond the appointed day;
3 | Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nil
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
4 | Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nil Nil
5 | Amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the inferest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a Nil Nil
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Classification of Vendors into Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been made to the extent information
Is available with the Company
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Disclosure requirements of Indlan Accounting Standards

5. Disclosures In respect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

5.1 Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2025)

Financial
Financlal
assets/ ’ Total
Amortized | At liabllities at Total fair
Particulars liabilitles at fair carrylng
cost Cost falrvalue value
value through value
rofit or loss Shtough
P ocl
Assets:
Non-current investment (Ref Note No.7) - 200 A121.00 54.43 4177 A3 417743
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Ref Note No.134) 15047.35 = - - 1504735 15047 35
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash 13000.00 = - - 13000.00 13000.00
equivalents {Refer Note No. 13B)
Trade Receivable (Ref Note No. 12) §9352.57 = = - 935257 935257
Loans and Advances (Ref Note No. 8) 561.92 - - - 661.92 661.92
Other Financial Assets (Ref Note No. 9) 3643.85 - Ie43.85 3643.85
Liabilities:
Term loan from Chennai Port Trust 13602.50 - - - 13602.50 13602.50
(Ref Note No. 16)
Tax Free bonds (Ref Mote No. 16) 29689.61 - - - 2968961 29689.61
Loan from HDFC Bank (Ref Note Mo.16) 1500.00 - - - 1500.00 1500.00
Trade Payables-Outstanding dues to 63848 - - - 638.48 63348
Micro & Small Enterprises (Ref Note No. 20)
Trade Payables -Outstanding dues to Creditors 5091.84 - - - 5091.84 5091.84
other than Micro & Small Enterprises
(Ref Note Mo, 20)
Other Ainandal Liabilities (Ref Note No.17) 141004 - - - 1410.04 141004
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{Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2024)

No.17)

Financlal assets Financial
at | /Wabllities assats] | potal
Partlculars Am:rtﬁized Cost at falr value I?;Er;f::t carrying Tuvt:lluler
through profit through value
orloss ocl
Assets:
Mon-current Investment (Raf Nofe 2.00 4121.00 67.31 419031 4190.31
No.7)
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Ref Note 408019 - - 408019 408019
NO.T3A)
Bank balances other than Cash and BOOO.OO | - - 8000.00 8000.00
Cash equivalents (Refer Note No. 13B)
Trade Receivable (Ref Nate No. 12) 753795 - - 7537.85 753795
Loans and Advances (Ref Note No. 8) 41977 - Z 41077 419.77
Other Financial Assets J0445| - - - 70445 70445
(Ref Note No. 9)
Liabllities:
Term loan from Chennal Port Trust 15903.75 | - - 15903.75 15803.75
{Ref Note No. 16)
Tax Free bonds (Ref Note No. 16) 2068060 | - - 20680.60 2068069
Loan from HDFC Bank (Ref Note No.16) 250000 - - - 250000 2500.00
Trade Payables -Outstanding dues to 160568 - = - 1605.60 1605.60
Micro & Small Enterprises (Ref Note
No. 20)
Trade Payables-Outstanding dues to 653662 | - - - 653662 653662
Creditors other than Micro & Small
Enterprises (Ref Note No. 20)
Other Financial Liabilities (Ref Note 100224 | - - 1002.24 1002.24

5.2. FalrValue Hlerarchy

s Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
s Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (L.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
s Level 3- Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The following tables presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the year 31.03.2025 Fortheyear 31.03.2024
Level

Particulars Leval1 | Leval2 Level 3 Total Level 1 2 Level 3 Total
Financlal Assets
Investments in unquoted - - | 412300 | 4.123.00 - - 1 4123.00 4.123.00
equity instruments
Investments in quoted
aquity instruments 54.43 - 5443 67.31 - - 67.31
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5.3 Flnanclal risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities are exposed to limited financial
risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability
of finandal markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future
cash flow of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market price.

The Company has Interest rate risk as the Market
risk. The Company does not have price risk on its
financial instruments since Company does not have
any derivative financial asset.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial Instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The company has interest rate risk on the loans
cbtained from Chennal Port Trust as the annual
interest rate reset is pegged to the movement in
MCLR rate of State Bank of India.

The company has availed Term loan from HDFC
bank as the annual interest rate reset is pegged to
the movement In 21 days T Bills.

As at the reporting date, the interest rate profile
of the companys interest-bearing finandal
instruments are as follows:

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 31 3
Mar 2025 | Mar 2024

Financial Asset
- Fixed Digposit with Bank 2310000 10000.00
- Employee Advance 64333 365.73
Financial Liabilities
- Tax Free Bonds 2968961 | 29680.69
Variable Rate Instruments
- Loan from Chennai Port Trust 1360250 15903.75
- Foreign Currency Loan ” :
-HDFC Bank 150000  2500.00

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation
by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Since
the company generally stipulates pre-payment with
respect to its Income for major port services, thereis
normally no credit offered to anyone. In such cases
there is no credit default risk. However, where the
company Is rendering certain ancillary / support services
the invoices are raised, as and when the services are
rendered and in cases of disagreement on user charges,
licence fee etc. on settlament of disputes and in thase
cases, there could be an element of credit default risk.

Trade Recelvables

The company has outstanding trade receivables
amounting to Rs.9352.57 lakhs and Rs.7537.95 lakhs
asof March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are
derived from revenue accrual from customers.
Since most of the port services are rendered on
pre-recovery basis by collecting In advance, Trade
receivable constitutes the unpaid Revenue dues
miostly towards Estate rentals and allied services.
Provision for disputed debts are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and provided for on a case-to-
case basis

The Company filed its daim of Rs.65.22 cr in Form
C on 24.07.2023 before the liquidator of SIOTL
in the capacity of an operational creditor. The
said claim was rejected partially by the liquidator
vide e-mail dated 03.08.2023 and the same was
appealed before NCLT. Out of claim of Rs.65.29 cr
before Liquidator, an amount of Rs.9.37 cr towards
Arrears on Licence fee, Rs.14.97cr towards Interest
on delayed payments and Rs.2.05 cr towards Others
etc, were not recognised in the books of accounts
as per accounting policy.

Credit risk exposure

An age-wise analysis of trade receivables at each
reporting date Is summarized below:
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{Amount in Lakhs as of 31st March 2025)

payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

Partlculars

Less
thané
months

6
months
-1 year

1-2
Years

2-3years

More than
3 years

Total

(il Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered good

6003.73

87.28

4.11

0.33

3253

6127.09

(il Undisputed Trade Receivables
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired

3891.22

3891.22

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
- considered good

68.90

220.98

359.45

149.75

2425.50

322458

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase
in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables
- credit impaired

{Amount In Lakhs as of 315t March 2024)

Particulars

payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

Less
thané
months

6
months
-1 year

1-2
Years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables
- considered good

4516.10

19.90

30.73

3.24

33.27

4603.24

(ii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables which have
significant increase in credit risk

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - credit impaired

91555

2975.67

3891.22

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
— considered good

274.56

84.89

149.75

638.38

1787.12

2934.70

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase
in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables
- credit impaired

Provision for impairment of trade receivables on a case-to-case basis is made in the year when recoverabllity is
assessed as doubtful based on the recovery analysis performed by the company or is based on the likely outcome
of disputes over the interpretation of certain dauses in the concessionaire agreements. The company considers
all other financial assets which are not impaired and past due for each reporting date under review are of good

credit quality.
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Other financial assets

Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents is
considered negligible because our counterparties
are banks. We consider the credit guality of term
deposits with banks which are subjected to the
regulatory oversight of the Reserve Bank of India to
be good, and we review these banking relationships
on an ongoing basis. Credit risk related to employee
loans are considered negligible since loans are
secured either as mortgage of the title deed of
the property or by way of hypothecation of the
vehicle for which these loans have been granted
to the employees. Besides, the company has
appropriation right over the terminal beneafits due
to the employees. Therefore, there is no requirement
for impairment provision for these financial assets.
We consider all the above finandial assets as at the
reporting dates to be of good credit quality.

c) Liquldity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of
monthly and yearly projections. The company’s
principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash
equivalents, cash generated from operations,

We manage our liquidity needs by continuously
monitoring cash inflows and by maintaining

adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash
requirements are compared to available cash in
order to determine any shortfalls.

The short-term liquidity requirement consists
mainly of resources requirad to settle trade payables,
expenses payable, employee dues, repayment of
current maturities of loans, etc, arising during the
normal course of business as of each reporting
date. We maintain sufficient balance in cash and
cash equivalents to meet our shart term liquidity
requirements.

We assess long-term liquidity requirements on
a pericdical basls and manage them through
internal accruals. Our non-current liabilities include
borrowings from Chennai Port trust, Tax Free Bonds,
and Term loan from HODFC Bank, Retention money
payable and Security deposits.

The table below provides details regarding the
contractual maturities of non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the company can be
required to pay. The table includes both principal &
interest cash flows.

{Amount in Lakhs as of March 31, 2025)

S Less than 6 G months Yo g Sx ek Maorethan s tal
maonths to 1 year years
Chennai Port Authority Loan 115062 1150.62 460248 460248 209630 13602.50
Loan from HOFC Bank S500.00 500.00 500.00 - - 1500.00
Tax Free Bonds - - 1171.56 1916630 9351.75 29689.61
Retention money 169.69 - - - - 169.69
Security Deposits - 41005 - 67147 1081.52
Other Liabilities - 158.84 - - - 158.84
Total 1820.31 2219.51 6274.04 23768.78 12119.52 46202.16
{Amount In Lakhs as of March 31, 2024)
Particulars LRSS Sisurk || 6 eonties S 1-3 years 3-5 years Marethan Total
6 months 1 year 5 years
Chennai Port Authority Loan 1150.62 1150.62 460248 460248 4397.55 15903.75
Loan from HOFC Bank 500.00 500.00 1500.00 - - 2500.00
Tax Free Bonds - - - 2033232 9348.37 29680.69
Retention money 156.10 - = - z 156.10
Security Deposits - 14811 - 570,69 718.80
Other Liabilities - 12735 - - - 127.35
Total 1806.72 1926.08 610248 24934.80 14316.61 49086.69
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Trade Payables agelng schedule for the FY 24-25

{Amount in Lakhs

Outstanding for following perlods from due
date of payment
Particulars Less More Total
than la:rs &3 than
1 Year ¥ YEArs | 3vears
(i) MSME 638.48 - - - 638.48
(ii) Others 447047 197 76 104.74 309.87 5091.84
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - -
Trade Payables ageing schedule for the FY 23-24
(Amount in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following perlods from due
date of payment
Particulars Less 12 2.3 More Tatal
than S S than
1 Year ¥ ¥ 3 years
(i) MSME 1605.69 - - - 1605.69
(i) Others 6121.30 104.81 141.82 168.60 6536.62
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME z Z S = -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - -

6. Disclosure In respect of Indlan Accounting
Standard (Ind AS}-21 “The Effects of changes
In Forelgn Exchange Rates”

The amount of exchange differences (net)
debited to the Statement of Profit & Loss is NIL
(Previous year - NIL) under Other Expenses.

7. Disclosure In respect of Indlan Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-36 “Impalrment of assets”

During the year, the company has reviewed
its Fixed Assets for impairment of assets as per
Ind AS-36 and has observed no impairment of
assets in the current Financial Year NIl (Previous
year — NIL).

8. Disclosure In respect of Indian Accounting

Standard (Ind AS)-20 “Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance”
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Grant recelved for 2024-25 2023-24
Government Grants - -
Total Grants Recelved - -

9. Disclosure In respect of Indlan Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-19 "Employee Benefits”

A. General description of varlous employee’s
benefit schemes are as under:

a) Provident Fund:

The Company's Provident Fund is deposited with
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The
Company pays fixed contribution to provident fund
at pre-determined rate.

b) Gratuity:

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan.
Every employee who has rendered continuous
service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity
@ 15 days salary (15/26 x last drawn basic pay plus
dearness allowance} for each completed year of
service on superannuation, resignation, termination,
and disablement or on death. A trust has beenformed
for this purpose. This scheme Is being managed by
the Life Insurance Corporation of india (LIC) for which
the company has taken a Master Policy.
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The scheme is funded by the company and the
contributions are paid to the insurer, e, the Life
Insurance Corporation of India as per the demand
made by them. The recognition of net obligation
for the defined benefit plan and the disclosure of
information as required under Ind A5-19 Is made in
accordance with the actuarial valuation report.

C) Superannuation Scheme:

The Company has implemented a nen-contributory
Employee’s Group Superannuation Pension Scheme
which is also managed by LIC of India. Contributions
@12% of Basic Pay plus dearness allowance of the
enrolled employee is made to the Corporation.

The contribution to the scheme for the period
Is grouped under Employee Cost on accrual
basis. In respect of employees on deputation,
pension contribution Is calculated as per lending
organization/Govt. of India Rules and Is accounted
for on accrual basis.

d) Leave:

The company provides for Earmned Leave benefits
and Half-Pay Leave to the employses of the
company, which accrue annually at 30 days & 20
days respectively. The Earmned Leave is encashable
once in a calendar year while in service for a period
of maximum 30 days as per eligibility and on
Superannuation, the maximum limited to 300 days.

The liability on Eamed leave is recognized on the
basis of actuarial valuation.

B. b. The summarized position of varlous
defined benefits recognized In the Statement
of Profit & Loss, Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI) and Balance Sheet & other disclasures are
as under;

{Amount in Lakhs)
Leave
Particulars ;:; Em’ Encashment
(Funded)
Defined Benefit CY. | 594.04 522.12
Obligation BY. 502.47 454.15
Fair Value of Plan CY.| 57043 441.32
Assets PY. 50771 392.65
Funded Status cY. 23.91 80.80
[Surplus/{Deficit)] PY. {5.24) 61.50

Leave
Particulars ;T:::; Encashment
(Funded)
C.Y. -
Effect of asset ceiling
PY. -
Net Defined Benefit | C.Y. 23.91 80.80
Assets/(Liabllitles) | py, (5.24) 61.50

Movement in defined benefit obllgation
(Amount in Lakhs)

Leave
Particulars ;T:::g; Encashment
(Funded)
Defined benefit C.Y. 502.47 454.15
obligation - PY
Beginning of the year 440.56 380.82
) C.Y. 3362 31.49
Current service cost
PY. 32.11 39.26
C.Y. 35.96 32.55
Interest Cost
PY. 30.87 2336
C.Y. 7.39 5.4
Benefits Paid { ] 1547)
PY. [58.99) (157.37)
Re-measurements- | &Y. 29.38 2.41
actuarial loss/(gain) | py. 57.93 159.08
Defined benefit C.Y. 594.04 52212
obligation-Endof |,
ik 502.48 45415

the year

Movement In plan asset

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Leave
Particulars ;um':du::] Encashment
(Funded)

Fair value of plan|CY.| 507.72 392.65
assets at beginning of 49179 41457

BY.
year

C.Y. 37.45 28.97
Interest income

BEY. 36.19 2927
Emph:ﬂ:_ir E."f. 3“.84 23.59
contributions PY. 39.07 107.81

C.Y. .39 S47
Benefits paid o0 [ J

BY. [58.99) (157.37)
H.E_meam rem (i C."l" 1-52 1 -2?
Return on plan assets | py (033) (162)
Fa ir WEUE Df phn C."I". 5?“.1.3 441 .32
assets atend of year | py. 507.72 39265




25" ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss Mortality 10.00% 50287 454.73
and Other Comprehensive Income Pl _10.00% 502.07 454.07
(Amount In Lakhs) Actuarial Assumption
Gratulty | Leave
Particulars Gratuilty Leave
(Funded) | (Funded) Particulars (Funded) | (Funded)
C.Y. 33.62 31.49
Current service cost Method used CY- i i
PY. 3211 30.26 PY. PUC PUC
Past Service Cost — Plan | C.Y. ; - C.Y. 6.79% 6.79%
Amendment PY. 1 ] Bisamt e pY. | 721% 7%
C.Y. 3 i Rate of salary C.Y. 5% 5%
Curtailment cost/{credit) oy | i increase PY. 5% Sog
CY. + i Rate of retumof | Y. - 2
Settlement cost/{credit) = T 1 plan Asset PY. - 5
Service Cost (A) £fy 3342, J1A [ T}: !II:? ::: 1:»: :u }:_
e Lo A
PY. 3211 3926 - = 3
Net Interest on  Net|cy GAD) 557 Retirement Age C.Y. | 60Years 60 Years
Defined Benefit Liability/ [—— PR | NOVewn | 60 Yo
(assets) (B) Y. (531) (5.21) Average Future | C.Y. 13.02 13.02
Cost Recognized In P&L | C.Y.| 3213  43.19 s e 1345 128
(A+B) PY. 2679 19406 IALM IALM
CY. | (2012-14) |(2012-14)
Total Remeasurement
in OCI CY.| 27.86 * Table Table
Mortality rate -
BY. 58.26 - 1ALM IALM
Sensitivity Analysis R EZTE ,-E bﬁ [EB} Q?gg;gﬂ]
(Amount in Lakhs as of March 31, 2025) = N
Y. i 0
Changein | Gratuity | Leave Sty Rt Noexplicit | . o
ASEampiy Assumption | (Funded) | (Funded) g PY. | loading ?Uzing
;E:ti:ry growth 1.00% 631.27 548.18  Leave T E?‘ i} T 'l'l] Dd‘i&:
-1.00% 557.58 |  497.77 Encashment s
Attrition rate 1.00% 603.09 523.76 Rate during PY. : 10.00%
-1.00% S583.01 520.36 employment
Attrition rate 1.00% 547.89 301.09 Leave C.Y. = 2.00%
-1.00% 646.60 545.02 Availment Rate | PY. - 2.00%
Mortality 10.00%: 59447 522,20
et O DE A e Category of investment In Plan assets
% of falr value of plan
Category of Investment
(Amount in Lakhs as of March 31, 2024) Hssats
Insurance Policies 100%
Changein | Gratulty Leave
Assumption |, umption | (Funded) | (Funded) 10. Disclosure In respect of Indlan Accounting
Salary L0 e P standard (Ind AS)-108:"Operating Segments
growth rate -1.0004 46637 43242 The company primarily operates in one segment -
Attrition rate 1.00% 5113 456.01 Port Services and thereis noreportable Geographical
-1.00% 49262| 45215 segment either.
Attrition rate 1.00% 461.59 43541 The Company derives revenues from the following
-1.00% >49.18 474.58 customers which accounts for 10% or more of
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Company’s revenues. In respect of the other
customers, thelr individual share is less than 10% of

the company’s revenues

{Amount in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Customer ended ended

31 March 2025 |31 March 2024
THPGCL (erstwhile 1677540 19508.14
TANGEDCO)
NTECL {(JV of 1741429 1379511
THPGCL &NTPCL)
Ennore Coal 2061390 1894553
Terminal Private
Limited
Adani Ennore 13076.85 1231106
Container
Terminal Pvt Litd

11. Disclosure In respect of Indlan Accounting
Standard 23 “Borrowing Costs”

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year is NIL
(Previous Year Rs.131.23 lakhs) in the respective
carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment /
Capital works in Progress (CWIP).

12. Disclosure In respect of Indlan Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Partles Disclosures”

a. List of Related parties:

Key Managerlal Persons:

Name Designation
Shri Sunil Paliwal, 145, Chairman
Smit. J.D. Irene Cynthia, 1AS., | Managing Director
Shri. S Viswanathan, IAS, Mominee Director
ShrivmvSsubbaRao, Independent Director
FCA DISAICAD {up to 05.11.2024)
Shri .M Narayanan, Independent Director
FCA,CPA PGDM {from 13.11.2024)
Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma | Independent Director
Smit. Sarla Balagopal, Independent Director
IRTS {Retd.)
Smit. Kavita Satvi Chief Anancial Officer
Smit. Jayalakshmi Srintvasan | Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer (up to
30.04.2025)

Compensation of key management personnel

(Amount in Lakhs)

ke For the
’ year ended
Partlculars :ln:i: March 31,
31 2005 | W24

Remuneration and Short- 117.24 103.70
term benefit
Post-employment benefits 12.56 9.26
Other long-term benefits - -
Share based payments - -
Sitting fee 24.40 15.40
Total 154.20 128.36
Recovery of Loans & - -
Advances during the year
Advances released during - -
the year
Closing Balance of Loans & - -
Advances

b. Other Entitles:

- M/s.Kannlyakumarl Port Limited

C. Chennal Port trust

Transactlon with Related Partles:
(Amount in Lakhs)

For the For the
year ended | year ended
Particutars March31, | March31,
2025 2024

Interest Paid 155320 178242
Loan Repaid 2301.25 2301.25
Lease Rent Expenses 52.60 50.36
Project Management 144.91 4343
Services
Interim & Final Dividend 39000.00 24000.00
Manpower 609.86 47293
Cthers 161.78 129.72
Closing Balance of Term 13602.50 15803.75
Loan
Lease Rent — Deposit 259.66 259.66
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13. Disclosurein respect of Indian
Accounting standard (Ind AS) 116
“Leases”

a. Operating lease

1) As alLesses

* Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases excluding upfront

fee payments
(Amount In Lakhs)
For the For the
year ended | year ended
Rarticulaes March 31, | March 31,
2025 2024

Mot later than 1 year - -

Later than 1 year and not - -

later than 5 years
Later than 5 years - -
(Amount In Lakhs)
For the For the
year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March31,
2025 2024

Minimum lease payments - -

Leasing arrangement:

The company has leased office premises for 30 years
from Chennai Port Trust on upfront premium lease
payments.

ll. Asalessor

= Future minimum |ease receivables under

non-cancellable operating lease
{Amount In Lakhs)

For the For the
year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2025 2024

Mot later than 1 year 3749.8%95 3571.33

Later than 1 year and not 21756.57 20720.54
later than 5 years

Later than 5 years J042047 7520640

= |easing arrangement:

As per the business model adopted by the Company,
the development, operation, marketing and
maintenance of cargo terminals are left with the
Captive / PPP BOT operators on 30 years Licence/

Concession Agreement. The company leased out
waterfront and land area for development of Berths
through BOT operators / Captive users as per the

Licence / Concession Agreement.

14. Disclosure in
Accounting Standard

respect

“Earnings Per Share (EPS)"”

a) BaslcEPS

of
(Ind AS)-33

Indian

The earnings and weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS

is as follows:
(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the
For the year yeirahdad
Particulars ended March March 31
31, 2025 d
o 2024
Profit (loss) for the 5393253 49568.03
year, attributable to
the owners of the
company
Earnings used In 53932.53 49568.03
calculation of basic
earnings per share{A)
Weighted average 300000000 | 300000000
number of ordinary
shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per
share(B)
Basic EPS(A/B) - Rs. 17.98 16.52

b) Diliuted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation of
Diluted EPS Is as follows:

{(Rupees In Lakhs)

For the For the
. - year ended | year ended
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

Profit (loss) for the year, 53932.53 49568.03
attributable to the owners
of the company
Earnings wused In 5393253 49568.02
calculation of basic
earnings per share (A)
Weighted average number 300000000 | 300000000
of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings
per share(B)
Baslc EPS{A/B) - Rs. 17.98 16.52
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15. Disclosure in respect of Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-27
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”

Contingent Liabllities
{I) Disputed Tax demand:

Disputed tax matters amounting to Rs.6542.40 lakhs
(Previous year Rs.2647.08 lakhs) are being contested
before Appellate authorities.

() Contract/supply works:

Some of the contractors for construction /supply and
execution of works at our projects have made daims on
the company aggregating to Rs3873.34 lakhs (Previous
Year: Bs4116.44 lakhs) seeking enhancement of the
contract price, revision of work schedule with price
escalation, compensation for extended period of work,
idle charges etc. These claims are being contested by
the company as being not admissible in terms of the
provision of the respective contracts. The company is
pursuing various options under the dispute resolution
mechanism available in the contract for settlement of
these daims.

(i) (a] Revenue Contracts with PFPP
Concasslonalres - M/s.AECTPL:

KPL entered into a Concession Agreement with M/s.
Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited
under PPP DBFOT mode on 15.03.2014 for the
Development of Container Terminal for 30 years.

The commercial operation commenced during
October 2017 for Phase 1 and Phase Il of the projectis
under construction. The concessionaire had raised
certain disputes and invoked Arbitration clause and
issued the Arbitration notice to the Company. Post
constitution of Arbitration Tribunal on 1st August
2020, claims and counter claims were filed before
the Arbitration Tribunal by both the Concessionaire
and the Company.

The npature of disputes and cdaims by the
Concessionaire were on account of the following:

(a) Delayin Phase-l of the project is attributable to
KPL

(b) Delay in Phase-ll of the project Is attributable
to KPL and therefore milestones to be revised
by KPL.

{c} LD.InPhase & Phasell are unenforceable and
to be refunded by KPL

{d) Issuance of consultation notice by KPL and
resumption of the same are unlawful.

{e} Invocation of change in law claiming Rs.1405
Cr and extension and meodification of
Concession Agreemient.

(f) Dedaring Actual Project Cost, Estimated
Project Cost and financial documents as valid
& enforceable and to take on record the same
by KPL.

{g) Refund of lease rentals & royalty paid by
AECTPL

(h} Clalm for interest,

The Company has denied the claims by the
concessionaire in its entirety and has preferred a
counterclaim amounting to Rs.16781 lakhs.

The Arbitration Tribunal passed an award dated
28.05.2024 wherein the award consisted of a
Majority Award and a Dissenting Award. The
Majority Award has allowed all claims of the
Claimant (M/s AECTPL) and disallowed all the
Counter Claims filed by the Company (KPL). While
the dissenting award has rejected all the claims of
M/s. AECTPL and allowed all counter claims of KPL.
Now, the Company has preferred statutory appeal
under Section 34 of the Arbitration and Condiliation
Act, 1996 challenging the Majority Award and same
is pending adjudication before the Single Bench
of the Hon'ble Madras High Court as the Majority
Award Is patently illegal and perverse under the law.
{b) Revenue Contracts with PPP
Concesslonalres - M/s. SIOTL:

Kamarajar Port Limited (Company) entered into a
License Agreement with M/s. SICAL Iron Ore terminal
Agreement (SIOTL) on 11.7.2016 for “Modifcation
of existing Iron Ore Terminal to alse handie Coal”
under PPP - DBFOT basis. with a capacity of 12
MTPA. The agreement was set for a 27-year tenure,
with an estimated project costof Rs. 229 croreand a
revenue-sharing model of 52.524%. The project had
a planned implementation pariod of 12 months.

Till June 2021, 71.62% of physical work was
completed. SIOTLs lenders Yes Bank and UCO Bank
has dedared finandal defaults In December 2020,
destabilizing project financing and prompting
Company to terminate the agreement. Following
termination, asset transfer and compensation
calculations faced delays due to incomplete
documentation from SIOTL and subsequent legal
disputes.

Meanwhile, M/s. Yes Bank Limited vide an
Assignment Deed 16.12.2022, assignead its debt with
respect to the Project under the License Agreement
betwesn KPL and M/S SIOTL, to M/S JC Flowers
ARC. The above assignment was dong by M/5 Yes
Bank Limited under SARFAESI Act 2002 without any
intimation to / approval of KPL
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SIOTL enterad the Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process (CIRP) in 2022, which later transitioned
1o liquidation under an NCLT order issued in June
2023. As aresult:

. Project Assets remain partially under the
Liquidator's control, with the berth still within
Company premises in an "as-is" condition. No
commercial utilization has taken place.

-  Compensation remains pending due to
ongoing legal disputes.

- Company has filed operational claims
amounting to Rs. 65.29 crore against SIOTL,
with partial admission by the Liquidator and
subsequent appeal pending before NCLT.

- A Writ Appeal filed by liquidator to pay
compensation as per License Agreement Is
pending before the High Court of Madras.
Company plans to pursue fresh valuation of
project assets to facilitate compensation and
asset takeover.

(c) Natlonal Green Tribunal (NGT) :

The Original Applications were filed before the
Hon'ble National Green Tribunal raising issues
relating illegal discharge of fly ash by the NCTPS
and the purported dumping of dredged soil by
the KPL In Buckingham Canal and Kosasthalaiyar
River and the encroachment of the Kosasthalaiyar
River and dumping of dredged soil by the KPL and
NCTPS which affected the livelihood of the fishing
communities. The Hon'ble NGT passed its order on

20.01.2020 directing the Company to deposit an
amount of Rs.8.34 crores as interim environmental
compensation for the purpose of remediation based
on the Report of the Committee appointed by NGT.
Aggrieved by the NGT order, Company filed a Review
Application before the Hon'ble NGT. On 06.11.2020,
review order was passed whereby the previous order
dated 20.01.2020 was modified to the limited extent
that the Company was directed to deposit a sum of
Rs. 4 crores as interim compensation. On 26.12.2020,
Civil Appeal was filed by the Company before the
Hon'ble Supreme Court of India challenging the
review order. On 05.01.2021, the Hon'ble Supreme
Court has stayed the NGT orders and ordered Notice
o the Respondents. The matter is pending before
the Supreme Court for final hearing.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities:

(Amount In Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 | 2023-24
Disputed Tax Demand but not
acknowledged as debt S| Al
Claims against the company not
acknowledged as debt
_NGT 400.00 400.00
- Contract / supply works 387334| 4llaM

Total (a+b) | 10815.74 7163.52

Claims against Revenue confract | 161533.31 | 1562968.63
with PPP Concessionaires

16. Expected Credit Loss ("ECL)

The impairment provisions are based on an evaluation of the risk of default over the expected life of the
receivables and expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairmant calculation, based on the Company’s past history of collections,
customer’s credit worthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of

each reporting period.

17. CWIP Ageing Schedule

(Amount In Lakhs as of March 31, 2025)

Partlculars Less than 1-2years 2-3yzars More than Total
1Year ye iz 3 years
Projects in Progress 758967 5430.07 1079.44 3606.09 17705.28
Projects temporarily suspended - - - 741.58 741.58
Total 7589.67 5430.07 1079.44 4347.67 18446.86
{(Amount In Lakhs as of March 31, 2024)
Particulars M 1-2years 2-3years o inincnt Total
1Year years
Projects in Progress 5881.01 102.44 19503.22 121060 26697.27
Projects temporarily suspended - - - 741.58 741.58
Total Lag1.m 102.44 19503.22 1952.18 27438.85
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18. Confirmation of balances:

Trade Receivables/Payables, Term Loans and
Advances, GST input credit/G5T and Deposits are
subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

19. Capital Management:

The Companys capltal comprises equity share
capital, retained earnings and other equity
attributable to equity holders. The primary objective
of Company’s capital management is to maximize
shareholders value. The Company manages Its
capital and makes adjustment to it in the light of the
changes in economic and market conditions.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. Net debt comprises of long term and short-
term borrowings less cash and bank balances.
Equity Iincludes equity share capital and reserves

21. Additional Regulatory Information
a. Analytical Ratios

that are managed as capital. The gearing at the end
of the reporting period was as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat31st | Asat 31st
Particulars March, March,
2025 2024
Total Debt 4479211 48084.44
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 15047 35 4080.19
Met Debt 2974476 44004 25
Total Equity 305995.01 | 297108893
Net debt to equity ratio 9.72% 15.12%

20. Information of Dividends paid for the
year ended 31st March, 2025

During the year, the Company paid a Final Dividend
of @ 100% of Equity Share capital i.e. Rs.10/- per
aquity share amounting to Rs.300 Crore for the
Financial year 2023-24. The Company also paid
an Interim Dividend for the Financial Year 202425
@ 30% of Equity Share capital i.e. Rs.3/- per equity
amounting to Rs.90 crore.

{Amount In Lakhs as of March 31, 2025)

items and taxes

Asat31st Asat31st Varlance
Ratlo Numerator Denominator March 2025 h 2024 -

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.3 079 | 141.77%
Diebt - Equity Ratio Total Debts Shareholders' equity 015 07 (11.76%)
Debt Service Coverage |Eamings for Debt |Debt Service 874 7.26 20.39%
Ratio Service (Profit after tax+ | (Interest + Principal

Depreciation+ finance | repayments)

cost+ Profit on sale of

property, plant and

equipmeant)
Return on Equity (ROE} | Net Profit Shareholders' equity 18.07% 17.81% 1.46%
Trade receivables Income from Trade Receivables 13.48 15.84 | (14.90%)
turnover ratio (in times) | Operations
Net profit ratio Net Profit Income from 46.5% 45.84% 1.44%

Operations

Return on capital Earnings before Met worth + debt 28.46% 28.13% 1.17%
employed (ROCE) interest, exceptional

All applicable ratios have been disclosed.

* Reason for varlation:

Current ratio: increased primarily on account of increase in Cash and cash equivalents, Trade receivables and

other financial assets.
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22. M/s. Kanniyakumari Port Limited

The Company has made an equity investment of
Rs.2 lakhs, being 40% of the paid-up capital of
Kanniyakumari Port Limited (KKPL) along with
VOC — TPT (40%) & Chennai Port Authority (20%).
KKPL is in the process of carrying out pre-project

activities. Although, Kamarajar Port Limited (KPL) is
an associate, as per Section 2 (6) of the Companies

Act, the Company does not have control over KKPL
Management and hence, its financial statemeants are
not required to be consolidated as per ind As-110 -
Consolidated Financial Statements.

23. Previous vyear's figures have been
regrouped wherever necessary.

24, Approval of financial statements

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
sd/- sd/-
SUNIL PALIWAL, LAS., JPIREMNE CYNTHIA LAS. For M/s Jasminder Singh & Associates
Chairman cum Managing Director Managing Director Chartered Accountants,
DIN: 0131011 DiN ; 08839241 FRN . 016192N
Sd/- sd/-
C.5.VEMANNA CA. Jasminder Singh,
Chief Finanical Officer (I/c) Partner,
M.No. 096895

Place : Chennai
Date : 26™ May 2025

UDIN: 25096893BMGYHC5619




KAMARAIAR PORT LIMITED

Form AOC-1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129
read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts Rules, 2014]
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries / associate companies/joint ventures
Part“B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

slNo. Mame of Assoclate/Joint Venture Kannlyakumari Port Limited
1 Latest Audited Balance sheet date 31.03.2025
3 Date on which Associate or Joint Venture was assocdiated or 550G
acquired
3 Shares of Associate/Joint ventures held by the company on the year end
A | Number 20,000 Shares
B | Amount of Investment in Assodiates/Joint Venture Rs.2,00,000/-
C | Extent of Holding % 40%
4 | Description of how there is significant influence Insignificant influence

The Associate is not considered
5 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated
material for consolidation.

Met worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited

<] Balance Sheet (10,81,767)
7 Profit/loss for the year

A | Considered in Consclidation il

B | Mot Considered in Consolidation (17.537)

Mames of Associates which are yet to commence operations:

Mame of Assodates and Joint Ventures which

are yet to commence opefations

1 UsT100TNZ20T2GCN 27401 Kanniyakumari Port Limited

Mumber of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or have ceased to be associate or joint venture
during the year - Nil
For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

5ds- Sd/-
SUNIL PALIWAL, I.AS., JLP. IRENE CYNTHIA, LAS.,
Chairman Managing Director
DIN:OT210101 DiN: 08339241
Sd/- 5d/-
KAVITA SATVI R. ROOPA
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer




